
 

*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes 
per person, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to the approval of the TOC. 
 

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA Clerk of the 
Board, telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility 
to this meeting.   
 

 
 
 
 

Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07 

February 13, 2018 @ 5:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Welcome 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for October 10, 2017 
 

4. Action Items  
A. M2 Quarterly Revenue & Expenditure Report (Dec 17) 

Receive and File - Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and Administration 
 

5. Presentation Items  
A. I-5 Widening Project from SR-73 to El Toro Road 

Presentation – Rose Casey, Director, Highway Programs 
 

B. OC Bridges Completion 
Presentation – Ross Lew, Program Manager, Highway Programs, and Tresa Oliveri, Community 
Relations Officer 
 

C. Project V Update 
Presentation – Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director, Planning  
 

D. Measure M Next 10 Plan Update 
Presentation – Tamara Warren, Measure M Program Manager 
 

6. OCTA Staff Updates (5 minutes each) 
 I-405 Improvement Project Groundbreaking Event – Christina Byrne, Department 

Manager, Public Outreach 
 Environmental Mitigation Program – Marissa Espino, Community Relations Officer 
 OC Go – Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing and Public Outreach 
 Upcoming Annual Hearing – Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing and Public Outreach 
 Other 

 
7. Audit Subcommittee Report 

 
8. Environmental Oversight Committee Report 

 
9. Committee Member Reports 

 

10. Public Comments* 
 

11. Adjournment 
The next meeting will be held on December April 10, 2018 



 

*Public Comments:  At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law.  Comments 
shall be limited to five (5) minutes per person and 20 minutes for all comments, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject 
to the approval of the TOC. 
 
Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA 
Clerk of the Board, telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable 
arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.   

 

 
 
 
 
Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
 

Staff Report Title  Board Meeting Date 
   

1. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
Semi-Annual Review – September 2017 

 December 11, 2017 

   
2. Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of 

July 2017 Through September 2017 
  

   
3. Fiscal Year 2017-18 Measure M2 Annual Eligibly Review   

   
4. Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates 

and Next Steps 
  

   
5. Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update   

   
6. Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators 

Program Ridership Report 
 January 8, 2018 

   
7. Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report  January 22, 2018 

   
8. Local Agencies’ Interest in Project V Call for Projects   

   
9. Capital Programs Division – Second Quarter Fiscal 

Year 2017-18 Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 
 February 12, 2018 

   
   

   
   

 

 



Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07 

October 10, 2017 @ 5:00 p.m. 
 

MEETING MINUTES
 

Committee Members Present: 
Richie Kerwin Lim, First District Representative 
Anthony Villa, First District Representative, Co-Chairman 
Larry Tekler, Second District Representative 
Alan P. Dubin, Second District Representative 
Eugene Fields, Third District Representative 
Andrew Lesko, Third District Representative, Co-Chairman 
Stanley F. Counts, Fourth District Representative 
Guita Sharifi, Fifth District Representative 
 
Committee Member(s) Absent: 
Eric Woolery, Orange County Auditor-Controller, Co-Chairman 
Sony Soegiarto, Fourth District Representative 
Matt McGuinness, Fifth District Representative 
 
Orange County Transportation Authority Staff Present: 
Jim Biel, Executive Director, Capital Programs 
Julianne Brazeau, Public Reporter Specialist 
May Hout,  
Emily Mason, Community Relations Specialist 
Jeff Mills, Program Manager, Highway Programs 
Sean, Murdock, Director, Finance & Administration 
Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing & Public Outreach 
Tamara Warren, Program Manager, M Program Management Office 
 
 

1. Welcome 
Co-Chairman Anthony Villa welcomed everyone to the Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) meeting at 
5:03 p.m.   

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

Co-Chairman Anthony Villa led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.   
 

3. Approval of the Minutes/Attendance Report for August 8, 2017 
A motion was made by Alan Dubin, seconded by Stanley Counts, and carried 
unanimously to approve the August 8, 2017 TOC Minutes and the Attendance 
report with Sony Soegiarto’s absence unexcused.  
 

emason
Typewritten Text
(Updated 2.13.18)

emason
Typewritten Text

emason
Typewritten Text

emason
Typewritten Text

emason
Typewritten Text

emason
Typewritten Text



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 2 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 10, 2017 
 
 

4. Action Items 
A. Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee Eligibility Report FY 17-18 

Eugene Fields provided the AER Subcommittee Eligibility Report for FY 17-18. 
 
A motion was made by Richie Lim, seconded by Stanley Counts, and carried 
unanimously to approve the recommendations made the AER Subcommittee for 
the FY 17-18 Eligibility Report. 
 

5. Presentation Items 
A. I-405 Improvement Project Background 

Jeff Mills presented some background information on I-405 Improvement Project. 
 
Richie Lim asked for the official response to there being concern by members of the 
public as to why Measure M should be paying for the total infrastructure cost of the 
I-405 Project when it benefits both the express lane and the general purpose lane 
and so Measure M should be paying at best only 50 percent of the infrastructure 
cost. Jeff Mills said that even if the I-405 is widened by one lane in each direction, 
all bridges would still need to be widened, which was included in Alternative 1.  All 
alternatives, including cost estimates, went through the environmental and public 
outreach phase.   
 
Andrew Lesko asked who will receive the revenue from the express lanes.  Jeff 
Mills said, since OCTA is building the express lanes, OCTA will receive the 
revenue from the tolls for future improvements in the corridor.  If OCTA would 
not have agreed to build the additional lane, the State of California would have 
built the express lanes and received the toll revenue. 
 
Larry Tekler asked if staff could go through the funding on the project.  Jeff Mills 
said the cost of the express lanes is $475 million and will be funded solely with 
toll revenues and will be financed with a Transportation Infrastructure Finance 
and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan.  The TIFIA loan is for $629 million, so the 
remainder of that loan will help to pay for the general purpose lanes.          
$1.135 billion in Measure M funds will be added to the remainder of TIFIA funds 
for the general purpose lanes. He said about $46 million of other federal funds 
and $90 million of state funding will finish out the total funding package.  Larry 
asked if the state and federal funds are loans or grants.  Jeff said the state and 
federal funds do not have to be paid back – they are earmarked or grant funds 
for this project.  Jim Biel said the Measure M2 Ordinance compels OCTA to seek 
state and federal funding before using local funding.  Larry asked if the amount 
OCTA is getting is the maximum OCTA can get from State and Federal.  Jeff 
said OCTA is always trying to get more, but this is the maximum at this point.   
 
Eugene Fields asked about the estimated time to pay off the TIFIA loan.  Jeff 
Mills said it is a 35 year loan, but OCTA starts paying on it five years after the 
completion of the lanes.  So, in 2028 OCTA will start paying the loan back.  Jim 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 3 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 10, 2017 
 
 

Biel said one benefit of this loan is OCTA does not have to pay capital interest.  
Eugene asked if 100 percent of the tolls will be going to pay off the loan.  Jim 
said no. OCTA saves a percentage for operations/maintenance and a 
percentage for reserves, then 50 percent of any excess revenue goes to paying 
back the TIFIA loan.  Jeff said OCTA anticipates paying the loan back early.  Jeff 
said OCTA is projecting to shave 5-10 years off of the loan with the amount of 
toll revenues OCTA will be receiving.   
 
Alan Dubin asked about the free versus pay per use of the HOT/Express Lanes.  
Jeff Mills said a Traffic and Revenue Study was done to predict the flow of traffic 
now and in the future.  He said, based on this study, in the years 2023-2026 if 
you have two or more riders there will be no fee during non-peak hours.  Peak 
hours are 6am-10am and 3pm-8pm during the week days.  After 2026, there will 
need to be three or more riders in the car to be free during all hours. 
 
Stanley Counts asked about how the fees will be determined on the express 
lanes.  Jeff Mills said preliminarily the max fee is projected to be about $10 on 
the northbound side around 5pm-6pm in 2023.  Jeff said the fee would vary 
depending on the time of day and the portion of the freeway. 
 
Anthony Villa clarified for the committee this item was added to the agenda to 
address comments made at the last meeting. 
 

B. Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast 
Sean Murdock presented the Measure M2 Sales Tax Forecast. 
 
Anthony Villa asked for clarification regarding where sales tax goes when 
purchases are made online vs in-store.  Sean Murdock said if an item is 
purchased from a business that is located out of state and does not have a store 
in California there may not be a sales tax paid, therefore the consumer is 
supposed to declare the item on personal income taxes.  Sean said when it 
comes to Transportation Development Act (TDA) taxes (not Measure M), if the 
fulfillment/distribution centers are not in Orange County there are not taxes 
collected for Orange County.  He said Measure M is funded by taxes at point of 
destination, and TDA is point of origin.   
 
Alan Dubin asked if Muni Services does projections beyond 10 years.  Sean 
Murdock said they do not.  Alan said on slide eight there is a big jump between 
what Muni is predicting and what the average of the other universities are 
predicting in 2024.  Sean said the OCTA Board had the same concern.  He said 
this is a result of the methodology and OCTA will keep an eye on these 
predictions.   
 
Larry Tekler asked if there is a fundamental difference in the methodology used 
by Fullerton.  Sean Murdock said OCTA does not receive the details of their 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 4 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 10, 2017 
 
 

methodology.  He said they mainly use what the growth rate will be, what 
inflation will be, etc.  Sean said Chapman provides a little information. He said 
UCLA said they are predicting a high rate in 2018/19 because they believe 
President Trump will have some sort of tax reform that will help. 
 
Guita Sharifi asked how electric cars impact sales tax growth.  Sean Murdock 
said electric cars do not buy gas, which is a big contributor to sales and the gas 
tax income. 
 
Richie Lim asked when OCTA first started using Muni Services.  Sean Murdock 
said OCTA officially brought on Muni Services in March 2016, but OCTA used 
Muni Services for other things prior. 
 

C. Measure M Next 10: Market Conditions Forecast and Risk Analysis 
Tamara Warren presented the Measure M Next 10: Market Conditions Forecast 
and Risk Analysis. 
 
Guita Sharifi asked if contractors who work on Measure M projects receive the 
prevailing wage.  Tamara Warren said yes, they do. 
 
Richie Lim asked if there was a forecast for the construction cost index (CCI).  
Tamara Warren said yes. OCTA uses the Caltrans CCI but the Market 
Conditions Forecast study indicated that there’s a strong possibility that the 
index is not reflective of what will actually be seen moving forward.   
 
Larry Tekler asked is it fair to say that costs are rising faster than sales tax 
revenue.  Tamara Warren said there are cost pressures that have not been seen 
in the past and sales tax revenue forecasts are lower than expected (still 
growing, but not at the rate originally anticipated).   
 
Larry Tekler thought it was interesting the consultant thought OCTA needs to 
make sure they are a preferred client.  He asked how OCTA is doing in that 
regard.  Tamara Warren said OCTA has done significant work in that area to 
make sure OCTA is a preferred client.   
 
Richie Lim said he thinks the recommendation of using an apprenticeship 
program should be a priority.  He said he has previous experience using an 
apprenticeship program in Guam for work on ships.  He said the apprenticeship 
program helps to ensure the continued supply of labor in the market.  Tamara 
Warren said OCTA will look into how they can assist with existing programs.  
She said OCTA does work with the labor unions to assist them with 
communicating upcoming project work. 
 

6. OCTA Staff Updates 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee  Page 5 
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 10, 2017 
 
 

 Measure M Identity – Alice Rogan presented the TOC with the new Measure 
M Identity. 
 
Guita Sharifi asked what the costs are associated with changing the Measure 
M identity.  Alice Rogan said there have been no costs other than staff time.  
Guita asked if there is anything in the Ordinance that would preclude this 
change.  Alice said no, this would just be a renaming process. 
 
Eugene Fields asked what percentage of the Orange County public OCTA 
would like to have aware of Measure M.  Alice Rogan said usual rate of 
awareness is usually around 20 to 25 percent and OCTA is right in the range.  
OCTA would like to get it up to 30 to 40 percent. 
 
Richie Lim asked what OCTA would do to promote Measure M/OC Go 
awareness.  Alice Rogan said it will mostly be done through digital 
communication/social media.  Tamara Warren said the signs on freeway 
projects, road projects, shuttle circulators, etc. will also all have a consistent 
OC Go look.  She said the idea is to get people to realize they are all 
connected as part of one program. 
 

 Other – Alice Rogan discussed the options for the next meeting of the TOC.  
Currently the next meeting is scheduled for December 12.  Typically the TOC 
has a hard time getting quorum in December due to holiday events. TOC 
members were comfortable canceling the meeting if there were no urgent 
items to discuss. 

 
7. Environmental Oversight Committee (EOC) Report  

Anthony Villa said OCTA recently released Resources Management Plans (RMP) 
for the Aliso Canyon and Hiashi properties.  There are three public meetings 
scheduled for October to review the plans.  The EOC will start to meet quarterly. 
 
Alice Rogan said Caltrans recently gave OCTA, and the other agencies involved, an 
award for this innovative program to advance transportation. 
 
Alice Rogan said OCTA has been monitoring the Canyon Fires and McPherson Fire 
in relation to the OCTA owned properties. 

  
8. Committee Member Reports 

There were no committee member reports. 
 

9. Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 
 

10. Adjournment 



Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
Attendance Record 

X = Present E = Excused Absence * = Absence Pending Approval U = Unexcused Absence     -- = Resigned                          

  

11-Jul 8-Aug 12-Sep 10-Oct 14-Nov 12-Dec 9-Jan 13-Feb 13-Mar 10-Apr 8-May 12-JunMeeting Date 

Stanley F. Counts   X  X  M       
        E       
Alan Dubin   X  X  E       
        T       
Eugene Fields  X  X  I       
      N       
Andrew Lesko   X  X  G       
             
Richie Kerwin Lim   X  X  C       
        A       
Matt McGuinness   X  *  N       
        C       
Guita Sharifi   X  X  E       
        L       
Sony Soegiarto   U  N/A  L       
      E       
Larry Tekler   X  X  D       
              
Anthony Villa  X  X         
             
             
             

 
Absences Pending Approval 

Meeting Date Name Reason 
10/10/17 Matt McGuinness Out of town on business 

 

emason
Typewritten Text
(Updated 2.13.18)



 
 

Action  
Items 

 



Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 83,754         $ 161,752     $ 1,920,841    
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 21,818         45,624       591,976       
Non-project related -               -              454              

Interest:
Operating:

Project related 280              342            470              
Non-project related 2,137           4,666         23,729         

Bond proceeds -               823            45,717         
Debt service 31                49               172              
Commercial paper -               -              393              

Right-of-way leases -               -              907              
Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale 2,075           2,075         8,879           
Donated assets held for resale -               -              2,071           
Miscellaneous:

Project related -               -              270              
Non-project related -               -              100              

Total revenues 110,095       215,331     2,595,979    

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

State Board of Equalization (SBOE) fees 901              1,801         21,292         
Professional services:

Project related 9,141           9,292         320,650       
Non-project related 1,949           2,031         19,229         

Administration costs:
Project related 2,228           4,457         57,914         
Non-project related:

Salaries and Benefits 640              1,280         21,280         
Other 1,235           2,470         34,048         

Other:
Project related -               5                 4,854           
Non-project related 22                43               3,935           

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 22,659         43,829       775,103       

Capital outlay:
Project related 69,530         116,419     747,386       
Non-project related -               -              31               

Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt -               -              34,560         
Interest on long-term debt and 
   commercial paper 10                10,529       147,408       

Total expenditures 108,315       192,156     2,187,690    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,780           23,175       408,289       

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (2,786)          (3,654)        (33,571)        
Transfers in:

Project related -               1,973         81,481         
Non-project related -               (1,973)        -              

Bond proceeds -               -              358,593       

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,786)          (3,654)        406,503       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
and other sources (uses) $ (1,006)            $ 19,521         $ 814,792       

Measure M2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

 1



Schedule 2

Period from Period from
Inception January 1, 2018

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through
Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total
(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 83,754         $ 161,752     $ 1,920,841  $ 11,568,278       $ 13,489,119 
Operating interest 2,137           4,666         23,729       172,604            196,333       
   Subtotal 85,891         166,418     1,944,570  11,740,882       13,685,452 

Other agencies share of M2 costs -               -             454             -                    454              
Miscellaneous -               -             100             -                    100              

Total revenues 85,891         166,418     1,945,124  11,740,882       13,686,006 

Administrative expenditures:
SBOE fees 901              1,801         21,292       173,594            194,886       
Professional services 1,949           2,031         15,453       82,153              97,606         
Administration costs : -               -             -             -               

Salaries and Benefits 640              1,280         21,280       115,664            136,944       
Other 1,235           2,470         34,048       192,141            226,189       

Other 22                43               3,935         22,294              26,229         
Capital outlay -               -             31               -                    31                
Environmental cleanup 2,528           3,022         31,361       231,329            262,690       

Total expenditures 7,275           10,647       127,400     817,175            944,575       

Net revenues $ 78,616       $ 155,771   $ 1,817,724 $ 10,923,707       $ 12,741,431

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -               $ -             $ 358,593     $ 1,885,000         $ 2,243,593    
Interest revenue from bond proceeds -               823             45,717       98,383              144,100       
Interest revenue from debt service funds 31                49               172             4,739                4,911           
Interest revenue from commercial paper -               -             393             -                    393              

Total bond revenues 31                872             404,875     1,988,122         2,392,997    

Financing expenditures and uses:
Professional services -               -             3,776         13,195              16,971         
Bond debt principal -               -             34,560       2,199,123         2,233,683    
Bond debt and other interest expense 10                10,529       147,408     995,101            1,142,509    

Total financing expenditures and uses 10                10,529       185,744     3,207,419         3,393,163    

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ 21              $ (9,657)      $ 219,131   $ (1,219,297)       $ (1,000,166)

Measure M2
Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

 2



Schedule 3
Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary
as of December 31, 2017

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements
through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2017 Net Revenues Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 M2 Cost
(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)
($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 71,644           $ 502,207        $ 6,263        $ 1,991        $ 4,272        
B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 45,762           320,770        7,413        4,335        3,078        
C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 95,579           669,963        106,625    41,418      65,207      
D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 39,329           275,679        1,853        527           1,326        
E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 18,293           128,223        4               -            4               
F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 55,792           391,079        9,404        344           9,060        
G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 39,436           276,426        46,756      11,289      35,467      
H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 21,341           149,593        34,491      824           33,667      
I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 63,490           445,039        19,729      2,390        17,339      
J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 53,689           376,333        6,932        5,294        1,638        
K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 163,535         1,146,310     233,667    22,643      211,024    
L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 48,734           341,606        8,025        4,893        3,132        
M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 3,049             21,370          1,407        16             1,391        
N All Freeway Service Patrol 22,866           160,278        2,186        -            2,186        

Freeway Mitigation 39,081           273,941        49,851      2,355        47,496      

Subtotal Projects 781,620         5,478,817     534,606    98,319      436,287    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                38,400      -            38,400      

Total Freeways $ 781,620         $ 5,478,817     $ 573,006    $ 98,319      $ 474,687    
     % 35.8%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 181,775         $ 1,274,159     $ 685,396    $ 422,937    $ 262,459    
P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 72,707           509,641        42,877      4,879        37,998      
Q Local Fair Share Program 327,190         2,293,457     307,166    77             307,089    

Subtotal Projects 581,672         4,077,257     1,035,439 427,893    607,546    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                42,650      -            42,650      

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 581,672         $ 4,077,257     $ 1,078,089 $ 427,893    $ 650,196    
     % 49.0%

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

3



Schedule 3
Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary
as of December 31, 2017

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements
through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2017 Net Revenues Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 M2 Cost
(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)
($ in thousands)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 168,703         $ 1,270,769     $ 165,877    $ 95,932      $ 69,945      
S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 160,463         1,124,773     15,484      2,133        13,351      
T Metrolink Gateways 27,646           65,124          98,212      60,956      37,256      
U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 57,263           441,811        53,467      88             53,379      
V Community Based Transit/Circulators 36,345           254,761        4,757        415           4,342        
W Safe Transit Stops 4,012             28,119          275           26             249           

Subtotal Projects 454,432         3,185,357     338,072    159,550    178,522    
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                23,852      -            23,852      

Total Transit Projects $ 454,432         $ 3,185,357     $ 361,924    $ 159,550    $ 202,374    
     % 15.2%

$ 1,817,724      $ 12,741,431   $ 2,013,019 $ 685,762    $ 1,327,257 

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements
through Total through through Net

Project Description Dec 31, 2017 Revenues Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 M2 Cost
(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)
($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 
  that Pollutes Beaches $ 38,891           $ 273,709        $ 31,361      $ 292           $ 31,069      

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                -                -            -            -            

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 38,891           $ 273,709        $ 31,361      $ 292           $ 31,069      
     % 1.6%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 28,813           $ 202,337        $ 21,292      $ -            $ 21,292      
     % 1.1%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 19,446           $ 136,855        $ 21,280      $ 1,834        $ 19,446      
     % 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

4



 
 

Presentation 
Items 

 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
 
 
 
February 8, 2018 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 

From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer  
 
Subject: 2018 Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators Program 

Guidelines and Call for Projects 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 establishes a competitive program through Project V to fund local 
transit services such as shuttles, trolleys, and circulators that complement 
regional transit services. Based on interest from local agencies, a competitive 
Call for Projects is recommended, and updated guidelines are presented for 
review and approval. 
 
Recommendations  
 
A. Approve the 2018 Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators 

Program Guidelines. 
 

B. Authorize staff to issue the 2018 Project V Community-Based 
Transit/Circulators Call for Projects in the amount of $12 million. 
 

Background 
 
Project V is a competitive program under Measure M2 (M2) that provides funding 
to develop and implement local transit services. Based on current forecasts, the 
total estimated revenue for Project V under M2 for the 30-year period  
(2011-2041) is $251 million. Services eligible for this program include local 
shuttles, trolleys, and circulators that complement regional bus and rail services, 
and meet needs in areas not adequately served by regional transit. Year-round 
services and seasonal/special event shuttles have been eligible to compete for 
funding.  Further, Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has helped 
local agencies provide fixed-route services by providing transit operations and 
maintenance directly through OCTA’s Transit Division.  These services are 
frequently referred to as “OCTA-led” services. 
 
  



2018 Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 2 
 

 

 

The initial guidelines for Project V were approved by the OCTA Board of 
Directors (Board) in November 2012. The last Project V Call for Projects (call) 
occurred in 2016. Since inception, the Board has approved 23 projects with 
capital and/or operations and maintenance elements for a total of $36.5 million 
in Project V funds. Through September 30, 2017, OCTA has received 
reimbursement requests from local agencies and has expended  
$3.6 million for Project V services.   
 
Seasonal service and special events serve the local community and tourists in 
higher density areas during peak seasons to alleviate local congestion and 
connect parking locations to activity centers, which contributes to their higher 
productivity. Local circulators provide fixed-route services to the local community 
and regional commuters by connecting key activity centers within the local 
service area. The special event services have proven to be especially 
successful, whereas the year-round fixed-route services have not performed at 
the same level, and several agencies have experienced difficulties in meeting 
the minimum performance standard (Attachment A).   
 
To further serve the mobility needs of the communities in Orange County, staff 
requested letters of interest from local agencies to determine the timing for a 
future round of Project V funding.  As reported to the Board in January 2018,  
local agencies primarily expressed an interest in seasonal, special event, and 
year-round services (Attachment B).   
 
Discussion 
 
Considering the level of interest in providing new community-based services and 
the lessons learned from existing projects and successes, staff is proposing a 
2018 Project V call targeting special events and seasonal services. However, 
year-round services provided through non-OCTA service providers will be 
eligible for consideration. While OCTA-led services will not be eligible for this call 
cycle, OCTA will continue to provide support to local agencies wishing to use 
their own resources to develop these types of services under Project V. If an 
expansion of an existing Project V year-round service is being proposed, the 
existing service must have met the minimum performance requirement in the last 
quarter (Q2: October 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017) to qualify for consideration. 
Due to low interest, the proposed guidelines do not include planning studies in 
this call. This will allow OCTA to focus Project V resources on service operations 
and capital in this call. It is proposed to make available $12 million in Project V 
funds for a 2018 call. Grants would be available for a period of three to five years, 
and this will enable projects in this call to better align with current projects and 
timescales for a future Project V call. 
 



2018 Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 3 
 

 

 

The Project V Guidelines have been updated to include criteria relevant to the 
proposed 2018 call (Attachment C). The updates mainly relate to the period of 
funding (three to five years), eligible categories, and scoring criteria related to 
the proposed call. Projects that apply for the 2018 call would be evaluated  
and scored against criteria identified in the guidelines (Attachment D).   
The 2016 Project V call allowed approximately 3 months for applications  
(November 23, 2015 – February 29, 2016) and 3 months for OCTA project-level 
reviews.  The 2018 call includes approximately 6 weeks for agencies to develop 
and submit applications, with applications due by March 23, 2018.  OCTA will 
then review and score the applications through early May 2018. The expedited 
timescale is due to the high level of interest in a call from local agencies and 
allows the opportunity to award funding from fiscal year (FY) 2018-19, if an 
agency can demonstrate project readiness. 
 
Next Steps 
 
Upon approval of the guidelines, OCTA will notify local agencies of the call and 
applications will be due by March 23, 2018. Staff will then assess the applications 
and return to the Board with funding recommendations in June 2018.   
Funding will be available starting in FY 2018-19, if an agency can demonstrate 
adequate project readiness, and in FY 2019-20. 
 
Summary 
 
Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators 2018 Program Guidelines for 
administration of a 2018 call are presented for review and approval. Staff is also 
seeking approval to issue a 2018 call. 
 
  



2018 Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators Program 
Guidelines and Call for Projects 

Page 4 
 

 

 

Attachments 
 
A. Project V Services – Ridership Report 
B. Project V Letters of Interest Overview 
C. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, Chapter 6 – 

Community-Based Transit/Circulators (Project V)  
D. Project V, 2018 Call for Projects Application & Scoring Criteria 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by: 
 

 
Jodie McCann   Kia Mortazavi 
Senior Transportation Funding 
Analyst 
(714) 560-5320 

 Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



Agency Service Description Project V 
Funding Service Type Service Start 

Month/Year
Actual 

Rider Fare

1 Boardings Per 
Revenue Vehicle 

Hour (B/RVH)

Costa Mesa
Local Circulator From 
Costa Mesa To Anaheim  2,790,638$        Local Circulator July 2017 $0 1

Dana Point
Summer Trolley and 
Seasonal Shuttle 2,456,511$        Seasonal Service June 2015 $0 16

Dana Point
Pacific Coast Highway and 
Special Event Trolley 905,968$          Seasonal Service June 2017 $0 17

Huntington Beach Holiday and Event Shuttle 93,287$            Special Event July 2015 $0 12

Huntington Beach
Seasonal Local Transit 
Service 917,700$          Seasonal Service July 2017 $0 2

La Habra 2 Local Community Circulator 1,719,839$        Local Circulator August 2014 $1 6

La Habra Special Event Service 96,810$            Special Event Novemeber 2016 $0 7

Laguna Beach
Summer Weekend Trolley 
and Seasonal Service 3,559,860$        Special Event March 2015 $0 34

Laguna Beach

Residential Trolley Service 
Year Round and Seasonal 
Service 1,967,400$        

Year Round and 
Seasonal Service July 2017 $0 8

Lake Forest
Commuter Vanpool Service  
Irvine Station and Ossur 148,855$          Commuter Service July 2015 $0 10

Lake Forest
Commuter Shuttle Service 
Irvine Station and Panasonic 1,226,862$        Commuter Service June 2017 $0 21

Mission Viejo 3 Local Community Circulator 3,332,879$        Local Circulator October 2016 $0 4

Newport Beach
Balboa Peninsula Seasonal 
Trolley 685,454$          Seasonal Service June 2017 $0 20

County of Orange
Local Circulator and Special 
Event Service 2,041,547$        

Local Circulator and 
Special Event June 2017 $0 7

San Clemente
Summer Weekend Trolley 
and Seasonal Service 1,181,393$        

Seasonal and 
Special Event May 2017 $0 46

San Clemente 4 On-Demand Rideshare 914,400$          Rideshare Service October 2016 $2+ --

San Juan Capistrano Summer Trolley Service 95,486$            
Seasonal and 
Special Event June 2017 $0 18

1. Rounded to the nearest whole number.

2. This service has been cancelled by the City of La Habra effective October 2017, due to low productivity. 

3. The City of Mission Viejo has experienced an upward trend in B/RVH in recent months and achieved nine B/RVH in September. 

4. The average ridership for this service cannot be confirmed at this time. Awaiting confirmation from the service provider, LYFT, INC.

Project V Services - Ridership Report

2017 Ridership reported for the period ending September 30, 2017.

sclifton
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT A



  ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

Project V Letters of Interest Overview 

Local Agency 

 

Project Title 

 

Type 

 

2016 Call for Projects 

Project V Planning Study 

Buena Park Shuttle Service Year-Round No 

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley Seasonal Expansion No 

Irvine To Be Determined To Be Determined No 

Laguna Beach 
Summer Weekend 

Service 
Seasonal No 

Laguna Niguel Trolley Service Year-Round Yes 

Mission Viejo Local Circulator Year-Round Expansion Yes 

Orange Feasibility Study Special Events No 

Placentia 
On-Demand and  

Special Events 
Pilot and Special Events Yes 

San Clemente Trolley Service 
Seasonal/Year-Round 

Expansion 
No 

San Juan 

Capistrano 
Summer Trolley Seasonal No 

Santa Ana Downtown Trolley Seasonal/Special Events No 

Tustin Local Circulator Year-Round Yes 

Yorba Linda Senior Mobility Program  

Senior Mobility Program 

Expansion from four to  

five days per week 

No 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-1 
2018 Call for Projects 

Chapter 6 – Community-Based Transit/Circulators (Project V) 

Overview  

The Measure M2 (M2) Project V - Community-Based Transit/Circulators Program 
establishes a competitive process to enable local jurisdictions to develop community- 
based local transit services that complement regional transit services, and meet needs in 
areas not adequately serviced by regional transit. Projects must meet specific criteria in 
order to compete for funding through this program. In addition, local jurisdictions will be 
required to demonstrate the ability to provide funding match for capital and ongoing local 
share of operations and maintenance using non-Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) resources. Public-private partnerships1 are encouraged but not required. Local 
jurisdictions may partner with each other. 

Regional Transit: Regional Transit services are provided by OCTA, specifically through 
routes 1 through 99 (and excluding those route sections that perform less than 10 
boardings per revenue vehicle hour). Additional information on OCTA routes and 
schedules can be accessed from OCTA website at www.octa.net. 

Objectives 
 To provide community transit service that is safe, clean and convenient. 
 To encourage new, well-coordinated, flexible transportation systems customized 

to each community’s needs. 
 To develop local bus transit services such as community-based circulators, 

shuttles, and bus trolleys that complement regional bus and rail service. 
 To meet transportation needs in areas not served by regional transit. 

  

                                        
1 Public-private partnerships are defined as direct financial contributions or sponsorships for eligible 
program activities 

sclifton
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT C



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-2 
2018 Call for Projects 

2018 Call for Projects  

The 2018 Call for Projects (call) for Project V will provide approximately $12 million for 
community-based transit/circulators across Orange County. Specifics on the funding 
policies that apply to this call are identified below. 

Applications 

In order for OCTA to consider a project for funding, applications will be prepared by the 
local agency utilizing the Application Form, available electronically from OCTA. Agencies 
are required to submit electronic and hardcopy applications for the 2018 call for projects 
by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, March 23, 2018. Late submittals will not be accepted. 

Three (3) unbound hardcopies of the application and any supporting documentation 
must be submitted to OCTA by the application deadline, along with an electronic copy 
(CD, USB, or Dropbox). 

Hardcopy applications should be mailed to: 

OCTA 
Attention: Jodie McCann  
550 S. Main Street 
P.O. Box 14184, Orange, CA 92863-1584 

Hardcopy applications may be hand delivered to: 

600 S. Main Street 
Orange, CA 92868 

Resolutions 

A resolution or minute action must be approved by the local agency’s governing body. 
The mechanism selected shall serve as a formal request for Project V funds and states 
the matching funds will be provided by the agency, if necessary. All project requests must 
be included in this section. 

At minimum, a draft resolution must be submitted with the application by the March 23rd 
deadline. A final adopted resolution must be submitted to OCTA by Friday, April 13, 
2018. A sample resolution is included in Exhibit 6-2. 

  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-3 
2018 Call for Projects 

Pre-Award Activities 

Pre-Award Activities are allowable under Precept 6. A grantee may, at its own risk and 
without an executed OCTA Cooperative Agreement, obligate funds. Expenditures that are 
made prior to an executed OCTA Cooperative Agreement, but after July 1, of the 
programmed Fiscal Year (FY) must be identified in the grant application and must be 
submitted to OCTA for administrative approval prior to the implementation of the project.  

Project Participation Categories  

Transit needs may differ from one location to the next, and projects pursued under this 
program have significant latitude on how the challenge of delivering community-based 
transit will be delivered. The program categories listed below identify key project 
elements that can be pursued through the Project V funding source. The program 
categories eligible for funding through Project V are: 

Planning for new service - Up to $50,000 per agency (Not applicable to 2018 Call) 

 Need for Community-Based Transit/Circulator Services 
 Origin and Destination Studies 
 Surveys and Marketing Research 
 Development of Proposed Service Plans 
 Transit Coordination Studies 

Capital 

 Bus and vehicle leases/purchases for the purposes of providing seasonal/special 
event shuttles and trolleys. If the purchase of vehicles is more cost efficient than 
a lease, justification and supporting documentation must be provided. Vehicle 
purchases will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

 Equipment for the deployment, implementation and use of Project V-funded 
services, including but not limited to: 

o Bike racks 

o Software 

o Communications equipment 

o Fare collection equipment  

o Passenger amenities 

o Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) equipment for vehicles 

 Maintenance facilities and fueling stations required for the new transit service 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-4 
2018 Call for Projects 

 Bus stop improvements (including signage, furniture and shelters) for Project V 
funded service stops only). 

Operations and Maintenance  

All costs below are subject to OCTA subsidy limitations outlined on page 6-6: 

 Seasonal, fixed route, deviated fixed route, demand responsive community transit 
and shuttle services including administration, operations and maintenance of 
services. 

 Transportation services provided by non-OCTA providers.  

 Services to be operated by OCTA.  Local agencies may propose an alternative 
service provider which will be considered at the discretion of OCTA. 

 Expansion of fixed-route services will only be considered if the existing service has 
met the minimum performance standards in the last quarter (see page 6-6). 
Existing OCTA led services are eligible for expansion if an alternate service provider 
is identified.  

 Temporary off-site parking for special events subject to agreement with the 
property owner and approval by OCTA. 

 Parking leases needed in response to expanded transit services. 

 Special event shuttle services for events that will create significant congestion. 

 Other flexible and innovative transit services contingent on the service plan and 
anticipated service performance. 

 Marketing efforts including expenditures related to seasonal or special event 
service schedules, marketing materials such as flyers and brochures and 
community outreach efforts. Project V contribution for marketing will be capped at 
$25,000 for the startup cost and up to $10,000 annually thereafter for the 
remaining grant period.  

Agencies may be awarded, from all eligible project categories, no more than $550,000 
annually for a period of three to five years per project. Funding will begin in FY 2018-19, 
if an agency can demonstrate project readiness, or in FY 2019-20.  

Ineligible Categories  

Project V funds may not be used for the following: 

 Right of way acquisition 

 To supplant existing transit services (subject to the Regional Transit definition in 
Section 1) 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-5 
2018 Call for Projects 

 Fare subsidies (Free shuttles are not considered subsidized fare for this program) 

 Indirect costs  

 Planning studies  

 OCTA-led services 

Project Requirements 

All projects funded through Project V must comply with the Comprehensive 
Transportation Funding Programs Guidelines, unless specifically noted in the agreement 
with the local agency and must comply with applicable state and federal laws, including 
American with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements for transit services. 

Planning for New Service (Not applicable to 2018 Call) 

Cities must provide a scope of work for the proposed planning document requesting 
Project V funds. The scope must include project need and goals and objectives for the 
proposed or considered service. OCTA transit planning staff must be included in the 
development of any planning documents funded through the Project V planning category. 
Planning documents must include specific recommendations for community-based 
transit/circulator services that can be implemented within the operating subsidy provided 
through Project V and must consider coordination with existing services. Plans may also 
consider ways to eliminate duplication of service or to improve service by combining 
resources. Progress on planning projects must be reported to OCTA through the semi-
annual review process. Agencies will be required to submit all data and planning 
documents to OCTA in order to receive final payment. 

Capital 

Project V funding is available to offset the costs of purchasing or leasing vehicles, 
equipment and other amenities as described in Chapter 3, under eligible costs. Progress 
on capital projects must be reported to OCTA through the semi-annual review process. 
Agencies must inspect vehicle purchases to ensure they meet specifications prior to final 
acceptance and withhold retention until warranty issues and/or final acceptance is met. 
If vehicles are sold before the end of their useful life or if service is discontinued, agencies 
shall repay OCTA the same percentage of the sale price or estimated value based on 
straight line depreciation of asset consistent with the Project V percentage of the initial 
purchase. 

  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-6 
2018 Call for Projects 

Operations and Maintenance 

OCTA has established an operating reserve as part of this program that may be used to 
support the costs of operations and maintenance. The operating reserve is subject to the 
following requirements: 

 Service performance will be evaluated on a quarterly basis. The minimum 
performance standards are calculated by dividing boardings by the revenue vehicle 
hours (B/RVH) as detailed below: 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3+ 

 Meet or exceed 6 B/RVH by 
end of Year 12 

Maintain 6 B/RVH each 
reporting period3 and; 

Meet or exceed 10 B/RVH 
by end of Year 2 

Maintain 10 B/RVH each 
reporting period 

 After Year 1, services that perform below the minimum performance standard for 
two or more reporting periods will be evaluated for cancellation. 

 As part of the Project V service, local agencies must develop strategies to measure 
ridership satisfaction and on-time performance and must achieve an 85% on-time 
performance on an ongoing basis and rider satisfaction must be 90% satisfied 
based on customer surveys. 

 Awarded agencies must submit operations and maintenance costs and ridership 
and fare performance data to OCTA on a quarterly basis. The OCTA Transit 
Committee will be provided with summarized information from these reports on a 
semi-annual basis. 

 The OCTA subsidy allows awarded agencies to be reimbursed on a pro-rata basis, 
but not to exceed $9 per boarding or 90 percent of net operating and maintenance 
costs (after deducting fares and non-OCTA subsidies), whichever is less. The $9 
per boarding may increase annually by an OCTA-approved inflationary factor.  

 Consistent with Federal law, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) complementary 
paratransit service is required for certain types of transit operations. For Project V 
funded services, paratransit services will be covered with Project V funds through 
the OCTA Board policy. Agencies receiving Project V funds may will be required to 
adopt a paratransit plan prior to starting operations. 

                                        
2 One year from the first day of operating the Project V funded service 
3 Fiscal year quarterly basis 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-7 
2018 Call for Projects 

Agency Match Requirements 

Local funds are required to provide a minimum 10% non-OCTA match for all Project V 
components. The match may be comprised of any combination of private contributions, 
advertising revenues, and local discretionary funds and farebox revenue. Farebox 
revenue cannot be used for capital match. The match may not be made up of in-kind 
services. Capital match funding commitments in excess of ten percent are eligible for 
additional points. The OCTA contribution for Operations and Maintenance will not exceed 
$9 per boarding, therefore actual match provided by the local agency may be greater 
than 10% depending on the ridership. Agency match commitments will be incorporated 
into the funding agreement. 

Eligibility Requirements 

Minimum eligibility and participation requirements must be considered before a project 
funding application should be submitted. Adherence to strict funding guidelines is 
required by the M2 Ordinance. Additional standards have been established to provide 
assurance that M2 funds are spent in the most prudent, effective manner. There is no 
guarantee that funding will be approved during a particular call for projects. If no 
acceptable project is identified during a funding cycle, a subsequent call for projects will 
be scheduled at an appropriate time. 

 Applicant must be eligible to receive M2 funding (established on an annual basis) 
to participate in this program. 

 Support recommendations from OC Transit Vision, OCTA Short Range Transit Plan, 
local transit planning efforts and goals of the Sustainable Communities Strategy. 

 Supplement rather than supplant existing transit services and emphasize service 
to areas not served by transit. 

 Demonstrate local share of operations and maintenance funding for specific time 
horizon. 

 Demonstration of cost reasonableness for new bus stop improvements. 
 Agency must have a financial plan outlining a funding strategy for ongoing 

operations and maintenance (maximum of five years). 
 Local agency will be required to enter into a cooperative funding agreement with 

OCTA. 
 All projects must include meeting ADA requirements, and these costs must be 

included in the project application. 
 Complete applications must be approved by the city council and partner 

jurisdictions prior to submittal to OCTA to demonstrate adequate community and 
elected official support for initial consideration 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-8 
2018 Call for Projects 

 Local agencies will be required to submit appropriate National Transit Database 
data to OCTA or local agency’s operator must submit directly to the National 
Transit Database. 

Application Process 

Project V allocations are determined through a competitive application process. Local 
agencies seeking funding must complete a formal application and provide supporting 
documentation that will be used to fully evaluate the project proposal. An application for 
any proposed service must include a detailed funding/operations plan.  

The project application for capital and operations and maintenance shall include, at a 
minimum, the following information: 

 Project need, goals and objectives 
 Project development and implementation schedule 
 Funding plan (funding needs, match funding availability, operations funding 

assurances, and public-private partnership arrangements) 
 Ongoing service and operations plan 
 Operations and maintenance facility management  
 Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant 
 Ridership Projection 
 Coordination with existing services such as OCTA transit services, existing Project 

V services, Metrolink, I-Shuttle, Anaheim Transportation Network and/or Senior 
Mobility Program 

The project application for planning for new projects shall include a scope of work for the 
proposed planning document requesting Project V funds. The scope must include project 
need and goals and objectives for the proposed or considered service. 

Complete project applications must be submitted by the established due date to be 
eligible for consideration. 

Applications will be reviewed by OCTA for consistency, accuracy, and concurrence. For 
applications completed in accordance with the program requirements, the projects will 
be scored, ranked and submitted to the Executive Committee, and the Board for 
consideration and funding approval. The process is expected to be concluded by June 30, 
2018. 

The final approved application (including funding plan) will serve as the basis for any 
funding agreement required under the program. The approved projects will be subject to 
the Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) Guidelines for project 
delivery requirements. 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-9 
2018 Call for Projects 

Application Guidelines 

Project selection is based upon merit utilizing a series of qualitative and quantitative 
criteria. Candidate projects are required to submit a financial plan with sufficient data to 
enable an adequate evaluation of the application. Each jurisdiction is provided broad 
latitude in formatting, content, and approach. However, key elements described below 
must be clearly and concisely presented to enable timely and accurate assessment of the 
project. 

Financial Details 

Each candidate project application must include all phases through construction of 
facilities. The financial plan will include, at a minimum, the following information: 

 Estimated project cost for each phase of development (planning, environmental, 
permitting, design, right-of-way acquisition, equipment and vehicle acquisition, 
construction, and project oversight) 

 Preliminary cost estimates for operations and maintenance should be coordinated 
with OCTA. 

 Funding request for each phase of project implementation with match funding 
amounts and funding sources clearly identified 

 Demonstrated financial commitments for match funding and ongoing operations 
 Discussion of contingency planning for revenue shortfalls 
 Revenue projections and methodology where commercial activity is expected to 

support implementation and/or operations costs 
 Project readiness status 
 Realistic project schedule for each project phase 

Scoring Criteria  

Specific scoring criteria will be used to evaluate the competitive program project 
applications. Emphasis is placed on projects with firm financial commitments and overall 
project readiness as shown in the Project V scoring criteria. In addition, projects will be 
evaluated based upon ridership projections, areas served, cost effectiveness and 
local/regional benefits. 

The formal application must include feasibility and efficacy components to demonstrate 
transportation benefit to ensure the selected project(s) meet the spirit and intent of M2.  

Merit will be demonstrated through technical attributes and industry standard 
methodologies. The following data will be included and fully discussed in the application: 

 Matching funds 

 Level of commitment from non-applicant partners 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-10 
2018 Call for Projects 

 Operating cost per boarding for initial season or first special event 

 Project readiness including initial operating period for seasonal services or special 
event readiness 

 Projected daily boardings with projection methodology fully presented 

 Community connections; connections to fixed route bus and rail 

 Projected annual visitors served by seasonal route 

 Community outreach 

 Agency experience 

Other Application Materials 

Supporting documentation will be required to fully consider each project application. In 
addition to the information described above, local agencies will be required to submit the 
following materials: 

Council Resolution: A council resolution authorizing request for funding consideration with 
a commitment of project match funding (local sources) and operating funds as shown in 
the funding plan. 

Lease/Cost Sharing Agreements: Copies of leases, sponsorship, and/or advertising 
revenue documents. Confidential agreements may be included for reference when 
accompanied by affidavit from city treasurer or finance director. 

Project Documentation: If the proposed project has completed initial planning activities 
(such as project study report or equivalent, environmental impact report, or design), 
evidence of approval should be included with the application. Satisfactory evidence 
includes project approval signature page, engineer-stamped site plan, or other summary 
information to demonstrate completion or planning phases. The applicant will be asked 
for detailed information only if necessary to adequately evaluate the project application. 

Operations Plan: In addition to the financial details indicated in this chapter, the 
operations plan submitted shall include the following technical data: a route map, draft 
time table, headways, stop location listing, summary of vehicle types and characteristics, 
speed profile, fleet size, and any other applicable supporting documentation. 

Reimbursements 

The planning, capital, and operations and maintenance (O&M) phases are administered 
on a reimbursement basis. Planning, capital, and O&M reimbursements will be disbursed 
upon review and approval of a complete expense report, performance report, and 
consistent with the cooperative funding agreement. OCTA operating subsidy will be no 
more than Nine Dollars ($9.00) per boarding or Ninety Percent (90%) of net operations 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-11 
2018 Call for Projects 

and maintenance costs, whichever is lower. Local agency matching commitment to OCTA 
for ongoing operating assistance will be in accordance with terms identified in the 
cooperative funding agreement.  

Funds must be utilized in the programmed FY. If there are FY project savings, a transfer 
of funds may be requested to a subsequent FY within the project. Agencies may only use 
savings as an aid for unanticipated cost overruns within the approved scope of work. A 
transfer request must be submitted in conjunction with the final reimbursement request, 
and formally submitted during the Semi-Annual Review. Transfers of savings will not be 
done retroactively, and overall project savings are returned to the program for use in 
subsequent calls for projects.  

Calculation of Payment 

OCTA operating subsidy will be no more than Nine Dollars ($9.00) per boarding OR  
Ninety Percent (90%) of net operations and maintenance costs, whichever is lower. 

Example: 

 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-12 
2018 Call for Projects 

Project Cancellation 

Projects deemed infeasible during the planning process will be cancelled and further 
expenditures will be prohibited except where necessitated to bring the current phase to 
a logical conclusion.  

For vehicles owned by local agencies that were funded through Project V, if the service 
is discontinued, agencies shall repay OCTA for vehicles at the same percentage of the 
sale price, or estimated value based on straight line depreciation of asset consistent with 
the Project V percentage of the initial purchase.  

Cancelled projects will be eligible for re-application upon resolution of issues that led to 
original project termination. 

Audits 

All M2 payments are subject to audit. Local agencies must follow established accounting 
requirements and applicable laws regarding the use of public funds. Failure to submit to 
an audit in a timely manner may result in loss of future funding. Misuse or 
misrepresentation of M2 funding will require remediation which may include repayment, 
reduction in overall allocation, and/or other sanctions to be determined. Audits shall be 
conducted by the OCTA Internal Audit Department or other authorized agent either 
through the normal annual process or on a schedule to be determined by the OCTA Board. 

 

 

 

  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-13 
2018 Call for Projects 

Exhibit 6-1 

Point Breakdown & Application Checklist for Community-Based Transit/Circulators 
(Project V)

 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 6-14 
2018 Call for Projects 

Exhibit 6-2 

Sample Resolution for Community-Based Transit/Circulators (Project V) 
RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE (GOVERNING BODY) OF THE (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF 
THE (PROJECT NAME) APPLICATION TO THE ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY FOR FUNDING 

UNDER THE PROJECT V COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSIT/CIRCULATORS PROGRAM 

 WHEREAS, the Community-Based Transit/Circulators program (Project V) establishes a competitive process to 
enable local jurisdictions to develop community-based local transit services that complement regional transit services, 
and meets needs in areas not adequately serviced by regional transit.  

 WHEREAS, OCTA intends to allocate Project V funds within the incorporated cities and the County; and 

 WHEREAS, OCTA has established the procedures and criteria for reviewing applications as identified in the 
Project V Guidelines; and 

 WHEREAS, by formal action the (GOVERNING BODY) authorizes the nomination of (PROJECT NAME), including 
all understanding and assurances contained therein. 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) has been declared by the Orange County Transportation Authority 
(OCTA) to meet the eligibility requirements to receive revenues as part of Measure M2; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) must include all projects funded by Net Revenues in the seven-
year Capital Improvement Program as part of the Renewed Measure M Ordinance eligibility requirement; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) authorizes a formal amendment to the seven-year Capital 
Improvement Program to add projects approved for funding upon approval from the OCTA Board of Directors; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY’s) Circulation Element is consistent with the County of Orange Master 
Plan of Arterial Highways; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) will comply where applicable with provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, and any other federal, state, and/or local laws, rules and/or regulations; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) will consult with OCTA regarding the need for a paratransit plan 
prior to starting operations; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) will provide matching funds for the project as required by the 
Project V Guidelines and shall fund its share of the project costs and any additional costs over the identified programmed 
amount; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) will not use Measure M funds to supplant Developer Fees or other 
commitments; and 

 WHEREAS, the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) will give OCTA's representatives access to and the right to examine 
all records, books, papers or documents related to the Project; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  

The (GOVERNING BODY) hereby requests that the OCTA allocate Project V funds in the amounts specified in the 
(ADMINISTERING AGENCY’s) application to said (ADMINISTERING AGENCY). Said funds shall be matched by funds from 
the (ADMINISTERING AGENCY) as required and shall be used as supplemental funding to aid the (ADMINISTERING 
AGENCY) in the implementation of the proposed transit service.  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS [Insert Day] day of [Insert Month], [Insert Year]. 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ix 
2018 Call for Projects 

IV. Precepts 

The OCTA Board of Directors (Board) approved these guidelines on March 22, 2010. 
The guidelines subsequently have been amended and approved by the Board as 
needed. The purpose is to provide procedures that assist in the administration of the 
CTFP under M2 where other superseding documents lack specificity. OCTA, or an agent 
acting on the authority’s behalf, shall enforce these guidelines. 

1. All eligible Orange County cities and the County of Orange may participate in the 
M2 competitive programs and federal funding programs included in the CTFP. Other 
agencies (e.g. Department of Transportation or local jurisdiction) may participate on 
a project, however, one local agency shall be designated as the implementing 
agency, shall be responsible for all funding requirements associated with the project, 
and shall be the recipient of funds through the program. 

2. To participate in the CTFP, OCTA must declare that an agency is eligible to receive 
M2 Net Revenues which include local fair share distributions. Failure to meet 
minimum eligibility requirements after programming of funds will result in deferral 
or cancellation of funding. 

3. The lead agency must execute a Master Funding Agreement with the OCTA. OCTA 
and lead agencies will periodically amend the agreement via letter to reflect funding 
changes through competitive calls for projects. 

4. A separate cooperative funding agreement will be issued for any OCTA-led Regional 
Traffic Signal Synchronization Program projects. 

5. An agency must have a fully executed letter agreement prior to the obligation of 
funds. Local agencies may be granted pre-award authority for M2 funded projects. 
Local agencies, at their own risk, may use this pre-award authority to obligate funds 
for an M2 funded project prior to the programmed year. Reimbursement 
Expenditures prior to the will be available in the Board approved programmed year 
will not be eligible for reimbursement (see Chapter 10). 

6. For transit programs not covered by the letter agreement process (e.g. Projects S, 
V and W), pre-award authority is granted upon Board approval of the funding grant. 
See precept 5 above for pre-award authority provisions.  

7. Local agencies shall scope projects, prepare estimates, and conduct design in 
cooperation with and in accordance with the standards and procedures required by 
the local agencies involved with the project (e.g., Caltrans, County, state/federal 
resource agencies). 

8. Local agencies should select consultants based upon established contract 
management and applicable public contracting practices, with qualification based 
selection for architectural/engineering (A/E) services, and competitive bidding 



PROJECT V 
2018 Call for Projects Application & Scoring Criteria 

 

Updated: 12/20/2017 Page 1 of 4 

APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
Application materials should be submitted in the order they are listed below. Refer to the CTFP Guidelines for 
more detailed application requirements. Points shown are the maximum points given per category.   
Completed Application ☐ 

Board/Council Resolution (Draft Permitted Initially) ☐ 

Scoring Criteria – 100 Points Total  

Financial Commitment (15 Points) ☐ 

 Capital Match Rate ☐ 

Cost Effectiveness (15 Points) ☐ 

 Estimated Operating Cost per Revenue Vehicle Hour ☐ 

 Lease/Cost Estimates & Project Backup Documentation ☐ 

Project Readiness (15 Points) ☐ 

 Project Implementation Schedule ☐ 

 Planning and Environmental Documentation ☐ 

Operations Plan (20 Points) ☐ 

 Route Map w/ Existing Transit Service ☐ 

 Draft Time Table & Headways ☐ 

 Stop Locations Identified ☐ 

 Average Service Speed by Time Period ☐ 

 Fleet Size & Summary of Vehicle Types ☐ 

 Maintenance Facilities Available & Service Plan Developed ☐ 

Ridership Projection (5 Points) ☐ 

 Agree to Collect & Submit O&M Data Quarterly ☐ 

 Projected Average Daily Boardings (Opening Year) ☐ 

Funding Plan (10 Points) ☐ 

 Specific Funding Needs (Per year and per phase) ☐ 

 Funding Assurances ☐ 

 Partnership Arrangements ☐ 

 Service Coordination Plan ☐ 

Agency Experience (10 Points) ☐ 

Community Benefit (10 Points) ☐ 

 Community/Activity Centers/Tourist Attractions Served by Project ☐ 

 Documented Community Support (Surveys, outreach, etc.) ☐ 

 Fixed-Route Bus/Rail Connections ☐ 

sclifton
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT D



PROJECT V 
2018 Call for Projects Application & Scoring Criteria 

 

Updated: 12/20/2017 Page 2 of 4 

APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 
Local Agencies applying for Project V funds are required to complete and submit this application. Application 
materials must be included in the order in which they are listed on the Application Checklist. Any projects not in 
compliance with the CTFP Guidelines will not be eligible for funding.  

 
 
 

Applicant Information 

Agency: Click here to enter text. 

Project Manager: Click here to enter text. 

Title / Department: Click here to enter text.  

Phone: Click here to enter text. 

Email: Click here to enter text. 

Project Title: Click here to enter text. 

Project Description 
Click here to enter text. 
 

 

Proposed Funding Summary 

Total Project Cost:  Click here to enter text. Capital Match Rate: Click here to enter text. 

Capital Funding:  Click here to enter text. Level of Commitment: Choose an item. 

Operating Reserve:  Click here to enter text. Non-Applicants: Click here to enter text. 

Proposed Funding Breakdown 
Include anticipated expenditures (i.e. Bus stops, staff time, marketing, etc.) 

Capital Operations 
Expenditure Anticipated Cost Expenditure Anticipated Cost 

Click to add $ Click to add Click to add $ Click to add 
Click to add $ Click to add Click to add $ Click to add 
Click to add $ Click to add Click to add $ Click to add 
Click to add $ Click to add Click to add $ Click to add 

 



PROJECT V 
2018 Call for Projects Application & Scoring Criteria 

 

Updated: 12/20/2017 Page 3 of 4 

Describe Source of Agency Funds:  

Click here to enter text. 

Cost Effectiveness 

Operating Cost per Boarding Opening Year: Click here to enter text. 

Annualized Operating & Capital Cost per 
Passenger: 

Click here to enter text. 

Project Readiness 

Opening Year:  Select Fiscal Year 

Phase Ready: Click here to enter text. 

Special Event Transit (If Applicable) (Add additional pages if needed) 

Event Name Date Time Location 

Click here to enter text. Select date. Click here to 
enter text. Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. Select date. Click here to 
enter text. Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. Select date. Click here to 
enter text. Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. Select date. Click here to 
enter text. Click here to enter text. 

Minimum Eligibility  

 YES NO 

A Applicant is eligible to receive M2 funding: ☐ ☐ 

B Supplement rather than supplant existing transit services: ☐ ☐ 

C Projects meet ADA requirements: ☐ ☐ 

D Financial plan for ongoing operations & maintenance: ☐ ☐ 

E Project approved by Board/Council and partner jurisdictions: ☐ ☐ 

F Local funding meets minimum 10% match requirement: ☐ ☐ 

 
 
 
 



PROJECT V 
2018 Call for Projects Application & Scoring Criteria 

 

Updated: 12/20/2017 Page 4 of 4 

Transit Usage (Provide rationale with application materials) 
Projected Average Daily Boardings 1st Year: 

Total Annual Boardings 
Annual Operating Days 

Click here to enter text. 

Fixed-Route Bus/Rail Connections 

Number of fixed-route connections (w/in 1/4 
mile): 

Click here to enter text. 

Community Connections (Add additional pages if needed) 

Community/Activity Centers/Tourist Attractions 
Served: 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

Agency Experience (Add additional pages if needed) 

Previously Operated 
Service  
(List All Applicable) 

Service Description (Include service length) 

Service Description (Include service length) 

Service Description (Include service length) 

Has a feasibility study been completed for the proposed service? If so, please 
attach the study to the application packet. Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Applicant is requesting Pre-Award Authority (See page 6-3 of the Guidelines 
for pre-award authority provisions): Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Additional Comments 
Click here to enter text. 

 
I hereby certify that the information provided herein this form is accurate and consistent with accompanying 
documentation.  I further certify that the above information has been approved by Council resolution and that 
awarded funds will not be used outside of their intended purpose.         
                
               
        
 
Click here to enter text.   
Name (Print)  Signature Date 

 



 
 

Information  
Items 

 



 

 COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

 
 Orange County Transportation Authority 
 550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 11, 2017 
 

 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 
  
From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 

  
Subject: Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 

Review - September 2017 
 

 
Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of December 4, 2017 

 

             Present: Directors Do, Delgleize, Donchak, M. Murphy, and Nelson 
            Absent:  Directors Spitzer and Steel 
 

 
Committee Vote 
 
This item was passed by the Members present. 
 
  
Committee Recommendation 

 
Approve adjustments to the Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
projects and Local Fair Share funds. 
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 4, 2017 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 

Review – September 2017   
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority recently completed the  
semi-annual review of projects funded through the Comprehensive 
Transportation Funding Programs. This process reviews the status of  
Measure M2 grant-funded projects and provides an opportunity for local 
agencies to update project information and request project modifications. 
Recommended project adjustments are presented for review and approval. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve adjustments to the Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
projects and Local Fair Share funds. 
 
Background 
 
The Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) is the 
mechanism the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) uses to 
administer funding for street, road, signal, transit, and water quality projects.  
The CTFP contains a variety of funding programs and sources including  
Measure M2 (M2) revenues and State-Local Partnership Program (SLPP) funds. 
The CTFP provides local agencies with a comprehensive set of guidelines for 
administration and delivery of various transportation funding grants.  
 
As needed, OCTA staff meets with representatives from local agencies to review 
the status of projects and proposed changes. This process is commonly referred 
to as the semi-annual review. The goals of the semi-annual review process are 
to review project status, determine the continued viability of projects, address 
local agency concerns, confirm the availability of local match funds, and ensure 
timely closeout of all projects funded under the CTFP.   
 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review – September 2017 

Page 2 
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
The September 2017 semi-annual review adjustments are itemized in 
Attachment A, and described in Attachment B. The adjustments include one 
advance, eight timely use of funds extension requests for CTFP projects, one 
timely use of funds extension request for local fair share funds, and 14 scope 
changes. 
 
OCTA staff has identified several reasons for project schedule delays and 
requested scope changes, which include delays in equipment delivery, longer 
than normal wait times for permits, coordination required with stakeholders and 
other agencies, overlap from other projects, and reevaluation of locations due to 
technology and costs.  
 
Since the start of M2, OCTA has awarded $404.7 million in competitive funds for 
the following programs: 
  
• M2 Regional Capacity Program (Project O) 
• Traffic Signal Synchronization Program (Project P) 
• Environmental Cleanup Program (Project X)  
• Community-Based Transit Circulators (Project V) 
• Safe Transit Stops (Project W) 
 
Below is a summary of the CTFP allocations using M2 funds, comparing the last 
semi-annual review changes with the proposed changes in the September 2017 
semi-annual review. This update reflects the addition of projects approved by the 
Board of Directors (Board) in April 2017 as part of the M2 CTFP call for projects. 
As of September 2017, 84.6 percent of projects have been initiated or are in 
some stage of completion. Local agencies started 26 project phases and closed 
out 42 project phases between March 2017 and September 2017.  
 

M2 CTFP Summary 

 
Project 
Status 

March 2017 September 2017 

Project 
Phases 

Allocations Project 
Phases 

Allocations1 
(after adjustments) 

Planned2 101 $85.4 89 $67.4 

Started3 170        $156.0 184           $197.8 

Pending4 75 $46.5 67 $21.8 

Completed5 196 $81.7 238 $117.7 

Total 
Allocations 

542 $369.6 578 $404.7 

1. Allocations in millions, pending Board approval of the September 2017 semi-annual review.  
2. Planned - indicates that funds have not been obligated and/or are pending contract award. 
3. Started - indicates that the project is underway and funds are obligated. 
4. Pending - indicates that the project work is completed and the final report submittal/approval is pending. 
5. Completed - indicates that the project work is complete, final report approved, and final payment has been made. 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Semi-Annual 
Review – September 2017 

Page 3 
 

 

 

Summary 
 
OCTA has recently reviewed the status of grant-funded streets and roads 
projects funded through the CTFP. Staff recommends approval of the project 
adjustments requested by local agencies including one advance, eight timely 
use of funds extension requests for CTFP projects, one timely use of funds 
extension request for local fair share funds, and 14 scope changes. The next 
semi-annual review is currently scheduled for March 2018. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, September 2017 

Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests 
B. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs, September 2017 

Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Christina Moore  Kia Mortazavi 
Transportation Funding Analyst 
(714) 560-5452 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests

Agency Project Number Project Project Title Phase
Current 

FY
 Current 

Allocation 
 Proposed 

FY 
Proposed 
Allocation 

Irvine  16-IRVN-ACE-3806  O
University Drive Widening (MacArthur 
Boulevard to Campus Drive)  

C 2018-19 $4,104,971 2017-18  $  4,016,606 

 $  4,016,606 
Acronyms
FY - Fiscal year
Project O - Regional Capacity Program
C - Construction

Advances (1) - Total Phase Allocations 

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T A

Advances Request(s)

1



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests

Agency Project Number Project Project Title Phase Current FY
 Current 

Allocation 

Proposed 
Time 

Extension

Proposed                            
Expenditure 

Deadline

County of Orange 14-ORCO-ECP-3740 X
Stormwater Runoff Quality and Quantity Control 
Best Management Practices

C 2014-15 1,072,049$      24 Months 19-Jun-20

Irvine 13-IRVN-TSP-3661 P Alton Parkway Signal Synchronization O&M 2014-15 116,640$         12 Months 12-May-19

Irvine 13-IRVN-TSP-3662 P Barranca Parkway Signal Synchronization O&M 2014-15 114,048$         12 Months 12-May-19

Laguna Woods 14-LWDS-TSP-3707 P
El Toro Road Regional Traffic Signal 
Synchronization

O&M 2015-16 28,800$           24 Months 1-Jun-20

Laguna Woods 14-LWDS-TSP-3708  P
Moulton Parkway Regional Traffic Signal 
Synchronization

O&M 2015-16 71,040$           24 Months 1-Jun-20

Newport Beach 14-NBCH-ECP-3735 X
Corona Del Mar Water Quality Improvement and 
Litter Removal Project

C 2014-15 250,000$         24 Months 27-Jan-20

Newport Beach 14-NBCH-ECP-3737 X Bayview Heights Restoration/Mitigation Project C 2014-15 305,000$         24 Months 12-May-20

Santa Ana 14-SNTA-ECP-3751 X
Residential South Catch Basin Connector Pipe 
Screen Project

C 2014-15 200,000$         24 Months 19-May-20

 $      2,157,577 
Acronyms

CTFP -Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs C - Construction

FY - Fiscal year Project P - Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 

Project X - Environmental Cleanup Program O&M - Operations and Maintenance

CTFP Timely-Use of Funds Extensions (8) - Total Phase Allocations

Timely-Use of Funds Extension Requests - CTFP

2



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests

Agency Project Number Project Project Title Phase Current FY
 Proposed 
Allocation 
Extension  

Proposed Time 
Extension                      

Yorba Linda N/A Q N/A N/A FY 2014-15  $         479,809 24 Months

 $         479,809 
Acronyms

FY - Fiscal year

N/A - Not Applicable 

Project Q - Local Fair Share Program

Local Fair Share-Timely Use of Funds Extensions (1) -  Total Phase Allocations 

Timely-Use of Funds Extension Request(s) - Local Fair Share

3



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Requests

Agency Project Number Project Project Title Phase
Current 

FY
 Current 

Allocation 

Anaheim 11-ANAH-TSP-3545  P
Lincoln Avenue Signal Synchronization 
(Knott Avenue to Imperial Highway)

I 2011-12  $         702,328 

Anaheim 14-ANAH-TSP-3701 P Anaheim Boulevard Traffic Signal Synchronization I 2014-15  $         696,860 

Brea 11-BREA-FST-3509  O State Route 57-Lambert Road Interchange E 2011-12  $         927,000 

Brea 16-BREA-ECP-3846 X Citywide Catch Basin Inserts Project 7524 - Phase 6 C 2016-17  $         197,885 

Buena Park 16-BPRK-ECP-3849 X
City of Buena Park G2 Full Capture Catch Basin Insert 
Project

C 2016-17  $         200,000 

Cypress 14-CYPR-ECP-3731 X Priority Sediment-Pollution Removal Project C 2014-15  $         211,840 

Cypress 15-CYPR-ECP-3799 X
Automatic Retractable Screen Installation Priority Project 
No. 2

C 2015-16  $         200,000 

Fullerton 14-FULL-ECP-3745 X Catch Basin Debris Screens C 2014-15  $         200,000 

Garden Grove 15-GGRV-ECP-3762 X
Magnolia Street Irrigation Retrofit and Bio Clean Curb 
Inlet Filters

C 2015-16  $         200,000 

Huntington Beach 16-HBCH-ECP-3852  X
Huntington Harbour Marina Trash Skimmers Trash 
Removal 

C 2016-17  $           73,118 

Irvine 16-IRVN-TSP-3791 P
Irvine Center Drive-Edinger Avenue Regional Traffic 
Signal Synchronization Project

I 2016-17  $      1,714,560 

Mission Viejo 17-MVJO-TSP-3876 P
Olympia Road - Felipe Road Traffic Signal 
Synchronization

I 2017-18  $         486,280 

Santa Ana 14-SNTA-TSP-3710 P Harbor Boulevard Corridor Signal Synchronization I 2014-15  $      1,769,520 

Seal Beach 13-SBCH-TSP-3673 P Seal Beach TMC Relocation and Fiber Optic Bridge Gap I 2013-14  $         500,320 

 $      8,079,711 
Acronyms

FY - Fiscal Year E - Engineering

Project P - Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Project X - Environmental Cleanup Program

C - Construction

O - Regional Capacity Program TMC - Traffic Management Center 

Scope Changes (14) - Total Phase Allocations

I - Primary Implementation

Scope Change Requests

4



ATTACHMENT B 
 

 
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 

September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 
 

1 
 

 
Advance  
 
The City of Irvine (Irvine) is requesting to advance construction funds for the University 
Drive Widening Project (16-IRVN-ACE-3806) from fiscal year (FY) 2018-19 to  
FY 2017-18. The anticipated completion date for the engineering and right-of-way phases 
is October 2017, with construction estimated to begin in January 2018. Therefore, Irvine 
requests that the construction funds be advanced to FY 2017-18 to allow for an efficient 
transition of project phases. 
 
Timely-Use of Funds Extensions 
 
Once obligated, the Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) funds 
expire 36 months from the contract award date.  Per the CTFP Guidelines, local agencies  
may request a one-time extension of up to 24-months per project grant through the  
semi-annual review process. During this semi-annual review, eight timely-use of funds 
extension requests were submitted for CTFP projects. 
 
The County of Orange is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds extension for the 
construction phase of the Stormwater Runoff Quality and Quantity Control Best 
Management Practices (Irvine Regional) Project (14-ORCO-ECP-3740) from June 2018 
to June 2020. Reevaluation of the hydrology to include Santiago Hills became necessary, 
as it was not included in the original hydrology analysis from 2013. In addition, OC Parks 
had to hire a different Architect-Engineer firm to complete the drainage improvement 
design resulting in a delay of the design phase. The additional time will ensure the design, 
construction, and all construction closeout items are completed before the grant expires. 

The City of Irvine is requesting a 12-month timely use of funds extensions from May 2018 
to May 2019 for the following two project phases: 

 The Operation and Maintenance (O&M) phase of the Alton Parkway TSSP (TSSP) 
(13-IRVN-TSP-3661),  
 

 The O&M phase of the Barranca Parkway TSSP (13-IRVN-TSP-3662).  

Scheduled completion is anticipated for February 2019. The 12-month timely use of funds 
extension will allow the projects to maximize usage of funds and ensure project 
completion. 

  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

 

2 
 

 
The City of Laguna Woods (Laguna Woods) is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds 
extensions for the following two project phases from June 2018 to June 2020: 

 The O&M phase of the El Toro Road Regional TSSP (14-LWDS-TSP-3707),  
 

 The O&M phase of the Moulton Parkway Regional TSSP (14-LWDS-TSP-3708).  
 

Laguna Woods plans to begin the O&M phase January 2018. The implementation phase 
of this project was split between engineering and construction and resulted in a schedule 
delay. In addition, the contractor has been experiencing delays in equipment delivery. 

The City of Newport Beach (Newport Beach) is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds 
extensions for the following two project phases: 

 The construction phase of the Bayview Heights Restoration/Mitigation Project 
(14-NBCH-ECP-3737) from May 2018 to May 2020. The project has been 
lengthened due to a delay in obtaining Coastal Commission Approval and a 
Coastal Development Permit. Newport Beach began the application process in  
fall 2015, and has recently acquired the permits and now can proceed with the bid. 
 

 The construction phase of the Corona Del Mar Water Quality Improvement and 
Litter Removal Project (14-NBCH-ECP-3735) from January 2018 to January 2020. 
This project has been lengthened due to a delay in obtaining Coastal Commission 
Approval and a Coastal Development Permit. Newport Beach began the 
application process in fall 2015 and has not received approval but anticipates to 
receive it early 2018. 

The City of Santa Ana (Santa Ana) is requesting a 24-month timely use of funds extension 
for the construction phase of the Residential South Catch Basin Screen Connector Pipe 
Screen (CPS) Project (14-SNTA-ECP-3751) from May 2018 to May 2020. A delay in 
receiving required paperwork from local municipalities has affected the finalization of local 
regulations. Additional time would allow Santa Ana to draft local regulations and address 
important questions regarding statewide trash provisions and optimal placement of CPS 
units.  

Local Fair Share (LFS) Timely-Use of Funds Extensions 

The City of Yorba Linda (Yorba Linda) received $933,270 of LFS funds in FY 2014-15. 
Yorba Linda is requesting a one-time 24-month timely-use of funds extension on 
$479,809. The total funds being considered for extension, $479,809, were disbursed in 
three separate installments: $148,237 disbursed on November 18, 2014, and must be 
expended by November 18, 2019; $176,188 disbursed on January 13, 2015, and must 
be expended by January 13, 2020; and $155,384 disbursed on March 17, 2015, and must 
be expended by March 17, 2020. The extension will provide Yorba Linda the ability to 
expend the funds on specific projects beyond the initial expenditures deadline.   



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

 

3 
 

 
Scope Change 
 
The City of Anaheim (Anaheim) is requesting a change in scope of work for the 
following two project phases: 

 Lincoln Avenue TSSP (11-ANAH-TSP-3545). This request is the result of needed 
repairs and modifications to traffic signal infrastructure critical to the 
implementation of signal communications. The repairs and modifications affect two 
segments: Lincoln Avenue between Knott Avenue to Magnolia Street, and  
Nohl Ranch Road between Imperial Highway and Nohl Canyon Road.  In lieu of 
implementing 46 controllers, Anaheim will implement 33 controllers and utilize cost 
savings to make the repairs above. Anaheim will subsequently implement  
13 controllers from its inventory to fulfil project intent.  
 

 Anaheim Boulevard TSSP (14-ANAH-TSP-3701). The request is to include 
technologies such as signal phasing and signal timing data. The revisions will allow 
Anaheim to test connected vehicles technologies along Anaheim Boulevard to 
ascertain its viability and applicability in the context of improving mobility and 
reducing emissions. 

The City of Brea (Brea) is requesting a change in scope of work for the following two 
project phases: 

 State Route 57 (SR-57) and Lambert Interchange Improvements Project  
(11-BREA-FST-3509). Due to funding constraints and in consultation and 
concurrence with California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Brea has 
decided to implement the proposed project in four phases. The overall design for 
all four phases is developed up to 65 percent completion. Phases one through 
three cover the original project scope for the engineering phase in the original 
application. Brea has expended sufficient funds for phase one to allow for full 
reimbursement and have exceeded their matching obligation.  Splitting the phases 
will allow for reimbursement of phase one with Measure M2 funding allocation, 
while phases two and three will utilize local funds. Phase four is for improvements 
on the SR-57 mainline which falls beyond the original project scope of Brea’s grant 
application. Brea will apply for additional grant funding to proceed with this phase. 
 

 Citywide Catch Basin Inserts Project 7524 – Phase 6 (16-BREA-ECP-3846). The 
original scope of work proposed to install 120 catch basin inserts. During the 
construction process, it was discovered that five of the identified installation 
locations had catch basins installed under other projects by Brea. By reducing the 
total number of inserts from 120 to 115, Brea is able to invest the savings in larger 
catch basins utilizing the full extent of the grant funding awarded. The waterways 
and pollutants originally identified in the project application remain the same and 
no change in the allocation amount is recommended. 

  



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

 

4 
 

 
The City of Buena Park requests a scope change to the City of Buena Park Full Capture 
Catch Basin Insert Project (16-BPRK-ECP-3849). Unforeseen conditions have created 
shortages in funding needed to complete the 304 proposed locations. The amount of 
catch basins equipped with screens was projected to be 304; however, that number fell 
to 269 after some catch basins were found to be unsuitable for installation. Other 
conditions in the field caused average screen costs to be higher than expected due to 
variations in connector piping sizes and curb-front grate sizes. The waterways and 
pollutants originally identified in the project application remain the same, and no additional 
funding is being requested as part of the scope change. 
 

The City of Cypress (Cypress) is requesting a change in scope of work for the following 
two project phases: 

 Priority Sediment/Pollution Removal Project (14-CYPR-ECP-3731). The original 
project identified construction of a vegetated swale and installation of  
19 bio-filtration devices. The construction of the vegetated swale has been 
completed; however, installation of bio-filtration devices is on hold pending utility 
conflicts. Some bio-filtration locations would require the relocation of a Southern 
California Edison transmission and distribution line. Other installations would 
require extensive relocation of Southern California Gas, AT&T, and Golden Gate 
Water facilities. This would not only be costly, but would also result in service 
outages in Cypress and neighboring areas. Therefore, Cypress requests a 
reduction in bio-filtration devices from 19 to 11 devices. The grant amount will be 
proportionally reduced based on actual construction expenditures. 
 

 Automatic Retractable Screen Installation Priority Project No 2 (15-CYPR-ECP-3799). 
Cypress requests a scope change from the original 145 devices to 123 devices. 
123 devices were successfully installed, however, due to existing physical 
constraints, 22 locations were deemed unsuitable for the devices. Cost savings 
will be proportionally shared between OCTA and Cypress. 

The City of Fullerton (Fullerton) is requesting a scope change to the Catch Basin Debris 
Screens Project (14-FULL-ECP-3745). Fullerton requests a scope change for the project, 
which would reduce the number of basins retrofitted from 204 to 118. Fullerton originally 
proposed for the installation of up to 204 catch basins in the application. However, the 
estimate received for actual installation of all 204 significantly exceeded the grant amount. 
Fullerton agreed with the vendor to install 118 catch basins to utilize the full grant.  

The City of Garden Grove (Garden Grove) is requesting a scope change to the Magnolia 
Street Irrigation Retrofit and Bio Clean Curb Inlet Filters Project (15-GGRV-ECP-3762). 
Garden Grove originally proposed the installation of five solar power irrigation controllers. 
However, due to functional issues with these controllers, Garden Grove chose to use 
three Calsense irrigation controllers as an alternative more feasible and water effective 
treatment for future operation and maintenance costs. This in turn produced a decreased 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

 

5 
 

need in quantities for backflow devices and water service meters from five to three. This 
revised scope would not lead to an increase or change in the funding allocations 

The City of Huntington Beach (Huntington Beach) is requesting a scope change  
to the Huntington Harbour Marina Trash Skimmers Trash Removal Project  
(16-HBCH-ECP-3852). Huntington Beach requests a change to the installation location 
of two marina trash skimmers. In the original application, seven sites were identified. Due 
to unforeseen circumstances, two of Huntington Beach’s Home Owners Association 
partners no longer wish to participate in the project. As a result, two additional locations 
for the marina trash skimmers have been identified, which will provide the same efficiency 
to the project at no additional cost.  

The City of Irvine, acting as administrative lead agency for Tustin, requests a scope 
change to the Irvine Center Drive/Edinger Avenue Regional TSSP (16-IRVN-TSP-3791). 
The scope change is primarily comprised of the following two modifications: changing the 
locations of video detection hardware installation along Irvine Center Drive at four project 
intersections, and rerouting the traffic signal interconnect conduit and copper hardwire 
from Edinger Avenue to connect to Tustin City Hall. These revisions would require 
approximately 4,300 feet of new two inch conduit and 14,000 feet of new fiber optic cable. 
Additionally, #6 and 6E pull boxes, new Frequency Shift Keying (FSK) telemetry modules, 
and new four-port Ethernet over copper switches will be installed. Depending on funding 
availability, additional FSK telemetry modules and a wireless radio link would be 
beneficial for improved traffic operations along the project corridor. 

The City of Mission Viejo (Mission Viejo) requests a scope change for Olympiad Road – 
Felipe Road TSSP (17-MVJO-TSP-3876). Mission Viejo staff has recently been awarded 
grant funds as part of the Caltrans Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), which 
calls for the construction of countdown pedestrian signal head modules at signalized 
intersection locations, which do not have countdown modules. Since the HSIP grant will 
construct traffic signal system improvements identical to those supplied by  
17-MVJO-TSP-3710, staff would like to modify the scope of work and allocate the 
programmed funds to construct accessible pedestrian safety push button systems at two 
different intersection locations and to install one new traffic signal cabinet at one 
intersection.  

The City of Santa Ana, as administrative lead for the cities of Garden Grove,  
Fountain Valley, Costa Mesa, and for Caltrans, is requesting a scope change for the 
Harbor Boulevard Corridor TSSP (14-SNTA-TSP-3710). The scope changes were 
identified during the design and construction phase and were deemed beneficial to the 
overall intent of the project. Changes include installation of an additional 500 feet of fiber 
optic cable, two additional ethernet communication switches, one additional wireless 
radio, and an additional conductor signal cable. Additional changes include the install 
relocation of one audible pedestrian system, utilization of an existing uninterruptible 
power supply system at four intersections in Costa Mesa, in lieu of complete equipment 
change out, and the removal of proposed improvements at two Caltrans Interstate 405 
ramps. 



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 
September 2017 Semi-Annual Review Adjustment Request Descriptions 

 

6 
 

 
The City of Seal Beach (Seal Beach) is requesting a scope change to Seal Beach  
Traffic Management Center Relocation and Fiber Optic Bridge Gap Project  
(13-SBCH-TSP-3673). The original grant application proposed the upgrade of 13 traffic 
signal controllers along Seal Beach Boulevard. Field investigations determined that two 
of the locations already featured upgraded equipment or were already equipped to 
communicate through ethernet protocol. Seal Beach requests to eliminate traffic signal 
upgrades at those two locations and in replacement install three Closed Circuit Television 
camera systems. The approved budget is sufficient to accommodate the changes and no 
additional funds will be required.   



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
December 11, 2017 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of              
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Executive Committee Meeting of December 4, 2017 
 
Present: Chairman Hennessey, Vice Chair Bartlett, and Directors Do, 

Donchak, Murray, Nelson, and Shaw 
Absent: None 
 
 
Committee Vote 

This item was passed by the Members present. 
 
 
Committee Recommendation 

  

Receive and file as an information item. 
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 4, 2017 
 
 
To: Executive Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of July 2017 

Through September 2017  
 
 
Overview 
 
Staff has prepared a Measure M2 quarterly progress report for the period of  
July 2017 through September 2017, for review by the Orange County 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors.  This report highlights progress on 
Measure M2 projects and programs and will be available to the public via the 
Orange County Transportation Authority website.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item.   
 
Background 
 
On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters, by a margin of 69.7 percent,  
approved the Renewed Measure M Transportation Investment Plan (Plan) for 
the Measure M2 (M2) one half-cent sales tax for transportation improvements.   
The Plan provides a 30-year revenue stream for a broad range of transportation 
and environmental improvements, as well as a governing ordinance which 
defines all the requirements for implementing the Plan.  Ordinance No. 3 
designates the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) as responsible 
for administering the Plan and ensuring that OCTA’s contract with the voters is 
followed.   
 
OCTA is committed to fulfilling the promises made in M2.  This means not only 
completing the projects described in the Plan, but adhering to numerous specific 
requirements and high standards of quality, accountability, and transparency 
called for in the measure, as identified in the ordinance.  Ordinance No. 3 
requires that quarterly status reports regarding the major projects detailed in 
the Plan be brought to the OCTA Board of Directors (Board).  All M2 progress 
reports are posted online for public review.   



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Page 2 
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
This quarterly report reflects current activities and progress across all  
M2 programs for the period of July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017 
(Attachment A).   
 
The quarterly report is designed to be easy to navigate and public friendly, 
reflecting OCTA’s Strategic Plan transparency goals. The report includes budget 
and schedule information provided from the Capital Action Plan, and Local Fair 
Share and Senior Mobility Program payments made to cities during the quarter, 
as well as total distributions from M2 inception through September 2017.   
 
Additionally, Attachment A includes a summary of the Program Management 
Office activities that have taken place during the quarter. Two areas in particular 
are highlighted below.   
 
Next 10 Delivery Plan   
 
Last November, the Board adopted the Next 10 Delivery Plan (Next 10 Plan), 
providing guidance to staff on delivery of M2 projects and programs between 
2017 and 2026. The Next 10 Plan was based on the 2016 sales tax revenue 
forecast of $14.2 billion.  On September 11, 2017, the Board received the 
updated 2017 sales tax revenue forecast which was $700 million less at  
$13.5 billion. During the quarter, staff reviewed and revised all project and 
program costs and schedules based on the revised revenue projections. Staff 
incorporated this information into the Next 10 Plan and prepared an updated 
Next 10 Plan to present to the Board on November 13, 2017. 
 
Future Outlook  
 
Also, as part of the Next 10 Plan adoption in 2016, the Board directed staff to 
conduct a market analysis to analyze current resource demands and provide 
information on the impact on OCTA’s delivery of M2 projects. The results of the 
analysis were presented to the Board in September 2017. Overall, the 
consultant’s analysis identified a strong potential that during the Next 10 delivery 
years, OCTA will experience an increasing-cost environment. This, coupled with 
a reduction in revenue, could present the potential for significant challenges in 
the delivery of M2 and the Next 10 delivery plan.  
 
  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Page 3 
 

 

 

The consultant’s recommendations include a consistent message that OCTA 
should continue to accelerate projects to the fullest extent possible.   
Additionally, it was recommended that OCTA keep a close watch on identified 
economic triggers to respond to changes as needed.  With acceleration already 
built into the Next 10 Plan, the risk of an increasing cost environment puts 
additional pressure on OCTA to identify and capture external funds to augment 
the plan where possible. The Updated Next 10 Plan incorporates conservative 
cost escalation factors into project estimates to ensure viability of the plan.  
 
As part of the Next 10 Plan, approval on November 27, 2017, the Board directed 
staff to develop a plan to monitor and track key early warning indicators and 
provide the Board with information on changes to the risk factors.  
A summary of the monitoring effort will be presented to the Board at a minimum 
bi-annually and, if noteworthy, more frequent updates will be provided through 
the M2 quarterly progress reports. 
 
Progress Update 
 
The following highlights M2 Program accomplishments that occurred during the 
first quarter: 
 
 The OCTA Board approved the construction cooperative agreement with 

the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and authorized  
the release of the request for proposals (RFP) for consultant  
construction management services for Interstate 5 (I-5) between  
State Route 55 (SR-55) to State Route 57 on July 24, 2017. (Project A) 

 
 Construction was completed on I-5 between Avenida Vista Hermosa to 

Pacific Coast Highway in July. The added carpool lanes will be open to 
traffic when the segments at either side of this improvement (Avenida Pico 
to Avenida Vista Hermosa and Pacific Coast Highway to San Juan Creek 
Road) are complete, which is anticipated in early 2018. (Project C and 
Project D) 

 
 During the quarter, the right-of-way (ROW) maps were approved by 

Caltrans, the appraisal consultant was selected, and the approval to begin 
ROW work on the I-5 between State Route 73 to Oso Parkway was 
granted. (Project C and Project D) 

 
 The final environmental document and project report on SR-55 between 

Interstate 405 (I-405) to I-5 were approved and signed on August 31, 2017, 
and September 11, 2017 respectively. (Project F) 



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Page 4 
 

 

 

 On August 10, 2017 Caltrans executed the design cooperative agreement 
with OCTA and initiated the 35 percent design. On September 11, 2017, 
the Board authorized the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate and execute 
a ROW cooperative agreement with Caltrans, and approved staff 
consultant selection for design services on SR-55 between I-405 to I-5. 
(Project F) 

 
 On July 17, the Secretary of Transportation approved the Transportation 

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan.  On July 26, OCTA 
closed the TIFIA loan with the United State Department of Transportation.  
With the financing for the project in place, OCTA issued Notice to Proceed 
No. 2 (NTP2) on July 27.  (Project K) 

 
 On August 14, the Board approved the release of the 2018 call for projects 

that will make approximately $32 million available through the Regional 
Capacity Program to fund additional road improvements throughout the 
County, and $8 million for the Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization 
Program. (Project O and Project P) 

 
 In August, the Board selected a consultant to prepare final plans 

specifications and estimates for the Anaheim Canyon Metrolink Station. 
(Project R) 

 
 The Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Station accessibility improvements 

project was completed in September 2017. (Project R) 
 
 On July 17, construction began on the Orange Metrolink Station Parking 

Structure. (Project R) 
 
 On August 14, the Board approved the 2017 Tier 1 Environmental 

Cleanup Program funding recommendations for 16 projects, in an amount 
totaling $3,130,251. A total of 154 projects, amounting to approximately 
$20.1 million, have been awarded by the Board since 2011. (Project X) 

 
 Five of the seven Environmental Mitigation Program Preserve resource 

management plans (RMPs) have been completed and were finalized in 
September 2017. OCTA released the remaining two RMPs to the public 
on August 31, 2017. (Projects A - M) 

  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Page 5 
 

 

 

 Final sales tax receipts for fiscal year 2016-17 were received this quarter 
and incorporated into the M2 sales tax forecast model. On  
September 11, 2017, the Board received a presentation on the most 
recent 2017 sales tax revenue forecast of $13.5 billion, representing a 
$700 million reduction from the sales tax forecast assumed in the adopted 
Next 10 Plan.  

 
 The 2018 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funding 

application was brought to the Board and approved on  
September 11, 2017. Staff finalized and submitted the 2018 STIP funding 
application to the Southern California Association of Governments on 
September 29, 2017, for regional modeling analysis. Staff will work to 
submit the 2018 STIP funding application to the California Transportation 
Commission by the December 15, 2017 deadline.  

 
A critical factor in delivering M2 freeway projects is to ensure project scope, 
schedules, and budgets remain on target.  Project scope increases, schedule 
delays, and resulting cost increases can quickly affect project delivery and have 
a cascading effect on other activities.  In light of the recent reduction in the sales 
tax revenue forecast, this factor is even more significant. Project delivery is 
monitored closely, and progress, as well as challenges, are presented to the 
Board through these quarterly staff reports, individual project staff reports, as 
well as through the Capital Action Plan quarterly performance metrics reports 
from the Capital Programs Division.   
 
  



Measure M2 Quarterly Progress Report for the Period of  
July 2017 Through September 2017 

Page 6 
 

 

 

Summary 
 
As required by M2 Ordinance No. 3, a quarterly report covering activities from 
July 2017 through September 2017 is provided to update progress in 
implementing the Plan. The above information and the attached details indicate 
significant progress on the overall M2 Program. To be cost-effective and to 
facilitate accessibility and transparency of information available to stakeholders 
and the public, the M2 quarterly progress report is presented on the OCTA 
website.  Hard copies are available by mail upon request.   
 
Attachment 
 
A. Measure M2 Progress Report, First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2017-18 - 

July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 
 

Approved by: 

 
Tamara Warren Kia Mortazavi 
Manager, Program Management 
Office 
(714) 560-5590 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



12/4/17 ATTACHMENT A

Measure M2
Progress Report  M

E
A

SURE

First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2017-18
July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017

FIRST QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS:
•  Freeway Projects
•  Streets and Roads
•  Environmental Cleanup & 
    Water Quality

•  Summary





SUMMARY

July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017 is provided 



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

List of Common Abbreviations 
 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act  ARRA 
Americans with Disabilities Act  ADA 
Annual Eligibility Review AER 
Board of Directors Board 
Burlington Northern Santa Fe  BNSF 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife  CDFW 
California Department of Transportation  Caltrans 
California Transportation Commission  CTC 
Capital Action Plan  CAP 
Chief Executive Officer  CEO 
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality CMAQ 
Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee  ECAC 
Environmental Cleanup Program  ECP 
Environmental Impact Report EIR 
Environmental Impact Statement EIS 
Environmental Mitigation Program  EMP 
Environmental Oversight Committee  EOC 
Federal Highway Administration  FHWA 
Federal Transit Administration  FTA 
Federal Transportation Improvement Program FTIP 
Freeway Service Patrol  FSP 
High Occupancy Vehicle  HOV 
Interstate 15  I-15 
Interstate 405  I-405 
Interstate 5  I-5 
Interstate 605  I-605 
Invitation for Bids  IFB 
Local Faire Share Program  LFSP 
Los Angeles – San Diego – San Luis Obispo  LOSSAN 
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority  LA Metro 
Renewed Measure M M2 
Memorandum of Understanding MOU 
Metrolink Service Expansion Program  MSEP 
Notice to Proceed  NTP 
Orange County Transportation Authority  OCTA 
Orange County Unified Transportation Trust  OCUTT 
Pacific Coast Highway  PCH 
Plans, Specifications and Estimates  PS&E 
 
 

 



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

Program Management Office  PMO 
Project Development Team  PDT 
Request for Proposals  RFP 
Resource Management Plan  RMP 
Right-of-Way  ROW 
Riverside County Transportation Commission  RCTC 
Santa Ana Regional Transportation Center SARTC 
Senate Bill 1  SB 1 
Senior Mobility Program  SMP 
Senior Non-Emergency Medical Transportation  SNEMT 
Southern California Association of Governments  SCAG 
State Route 133  SR-133 
State Route 22  SR-22 
State Route 241  SR-241 
State Route 55  SR-55 
State Route 57  SR-57 
State Route 71  SR-71 
State Route 74  SR-74 
State Route 91  SR-91 
State Transportation Improvement Program  STIP 
State Water Resources Control Board SWRCB 
Southern California Regional Rail Authority SCRRA 
Taxpayer Oversight Committee  TOC 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act  TIFIA 
United States Army Corps of Engineers ACOE 
United States Fish and Wildlife Service  USFWS 
United States Department of Transportation  USDOT 

 
 





TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PROJECT PAGE

M2 Delivery Risk Update 1

Next 10 Plan Update 3

Freeway Program (Projects A - N) 7

Interstate 5 (I-5) Projects [A – D] 7

State Route 22 (SR-22) Project E 10

State Route 55 (SR-55) Projects F 11

State Route 57 (SR-57) Projects G 12

State Route 91 (SR-91) Projects [H – J] 13

Interstate 405 (I-405) Projects [K – L] 15

Interstate 605 (I-605) Project M 17

Freeway Service Patrol N 17

Streets and Roads (Projects O, P and Q) 19

Regional Capacity Program O 19

Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program P 22

Local Fair Share Program Q 22

Transit Programs (Projects R, S, T, U, V and W) 25

High Frequency Metrolink Service R 25

Transit Extensions to Metrolink S 28

Regional Gateways for High-Speed Rail T 30

Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities U 31

Community Based Transit / Circulators V 32

Safe Transit Stops W 33

35

Environmental Cleanup X 35

Freeway Mitigation Program (Part of Projects A – M) 35

Program Management Office 38

M2 Financing and Schedule of Funding 41

Local Fair Share M2 Funding by Agency 49

Capital Action Plan Status 51



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

M2 Project Schedules

M2 Projects and Programs

completed prior to 2010

K

2023

I-405, SR-73 to I-605

L I-405, I-5 to SR-55 (Further Schedule TBD)

M

2013 2014

I-605, Katella Interchange (Further Schedule 
TBD)

SR-57 NB, Orangethorpe Avenue to Yorba Linda 
Boulevard (Complete)

G SR-57 NB, Yorba Linda Boulevard to Lambert 
Road (Complete)

G SR-57 NB, Lambert Road to Tonner Canyon 
Road (Further Schedule TBD)

F

G

I-5, Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway/La Paz Road 
Interchange

SR-55, I-5 to SR-91 (Further Schedule TBD)

SR-55, I-405 to I-5F

C,D

E SR-22, Access Improvements (Complete)

G SR-57, Orangewood Avenue to Katella Avenue 
(Further Schedule TBD)

G

2012

I-5, I-405 to SR-55 (Further Schedule TBD)

I-5, Avenida Vista Hermosa to Pacific Coast 
Highway (Complete)

2015 20222016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

SR-57 NB, Katella Avenue to Lincoln Avenue 
(Complete)

J SR-91, SR-55 to SR-241 (Complete)

J SR-91, SR-241 to SR-71 (Complete)

J SR-91, SR-241 to I-15 (Env. Cleared/Further 
Schedule TBD)

H SR-91 WB, I-5 to SR-57 (Complete)

I SR-91 WB, SR-55 to Tustin Avenue Interchange 
(Complete)

I SR-91, SR-55 to SR-57 (Further Schedule TBD)

2011

I-5, SR-73 to Oso Parkway/Avery Parkway 
InterchangeC,D

2010

B

C

I-5, SR-55 to SR-57A

D I-5, Ortega Interchange (Complete)

D I-5, El Toro Interchange (Further Schedule TBD)

C I-5, Pacific Coast Highway to San Juan Creek 
Road

C I-5, Alicia Parkway to El Toro Road

C,D I-5, Avenida Pico to Avenida Vista 
Hermosa/Avenida Pico Interchange

Conceptual Environmental Design, Advertise, & 
Award

Design-Build Construction Complete



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

M2 Projects and Programs
20232013 20142012 2015 20222016 2017 2018 2019 2020 202120112010

R Rail-Highway Grade Crossing Safety 
Enhancement

O Kraemer Boulevard Grade Separation 
(Placentia)

O Orangethorpe Avenue Grade Separation 
(Anaheim/Placentia)

O Tustin Ave/Rose Drive Grade Separation 
(Anaheim/Placentia)

O Raymond Avenue Grade Separation (Fullerton)

O State College Blvd Grade Separation (Fullerton)

O Placentia Avenue Grade Separation (Placentia)

17th Street Railroad Grade Separation

Lakeview Avenue Grade Separation (Anaheim/ 
Placentia)

S OC Streetcar

R Sand Canyon Grade Separation (Irvine)

R,T Anaheim Regional Transportation Intermodal 
Center (ARTIC)*

R San Clemente Beach Trail Safety Enhancements

R Orange Transportation Center Metrolink Parking 
Structure

R Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Metrolink Station 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Ramps

R Anaheim Canyon Metrolink Station 
Improvements

R Fullerton Transportation Center Improvements

R

R

R Tustin Metrolink Station Parking Structure 

Placentia Metrolink Station Improvements and 
Parking Structure

Laguna Niguel to San Juan Capistrano Metrolink 
Station Passing Siding ProjectR

R San Clemente Pier Station Lighting

O

 

*Projects managed by local agencies. 

Shown schedules are subject to change.



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

1

M2 DELIVERY RISK UPDATE

Delivery Risk
Financial

The inability to scale the Freeway 

added pressure to contain project 

and scopes will be required to ensure 

cost increases are minimized while 

1

2

4

M2 Delivery Risk Update

Key:



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

2

M2 DELIVERY RISK UPDATE

Delivery Risk

Policy

where the promise to the voters is the 

Projects currently in the environmental 

Caltrans to emphasize the importance 

Market

5

6

7



Next 10 Plan Update
 

Updated Next 10 Plan Deliverables (scheduled for approval on November 13, 2017)

2. Invest approximately $1.2 billion more in revenues, bringing the completed Freeway Program improvements 
to $4.3 billion (Projects A-M). Project I is a priority.

NEXT 10 UPDATE



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

4

 

NEXT 10 UPDATE



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

website at 

(Project U).

7. Work with local agency to develop a plan for the next community circulator projects to provide grant 

NEXT 10 UPDATE



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

the bus system to enhance the customer experience (Project W).

streamlined project approvals (Projects A-M).

encourages partnerships among the local agencies as part of the Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP) (Project 
X). 

NEXT 10 UPDATE



 Interstate 5 (I-5) Projects

Project A
 
I-5, SR-55 to SR-57

Project B
 
I-5, I-405 to SR-55



 
Project C & Part of Project D

 
I-5, Avenida Pico to Avenida Vista Hermosa/Avenida
Pico Interchange

 



 
I-5, SR-73 to Oso Parkway/Avery Parkway Interchange 

I-5, Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway/La Paz Road Interchange 

I-5, Alicia Parkway to El Toro Road 

 



 
Project D

 

I-5, El Toro Road Interchange 

I-5, Ortega Highway Interchange

 PROJECT COMPLETE

State Route 22 (SR-22) Project

Project E
 
SR-22, Access Improvements

 PROJECT COMPLETE



 

11

State Route 55 (SR-55) Projects

Project F
 
SR-55, I-405 to I-5

SR-55, I-5 to SR-91



 

12

State Route 57 (SR-57) Projects

Project G
 
SR-57 NB, Katella Avenue to Lincoln Avenue 

 PROJECT COMPLETE

SR-57 NB, Orangethorpe Avenue to Yorba Linda Boulevard 

 PROJECT COMPLETE

SR-57 NB, Yorba Linda Boulevard to Lambert Road  

PROJECT COMPLETE



 SR-57 NB, Lambert Road to Tonner Canyon Road 

SR-57 NB, Orangewood Avenue to Katella Avenue 

State Route 91 (SR-91) Projects

Project H
 
SR-91 WB, I-5 to SR-57

 PROJECT COMPLETE



 

14

Project I

 PROJECT COMPLETE

SR-91, SR-55 to SR-57

Project J
 
SR-91, SR-55 to SR-241

 PROJECT COMPLETE



 SR-91 EB, SR-241 to SR-71

 PROJECT COMPLETE

SR-91, SR-241 to I-15

Interstate 405 (I-405) Projects

Project K
 
I-405, SR-73 to I-605



 

 

 

Project L
 
I-405, I-5 to SR-55



 Interstate 605 (I-605) Project

Project M
 
I-605, Katella Interchange Improvements

Freeway Service Patrol

Project N
 
Freeway Service Patrol



Measure M2
Progress Report

 M
E

A

SURE

FREEWAYS



 
Project O

 
Regional Capacity Program

 

OC Bridges Railroad Program

 PROJECT COMPLETE

 CONSTRUCTION COMPLETE



 

 PROJECT COMPLETE

 PROJECT COMPLETE

88% Complete



 

21

92% Complete

  PROJECT COMPLETE



 

22

Project P
 

Project Q
 

Local Fair Share Program

See 



Measure M2
Progress Report

 M
E

A

SURE

STREETS & ROADS

A»

?l

A¥

A¾

?k

A»

A¾

AÊ

Aß

Source: OCTA

8/17/2017

W
:\R

eq
ue

st
s\

P
D

C
S

\S
P

\P
A

\S
ig

na
lC

oo
rd

in
at

io
n\

m
xd

\F
un

de
dS

ig
na

lS
yn

ch
Pr

oj
ec

ts
_2

01
7-

08
17

.m
xd

0 5

Miles

OCTA - Funded Signal Synchronization Projects (2008 - present)

LA HABRA

LAMBERT

BASTANCHURY

YORBA LINDA

COMMONWEALTH

ORANGETHORPE PL
AC

EN
TI

A

LA PALMA

VA
LL

EY
VI

EW

KN
OT

T

S E
A L

B E
AC

H

BE
AC

H

M
AG

NO
LIA

BR
OO

KH
UR

ST

GO
LD

EN
W

ES
T

BOLSA

WARNER

EDINGER

EU
CL

ID

HA
RB

OR

LINCOLN

BALL

KATELLA

CHAPMAN

WESTMINSTER

ST
AT

E
CO

LL
EG

E

GR
AN

D
-G

LA
SS

EL
L-

KR
AE

ME
R

TU
ST

IN
-R

OS
E

NEWPORT

TALBERT - MACARTHUR

ADAMS

BAKER

FA
IR

VI
EW

BR
IS

TO
L

P L
AC

EN
TI

A

VICTORIA

NE
W

PO
RT

17TH

SAN

JO AQ UIN HIL LS

JA
MBOREE CULV

ER

JE
FF

REY

IRVINE CENTER

BARRANCA

ALTON

NEW
PORT

COAST

BA
KE

LAKE FORE ST

MOULTON

EL TORO

TRABUCO

JERONIM

O

SANTA MAR G ARITA

LO
S AL

ISO S ALICIA

OSO

M
AR

GU
ER

IT
E

CROWN
VA

LL
EY

DE
LO

BI
SP

O

PICO

EL CAMINO REAL

LA PA
Z

ARTESIA

BIRCH

ANAHEIM

ORANGEWOOD

SUNFL OWER

VA L E N CIA

BR
EA

COAST

IMPERIAL

MALVERN - CHAPMAN

VON KARMAN

TU
ST

IN
RAN

CH

LOS ANGELES

RIVERSIDE

SAN BERNARDINO

SAN
DIEGO

OCTA - Funded Signal
Synchronization Projects
(2008 - present)

Completed

Freeways / Toll Roads

Planned or in progress

Previously completed,
re-timing in progress

Previously completed,
recently re-timed

Other roads

GI
L B

ER
T

I D
A H

O

BE
AR

FE
LIP

E

OLYMPIAD

AN
TO

NIO

IRVINE

HE
RMOSA

MA
RE

S
V ERA CRU

Z

Map Date: August 17, 2017



Measure M2
Progress Report

 M
E

A

SURE

STREETS & ROADS

24



 
Project R

 

Metrolink Grade Crossing Improvements

 PROJECT COMPLETE

Metrolink Service Expansion Program



 



 



 PROJECT COMPLETE

Project S
 
Transit Extensions to Metrolink



 OC Streetcar Project



Project T
 

Orange County with High-Speed Rail Systems

 PROJECT COMPLETE



 
Project U

 

Senior Mobility Program (SMP)

 
T)



Project V
 
Community Based Transit/Circulators



 
Project W

 

Safe Transit Stops





 
Project X

 
Environmental Cleanup Program

Part of Projects A-M
 



 

available on the M2 website at 



Measure M2
Progress Report

 M
E

A

SURE

ENVIRONMENTAL

A¥

A¾

?k

AÊ

Aß

IR
VI

NE

SA
NT

A 
AN

A

OR
AN

GE

TU
ST

IN

NE
W

PO
RT

BE
AC

H

CO
ST

A 
M

ES
A

HU
NT

IN
GT

ON
 B

EA
CH

LA
KE

FO
RE

ST

MI
SS

IO
N

VI
EJ

O

GA
RD

EN
 G

RO
VE

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

LA
GU

NA
NI

GU
EL

LA
GU

NA
BE

AC
H

FO
UN

TA
IN

 V
AL

LE
Y

LA
GU

NA
HI

LL
S

AL
IS

O
VI

EJ
O

RA
NC

HO
SA

NT
A

MA
RG

AR
ITA

LA
GU

NA
W

OO
DS

SA
N 

JU
AN

 C
AP

IS
TR

AN
O

A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

P
ro

pe
rti

es
 a

nd
 F

un
de

d 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
P

ro
je

ct
s

7/
17

/2
01

7
W

:\p
ro

je
ct

s\
S

P
\E

nv
iM

iti
ga

tio
nP

ro
gr

am
\M

ap
s\

A
cq

ui
si

tio
nP

ro
pe

rti
es

_F
un

de
dR

es
to

ra
tio

n_
20

17
-0

71
7.

m
xd

S
ou

rc
e:

 O
C

TA

A»

YO
RB

A 
LI

ND
A

AN
AH

EI
M

BR
EA

PL
AC

EN
TI

A

Fa
irv

iew
Pa

rk

Bi
g

Be
nd

UC
I

Ec
olo

gic
al

Re
se

rve

Ci
ty 

Pa
rc

el
Re

sto
ra

tio
n

W
es

t L
om

a
Lo

we
r

Si
lve

ra
do

Ca
ny

on Irv
ine

Ra
nc

h

Irv
ine

Ra
nc

h

Al
iso

Cr
ee

k

Ha
rri

ett
 W

ied
er

Re
gio

na
l P

ar
k

Ch
ino

 H
ills

St
at

e P
ar

k
Pr

op
os

al

No
rth

 C
oa

l
Cy

n.
 P

ar
ce

l

Ha
ya

sh
i

Sa
dd

le
Cr

ee
k

So
ut

h

Fe
rb

er
Ra

nc
h

O'
Ne

ill
Oa

ks

Ha
fe

n

A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

P
ro

pe
rti

es

R
ou

nd
 2

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

s

R
ou

nd
 1

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

s

LO
C

AT
IO

N
 M

A
P

A»
?l

A¥

A¾

?k

A»

A¾

AÊ

Aß

O

RTEGA

Ma
cP

he
rso

n

Al
iso

Ca
ny

on
0

2
1

M
ile

s

OR
TEGA

N
O

R
TH

 C
O

U
N

TY
C

E
N

TR
A

L 
C

O
U

N
TY

NO
RT

H 
CO

UN
TY CE

NT
RA

L C
OU

NT
Y

SA
N

JU
AN

CR
EE

K

S
A

N
 J

U
A

N
 C

R
E

E
K

ORANGE C
OUNTY

RIVERSIDE COUNTY

D
am

 L
oc

at
io

ns



 

Next 10 Delivery Plan

M2 Awareness and Signage

OCTA Monitoring Structure for Federal Compliance

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT



PROGRAM MANAGEMENT



• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT



41

M2 Financing and Schedule 
of Funding

 

Current Forecast

 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

42

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 77,999 $ 77,999        $ 1,837,088    
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 23,807         23,807        570,159       
Non-project related -              -              454

Interest:
Operating:

Project related 62               62               190
Non-project related 2,529           2,529          21,592

Bond proceeds 823             823             45,717
Debt service 18               18               141
Commercial paper -              -              393

Right-of-way leases -              -              907
Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale -              -              6,804
Donated assets held for resale -              -              2,071
Miscellaneous:

Project related -              -              270
Non-project related -              -              100

Total revenues 105,238       105,238     2,485,886    

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

State Board of Equalization (SBOE) fees 900             900             20,391
Professional services:

Project related 151             151             311,509       
Non-project related 82               82               17,280

Administration costs:
Project related 2,229           2,229          55,686
Non-project related :

Salaries and Benefits 640             640             20,640
Other 1,235           1,235          32,813

Other:
Project related 5                 5                 4,854
Non-project related 21               21               3,913

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 21,170         21,170        752,444       

Capital outlay:
Project related 46,890         46,890        677,857       
Non-project related -              -              31

Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt -              -              34,560
Interest on long-term debt and
   commercial paper 10,519         10,519        147,398       

Total expenditures 83,842         83,842        2,079,376    

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 21,396         21,396        406,510       

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (868)            (868)            (30,785)
Transfers in:

Project related 1,973           1,973          81,481
Non-project related (1,973)         (1,973)         -

Bond proceeds -              -              358,593       

Total other financing sources (uses) (868)            (868)            409,289       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other sources (uses) $ 20,528 $ 20,528        $ 815,799       

Measure M2
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

44

Schedule 2

Period from Period from
Inception October 1, 2017

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through
Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total
(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 77,999         $ 77,999       $ 1,837,088  $ 11,648,404       $ 13,485,492
Operating interest 2,529           2,529         21,592       173,655            195,247       
   Subtotal 80,528         80,528       1,858,680  11,822,059       13,680,739

Other agencies share of M2 costs -               -             454             -                    454              
Miscellaneous -               -             100             -                    100              

Total revenues 80,528         80,528       1,859,234  11,822,059       13,681,293

Administrative expenditures:
SBOE fees 900              900             20,391       176,772            197,163       
Professional services 82                82               13,504       79,820              93,324         
Administration costs : -               -             -             -               

Salaries and Benefits 640              640             20,640       117,831            138,471       
Other 1,235           1,235         32,813       196,236            229,049       

Other 21                21               3,913         20,085              23,998         
Capital outlay -               -             31               -                    31                
Environmental cleanup 494              494             28,832       229,031            257,863       

Total expenditures 3,372           3,372         120,124     819,775            939,899       

Net revenues $ 77,156       $ 77,156     $ 1,739,110 $ 11,002,284       $ 12,741,394

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)
Bond revenues:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ -               $ -             $ 358,593     $ 1,885,000         $ 2,243,593    
Interest revenue from bond proceeds 823              823             45,717       99,993              145,710       
Interest revenue from debt service funds 18                18               141             4,747                4,888           
Interest revenue from commercial paper -               -             393             -                    393              

Total bond revenues 841              841             404,844     1,989,740         2,394,584    

Financing expenditures and uses:
Professional services -               -             3,776         13,195              16,971         
Bond debt principal -               -             34,560       2,201,066         2,235,626    
Bond debt and other interest expense 10,519         10,519       147,398     1,000,356         1,147,754    

Total financing expenditures and uses 10,519         10,519       185,734     3,214,617         3,400,351    

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ (9,678)       $ (9,678)      $ 219,110   $ (1,224,877)       $ (1,005,767)

Measure M2
Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

Net Revenues
through Total

Project Description Sept 30, 2017 Net Revenues
(G) (H) (I)
($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 68,547           $ 502,204        
B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 43,783           320,769        
C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 91,445           669,961        
D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 37,628           275,678        
E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 17,501           128,222        
F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 53,379           391,078        
G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 37,730           276,426        
H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 20,418           149,593        
I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 60,745           445,038        
J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 51,367           376,332        
K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 156,463         1,146,306     
L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 46,627           341,605        
M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 2,917             21,370          
N All Freeway Service Patrol 21,877           160,278        

Freeway Mitigation 37,391           273,940        

Subtotal Projects 747,818         5,478,800     
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                 -                

Total Freeways $ 747,818         $ 5,478,800     
     %

O Regional Capacity Program $ 173,913         $ 1,274,155     
P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 69,562           509,640        
Q Local Fair Share Program 313,040         2,293,451     

Subtotal Projects 556,515         4,077,246     
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                 -                

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 556,515         $ 4,077,246     
     %

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

Measure M2 
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

Schedule 3



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

Measure M2 
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

Schedule 3

Expenditures Reimbursements
through through Net

Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 M2 Cost
(J) (K) (L)

$ 6,102         $ 1,991         $ 4,111
6,987         4,335         2,652

103,019     41,415       61,604
1,836         527            1,309

4                -            4
8,866         23              8,843

46,276       11,069       35,207
33,655       824            32,831
18,840       2,390         16,450
6,932         5,294         1,638

165,017     14,617       150,400
7,644         4,893         2,751
1,395         16              1,379
2,158         -            2,158

49,179       2,107         47,072

457,910     89,501       368,409
38,407       -            38,407

$ 496,317     $ 89,501       $ 406,816
32.6%

$ 676,744     $ 407,635     $ 269,109
39,222 4,879 34,343

298,248     77              298,171

1,014,214  412,591     601,623
42,659       -            42,659

$ 1,056,873  $ 412,591     $ 644,282
51.6%



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

Schedule 3

($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff 
  that Pollutes Beaches $ 37,174           $ 273,615        

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                 -                

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 37,174           $ 273,615        
     %

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 27,556           $ 202,282        
     %

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 18,587           $ 136,807        
     %

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Measure M2 
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 160,862         $ 1,270,765     
S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 153,523         1,124,770     
T Metrolink Gateways 27,244           65,124          
U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

   with Disabilities 54,537           441,810        
V Community Based Transit/Circulators 34,773           254,760        
W Safe Transit Stops 3,838             28,119          

Subtotal Projects 434,777         3,185,348     
Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service -                 -                

Total Transit Projects $ 434,777         $ 3,185,348     
     %

$ 1,739,110      $ 12,741,394   

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Revenues
through Total

Project Description Sept 30, 2017 Revenues
(G) (H.1) (I.1)
($ in thousands)



 M
E

A

SURE

Measure M2
Progress Report

REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

Schedule 3Measure M2 
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2017
(Unaudited)

$ 28,832       $ 292            $ 28,540

-            -            -

$ 28,832       $ 292            $ 28,540
1.5%

$ 20,391       $ -            $ 20,391
1.1%

$ 20,640       $ 2,053         $ 18,587
1.0%

$ 164,483     $ 95,932       $ 68,551
13,274       2,133         11,141
98,212       60,956       37,256

51,757       88              51,669
4,178         363            3,815

275            26              249

332,179     159,498     172,681
23,857       -            23,857

$ 356,036     $ 159,498     $ 196,538
15.8%

$ 1,909,226  $ 661,590     $ 1,247,636

Expenditures Reimbursements
through through Net

Sept 30, 2017 Sept 30, 2017 M2 Cost
(J) (K) (L)



LOCAL FAIR SHARE

ENTITY
1st Quarter
FY 2017/18

FUNDS TO DATE

ALISO VIEJO $101,914.83 $3,694,304.94
ANAHEIM $916,364.85 $32,140,554.08
BREA $145,796.84 $5,367,975.18
BUENA PARK $221,842.82 $8,531,241.36
COSTA MESA $381,122.65 $13,528,102.51
CYPRESS $136,343.08 $5,006,717.23
DANA POINT $88,662.36 $3,058,247.30
FOUNTAIN VALLEY $160,503.39 $5,844,617.54
FULLERTON $339,084.16 $12,178,400.60
GARDEN GROVE $387,834.04 $13,955,603.99
HUNTINGTON BEACH $498,457.44 $18,160,750.28
IRVINE $728,099.33 $24,751,735.93
LAGUNA BEACH $66,484.43 $2,382,458.15
LAGUNA HILLS $88,716.34 $3,192,107.10
LAGUNA NIGUEL $173,674.85 $6,276,629.15
LAGUNA WOODS $32,602.06 $1,202,245.07
LA HABRA $136,077.87 $4,953,371.83
LAKE FOREST $208,453.54 $7,348,714.95

M2 Funds



LOCAL FAIR SHARE

ENTITY
1st Quarter
FY 2017/18

FUNDS TO DATE

LA PALMA $38,186.17 $1,599,671.96
LOS ALAMITOS $34,048.45 $1,213,505.90
MISSION VIEJO $242,085.31 $8,784,717.03
NEWPORT BEACH $280,383.44 $10,274,844.83
ORANGE $428,088.81 $15,389,967.35
PLACENTIA $123,904.94 $4,446,262.24
RANCHO SANTA MARGARITA $110,728.46 $3,972,871.74
SAN CLEMENTE $148,172.62 $5,213,647.44
SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO $98,668.84 $3,555,348.89
SANTA ANA $735,487.30 $25,990,822.91
SEAL BEACH $61,953.49 $2,386,254.49
STANTON $77,630.50 $2,819,956.27
TUSTIN $237,154.01 $8,323,910.02
VILLA PARK $13,649.75 $488,748.42
WESTMINSTER $224,056.17 $8,005,053.87
YORBA LINDA $157,304.78 $5,612,558.70
COUNTY UNINCORPORATED $504,325.25 $17,224,111.17
TOTAL M2 FUNDS $8,327,863.17 $296,876,030.42



CAPITAL ACTION PLAN

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan

*Status through September 2017. For detailed project information, please refer to the individual project section within this report. 

Begin
Environmental Begin Design

Begin 
Construction

Complete
Construction

FREEWAY PROJECTS

I-5, SR-55 to SR-57 $38.1 Jul-11 Jun-15 Dec-17 Feb-20

Project A $39.9 Jun-11 Jun-15 Apr-18 Jun-20

I-5, I-405 to SR-55 TBD May-14 TBD TBD TBD

Project B TBD May-14 TBD TBD TBD
I-5, Avenida Pico to Avenida Vista 
Hermosa $113.0 Jun-09 Jun-11 Dec-14 Aug-18

Project C $89.5 Jun-09 Jun-11 Dec-14 May-18
I-5, Avenida Vista Hermosa to Pacific 
Coast Highway $75.6 Jun-09 Jun-11 Dec-13 Mar-17

Project C $71.4 Jun-09 Jun-11 Jun-14 Jul-17
I-5, Pacific Coast Highway to San Juan 
Creek Road $70.7 Jun-09 Jun-11 Oct-13 Sep-16

Project C $71.3 Jun-09 Jun-11 Dec-13 Apr-18

I-5, SR-73 to Oso Parkway $151.9 Sep-11 Mar-15 Dec-18 Jan-24

Project C & D        $190.5 Oct-11 Mar-15 Oct-19 Oct-24

I-5, Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway $196.2 Sep-11 Nov-14 Jun-18 Feb-23

Project C & D        $191.0 Oct-11 Nov-14 Dec-18 Aug-23

I-5, Alicia Parkway to El Toro Road $133.6 Sep-11 Mar-15 May-19 Jun-23

Project C $166.5 Oct-11 Mar-15 Feb-20 Mar-24

I-5, El Toro Road Interchange TBD Apr-17 TBD TBD TBD

Project D TBD Apr-17 TBD TBD TBD

I-5, Ortega Interchange $90.9 Sep-05 Jan-09 Aug-12 Sep-15

Project D $75.1 Sep-05 Jan-09 Aug-12 Jan-16

I-5, Ortega Interchange (Landscape) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Project D N/A N/A Jan-14 Sep-15 Sep-16

Capital Projects*
 ( ForecastedCost

Budget/
Forecast

(in millions)

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan
 Bold = Forecasted/Actual



CAPITAL ACTION PLAN

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan

*Status through September 2017. For detailed project information, please refer to the individual project section within this report. 

Begin
Environmental Begin Design

Begin 
Construction

Complete
Construction

Capital Projects*
 ( ForecastedCost

Budget/
Forecast

(in millions)

SR-55, I-405 to I-5 TBD Feb-11 TBD TBD TBD

Project F $410.9 May-11 Sep-17 May-21 Jun-25

SR-55, I-5 to SR-91 TBD Dec-16 TBD TBD TBD

Project F TBD Dec-16 TBD TBD TBD
SR-57 Northbound (NB), Orangewood 
Avenue to Katella Avenue TBD Apr-16 TBD TBD TBD

Project G TBD Apr-16 TBD TBD TBD
SR-57 (NB), Katella Avenue to Lincoln 
Avenue $78.7 Apr-08 Jul-08 Aug-11 Sep-14

Project G $38.5 Apr-08 Aug-08 Oct-11 Apr-15
SR-57 (NB), Katella Avenue to Lincoln 
Avenue (Landscape)       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Project G N/A N/A May-09 Sep-17 Nov-18
SR-57 (NB), Orangethorpe Avenue to 
Yorba Linda Boulevard $80.2 Aug-05 Feb-08 Oct-10 May-14

Project G $52.6 Aug-05 Feb-08 Oct-10 Nov-14
SR-57 (NB), Yorba Linda Boulevard to 
Lambert Road $79.3 Aug-05 Feb-08 Oct-10 Sep-14

Project G $55.5 Aug-05 Feb-08 Oct-10 May-14
SR-57 (NB), Orangethorpe Avenue to 
Lambert Road (Landscape)  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Project G N/A N/A Oct-14 Mar-18 May-19
SR-57 (NB), Lambert Road to Tonner 
Canyon TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD

Project G TBD Aug-18 TBD TBD TBD

SR-91 Westbound (WB), I-5 to SR-57    $78.1 Jul-07 Oct-09 Nov-12 Apr-16

Project H $59.6 Jul-07 Mar-10 Jan-13 Jun-16

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan
 Bold = Forecasted/Actual



CAPITAL ACTION PLAN

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan
 Bold = Forecasted/Actual

*Status through September 2017. For detailed project information, please refer to the individual project section within this report. 

Begin
Environmental Begin Design

Begin 
Construction

Complete
Construction

Capital Projects*
 ( ForecastedCost

Budget/
Forecast

(in millions)
SR-91 Westbound (WB), I-5 to SR-57  
(Landscape)      N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Project H N/A N/A Nov-14 Mar-17 Dec-17

SR-91, SR-56 to SR-57 TBD Jan-15 TBD TBD TBD

Project I TBD Jan-15 TBD TBD TBD
SR-91 (WB), SR-55 to Tustin Avenue 
Interchange $49.9 Jul-08 Jul-11 Oct-13 Jul-16

Project I $42.8 Jul-08 Jun-11 Oct-13 Jul-16

SR-91, SR-55 to SR-241                  $128.4 Jul-07 Jun-09 Sep-11 Dec-12

Project J $79.6 Jul-07 Apr-09 May-11 Mar-13

SR-91, SR-55 to SR-241 (Landscape) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Project J N/A N/A May-12 Oct-13 Feb-15

SR-91 Eastbound, SR-241 to SR-71     $104.5 Mar-05 Jul-07 Jul-09 Nov-10

Project J $57.8 Mar-05 Jul-07 Aug-09 Jan-11

I-405, SR-73 to I-605 (Design-Build) $1,900.0 Mar-09 Mar-14 Nov-16 May-23

Project K $1,900.0 Mar-09 Mar-14 Nov-16 May-23

I-405, I-5 to SR-55 TBD Dec-14 TBD TBD TBD

Project L TBD Dec-14 TBD TBD TBD

I-605, I-605/Katella Interchange TBD Aug-16 TBD TBD TBD

Project M TBD Aug-16 TBD TBD TBD



CAPITAL ACTION PLAN

*Status through September 2017. For detailed project information, please refer to the individual project section within this report. 

Begin
Environmental Begin Design

Begin 
Construction

Complete
Construction

Capital Projects*
 ( ForecastedCost

Budget/
Forecast

(in millions)

GRADE SEPARATION PROJECTS
Kraemer Boulevard Railroad Grade 
Separation (Placentia) $70.4 Jan-01 Jan-09 Aug-11 Oct-14

Project O $63.5 Jan-01 Feb-09 Sep-11 Dec-14
Lakeview Avenue Railroad Grade 
Separation (Anaheim/Placentia) $70.2 Jan-01 Feb-09 May-13 Mar-17

Project O $107.4 Jan-01 Feb-09 Nov-13 Jun-17
Orangethorpe Avenue Railroad Grade 
Separation (Anaheim/Placentia) $117.4 Jan-01 Feb-09 May-12 Sep-16

Project O $108.6 Jan-01 Feb-09 Jan-13 Oct-16
Placentia Avenue Railroad Grade 
Separation (Placentia) $78.2 Jan-01 Jan-09 Jun-11 Nov-14

Project O $64.6 Jan-01 Jan-09 Jul-11 Dec-14
Raymond Avenue Railroad Grade 
Separation (Fullerton) $77.2 Feb-09 Mar-10 May-13 Aug-18

Project O $124.8 Feb-09 Mar-10 Feb-14 Aug-18
State College Boulevard Railroad 
Grade Separation  (Fullerton) $73.6 Dec-08 Jul-06 May-13 May-18

Project O $97.0 Dec-08 Jul-06 Feb-14 Jan-18
Tustin Avenue/Rose Drive Railroad 
Grade Separation (Anaheim/Placentia) $103.0 Jan-01 Feb-09 Aug-12 May-16

Project O $98.3 Jan-01 Feb-09 Feb-13 Oct-16
Sand Canyon Avenue Railroad Grade 
Separation    (Irvine) $55.6 N/A Jan-04 Feb-11 May-14

Project R $61.8 N/A Jan-04 Feb-11 Jan-16

17th Street Railroad Grade Separation TBD Oct-14 TBD TBD TBD

Project R TBD Oct-14 TBD TBD TBD

Grey = Milestone achieved

Red = Forecast milestone is over three months later than plan
 Bold = Forecasted/Actual







 

 COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 

 550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

  December 11, 2017 

 

 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 

  

From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2017-18 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review 
 

 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of December 4, 2017 

 

             Present: Directors Do, Delgleize, Donchak, M. Murphy, and Nelson 

            Absent:  Directors Spitzer and Steel 

 
 
Committee Vote 
 
This item was passed by the Members present. 

 
  
Committee Recommendation 

 
Approve all local jurisdictions as conditionally eligible for Measure M2 net revenues 
for fiscal year 2017-18, and direct staff to return with eligibility findings                   
for local jurisdictions, pending the adoption and submittal of fiscal year 2016-17 
expenditure reports by local jurisdictions.  
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 4, 2017 
 
 
To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee  
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2017-18 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review  
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 requires all local jurisdictions in Orange County to satisfy eligibility 
requirements in order to receive Measure M2 net revenues.  Fiscal year 2017-18 
eligibility documentation has been reviewed and is presented for Board of 
Directors’ review and approval. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve all local jurisdictions as conditionally eligible for Measure M2 net 
revenues for fiscal year 2017-18, and direct staff to return with eligibility findings 
for local jurisdictions, pending the adoption and submittal of fiscal year 2016-17 
expenditure reports by local jurisdictions.  
 
Background 
 
Local jurisdictions are required to meet eligibility requirements and submit 
eligibility verification packages to Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)  
staff annually in order to remain eligible to receive Measure M2 (M2) net revenues. 
There are 13 eligibility requirements local jurisdictions must meet. However, not 
all of the eligibility requirements require verification each year. The 13 eligibility 
requirements and submittal schedule are identified in Attachment A. 
 
The Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing five of the 
13 eligibility requirements and designating the Annual Eligibility Review (AER) 
Subcommittee to review the Congestion Management Plan (CMP), Mitigation Fee 
Program, Local Signal Synchronization Plan (LSSP), Pavement Management 
Plan (PMP), and expenditure reports. The remaining eight eligibility requirements 
are reviewed by OCTA staff. 
  



Fiscal Year 2017-18 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Page 2 
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
All 35 local jurisdictions submitted the appropriate eligibility verification documents 
prior to the June 30th deadline. OCTA staff reviewed the submittals to ensure 
completion and accuracy.  
 
The AER Subcommittee convened on September 12, 2017 to review and discuss 
four eligibility components namely the CMP, LSSP, Mitigation Fee Programs, and 
in addition, 14 PMP submittals. The AER Subcommittee found these submittals to 
be in compliance with the Measure M2 Ordinance (M2 Ordinance) and recommend 
approval to the TOC. 
 
The AER Subcommittee members expressed concerns about the downward trend 
in pavement conditions based on the seven-year projections provided in the 
current PMPs for the cities of Anaheim and Los Alamitos. While the AER 
Subcommittee members affirmed that the PMP submittals were in compliance with 
ordinance requirements, the AER Subcommittee members noted that it is 
important to continue to address the condition of pavement on an ongoing basis 
to avoid further deterioration and asked staff to communicate their concerns.  
OCTA staff will be sending out letters to the cities of Anaheim (Attachment B) and 
Los Alamitos (Attachment C) to express concerns raised by the committee 
members. 
 
The AER Subcommittee presented recommendations of eligibility compliance to 
the TOC on October 10, 2017, for review and approval. The TOC found all local 
jurisdictions to be in compliance with the M2 Ordinance and recommended 
conditional eligibility approval for fiscal year (FY) 2017-18, pending the review of 
expenditure reports as further described below. The eligibility review and findings 
for FY 2017-18 M2 eligibility are summarized in Attachment D.  
 
The M2 eligibility for FY 2017-18 is conditional, pending the review and approval 
of expenditure reports for FY 2016-17.  All local jurisdictions must adopt an annual 
expenditure report that tracks financial activity for M2 funds, including interest 
earned, developer traffic impact fees, and funds expended by the jurisdiction that 
satisfy maintenance of effort requirements. Upon staff review, the AER 
Subcommittee, and the TOC, expenditure reports will be presented to the Board 
for a final eligibility finding in summer 2018.  
 
Summary 
 

All local jurisdictions in Orange County have submitted FY 2017-18 eligibility 
packages that are consistent with the M2 Ordinance.  The TOC has reviewed and 
approved the appropriate documentation and found that all local jurisdictions 
conditionally meet the eligibility requirements for FY 2017-18. 
  



Fiscal Year 2017-18 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Page 3 
 

 

 

Attachments 
 
A. Measure M2 Eligibility Requirements and Submittal Schedule Summary, 

For Fiscal Year 2017-18 
B. Draft Letter to Ms. Linda Andal, Interim City Manager, City of Anaheim, 

Dated December 11, 2017, RE: Pavement Condition Concerns Expressed 
by the Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

C. Draft Letter to Mr. Bret Plumlee, City Manager, City of Los Alamitos, Dated 
December 11, 2017, RE: Pavement Condition Concerns Expressed by the 
Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

D. Fiscal Year 2017-18, Measure M2 Eligibility Review Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By:     Approved By: 

 
 
May Hout      Kia Mortazavi 
Senior Transportation Funding Analyst  Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5905     (714) 560-5741

 

 



ATTACHMENT A  
 

Measure M2 Eligibility Requirements and Submittal Schedule Summary 
For Fiscal Year 2017-18 

 
Compliance Category Frequency Required 

Capital Improvement Program Annual 
(June 30th)  

Circulation Element/Master Plan of Arterial 
Highways Consistency  

Biennial 
(June 30th)  

Congestion Management Program Odd-Numbered Year 
(i.e. June 2017, 2019)  

Expenditure Report Annual 
(December 29)1  

Local Signal Synchronization Plan Every Three Years  

Maintenance of Effort Annual 
(June 30th)  

Mitigation Fee Program (MFP) Biennial 
(June 30th)2  

No Supplanting of Developer Fees Annual 
(June 30th)  

Pavement Management Plan (PMP)  Every Two Years  
(June 30th)3  

Timely Submittal of Project Final Reports 
Within Six Months of 
Project Completion 

 

Timely Use of Net Revenues  Annual 
(June 30th)  

Traffic Forum Participation  Annual  

Transit and Non-Motorized Transportation 
Land-Use Planning Strategies 

Annual 
(June 30th)  

 

 

 

 

_______  

1The City of Huntington Beach follows a federal fiscal year (October 1st  - September 30th) and must submit 
the Measure M2 Expenditure Report by March 30. 

2A jurisdiction must submit their updated program and revised fee schedule or process methodology when 
the jurisdiction updates their MFP and/or nexus study. 

3The 14 agencies update respective PMPs on odd-numbered fiscal years, while 21 agencies update 
on even-numbered fiscal years. 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

 

 
 
 
December 11, 2017 
 
 

Ms. Linda Andal 
Interim City Manager 
City of Anaheim 
200 South Anaheim Boulevard 
Anaheim, CA 92805 
 

RE: Pavement Condition Concerns Expressed by the Annual Eligibility 
Review Subcommittee 

 

Dear Ms. Andal: 
 

As you know, local agencies are required to submit eligibility verification packages 
to the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) annually in order to remain 
eligible to receive Measure M2 net revenues. The Taxpayer Oversight  
Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing eligibility requirements and designates 
a subcommittee to review this information that includes the Pavement Management 
Plan (PMP).  
 

Upon review of the City of Anaheim’s (City) 2017 PMP submittal, members of the 
TOC expressed concerns about the downward trend in the City’s pavement 
conditions based on the seven-year projections provided in the current PMP.  
While this does not impact the City’s eligibility status, the TOC believes that it is 
important for the City to proactively address the projected decline in pavement 
conditions to avoid further street deterioration.  
 

OCTA also encourages successful PMP implementation by providing a 10 percent 
local match reduction incentive for competitive grant applications submitted through 
the Regional Capacity Program if the local agency can either improve network 
average Pavement Condition Index (PCI) by one point with no reductions in average 
PCI for MPAH or locals; or show average PCI within highest 20 percent countywide  
(PCI of 75 of higher) from the previous PMP submittal.  
 

If you have any questions, please contact Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director, 
Planning, at (714) 560-5741. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Darrell Johnson 
Chief Executive Officer 
 

DJ:mh 
 

c: Kia Mortazavi, OCTA 
 Kurt Brotcke, OCTA 



ATTACHMENT C 
 

 

 
 
 
December 11, 2017 
 
 

Mr. Bret Plumlee 
City Manager 
City of Los Alamitos 
3191 Katella Avenue 
Los Alamitos, CA 90720 
 

RE: Pavement Condition Concerns Expressed by the Annual Eligibility 
Review Subcommittee 

 

Dear Mr. Plumlee: 
 

As you know, local agencies are required to submit eligibility verification packages 
to the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) annually in order to remain 
eligible to receive Measure M2 net revenues. The Taxpayer Oversight  
Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing eligibility requirements and designates 
a subcommittee to review this information that includes the Pavement Management 
Plan (PMP).  
 

Upon review of the City of Los Alamitos’ (City) 2017 PMP submittal, members of 
the TOC expressed concerns about the downward trend in the City’s pavement 
conditions based on the seven-year projections provided in the current PMP.  
While this does not impact the City’s eligibility status, the TOC believes that it is 
important for the City to proactively address the projected decline in pavement 
conditions to avoid further street deterioration.  
 

OCTA also encourages successful PMP implementation by providing a 10 percent 
local match reduction incentive for competitive grant applications submitted through 
the Regional Capacity Program if the local agency can either improve network 
average Pavement Condition Index (PCI) by one point with no reductions in average 
PCI for MPAH or locals; or show average PCI within highest 20 percent countywide  
(PCI of 75 of higher) from the previous PMP submittal.  
 

If you have any questions, please contact Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director, 
Planning, at kmortazavi@octa.net or (714) 560-5741. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Darrell Johnson 
Chief Executive Officer 
 

DJ:mh 
 

c: Kia Mortazavi, OCTA 
 Kurt Brotcke, OCTA 

mailto:kmortazavi@octa.net


 Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Measure M2 Eligibility Review Summary

Agency
Capital Improvement 

Program  
Circulation Element/ 
MPAH Consistency

Congestion 
Management 

Program

Expenditure 
Report

Land-Use Planning 
Strategies

Local Signal 
Synchronization 

Plan

Maintenance of 
Effort

 Mitigation Fee 
Program 

 No Supplanting 
of Developer 

Fees 

1 Pavement 
Management 

Plan 

Timely Submittal of 
Final Reports

Timely Use of Net 
Revenues

Traffic 
Forum

Aliso Viejo Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Anaheim Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Brea Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Buena Park Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Costa Mesa Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

County of Orange Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Cypress Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Dana Point Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Fountain Valley Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Fullerton Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Garden Grove Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Huntington Beach Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Irvine Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

La Habra Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

La Palma Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Laguna Beach Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Laguna Hills Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Laguna Niguel Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Laguna Woods Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Lake Forest Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Los Alamitos Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Mission Viejo Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Newport Beach Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Orange Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Placentia Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Rancho Santa Margarita Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

San Clemente Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

San Juan Capistrano Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Santa Ana Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Seal Beach Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Stanton Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Tustin Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Villa Park Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Westminster Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Yorba Linda Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Pending Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory Satisfactory N/A Satisfactory Satisfactory 

Totals 35 35 35 - 35 35 35 35 35 14 35 35 35

Acronyms:
MPAH - Master Plan of Arterial Highways
PMP- Pavement Management Plan 
N/A - Not applicable

1 14 agencies update respective PMPs on odd-numbered fiscal years, while 21 agencies update on even-numbered fiscal years.

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T D



 

 COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 

 550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 11, 2017 

 

 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 

  

From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and Next 
Steps 

 

 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of December 4, 2017 

 

             Present: Directors Do, Delgleize, Donchak, M. Murphy, and Nelson 

            Absent:  Directors Spitzer and Steel 

 
 
Committee Vote 
 
This item was passed by the Members present. 

 
  
Committee Recommendation 

 
 

Direct staff to return in early 2018 with updated Environmental Cleanup Program 
funding guidelines for a 2018 call for projects. 
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 

December 4, 2017 
 
 
To:  Regional Planning and Highways Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and Next 

Steps 
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority’s Environmental Cleanup Program 
provides Measure M2 funding for water quality improvement projects to address 
transportation-generated pollution. In May 2010, the Orange County 
Transportation Authority Board of Directors approved a two-tiered approach to 
fund the Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program over a seven-year period. 
The Board of Directors recently approved the funding recommendations for the 
seventh call for projects in August 2017. A status update of the funded projects 
and next steps in the Environmental Cleanup Program are discussed herein. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Direct staff to return in early 2018 with updated Environmental Cleanup Program 
funding guidelines for a 2018 call for projects. 

 
Background 
 
In May 2010, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)  
Board of Directors (Board) approved a two-tiered approach to fund the  
Measure M2 (M2) Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP). The funding plan 
called for up to $19.5 million in Tier 1 grants on a “pay-as-you-go” basis through 
seven funding cycles. Approximately $2.8 million has been available for  
each cycle of Tier 1 calls for projects (call). OCTA just completed the seventh 
cycle in fiscal year (FY) 2017-18. In addition, the Board approved up to  
$38 million in Tier 2 grants through two to three cycles of calls. Two call cycles 
have been completed under the Tier 2 grants program. 
 
ECP funds are available for all 34 cities and the County of Orange to purchase 
equipment and upgrades for existing catch basins and other related best 
management practices (BMP) that supplement current requirements.  Examples 
include screens, filters, and inserts for catch basins, as well as other 
 
  



Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and 
Next Steps 

Page 2 

 
 
devices designed to remove trash, debris, and other pollutants. Proposed 
projects must demonstrate a direct nexus to the reduction of  
transportation-related pollution, as included in the Measure M Ordinance and 
further defined by the Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee (ECAC) and 
approved by the Board. 
 
The Tier 1 Grant Program is designed to mitigate the more visible forms of 
pollution. This includes the trash and debris that collects on roadways and in 
storm drains prior to being deposited in waterways and the ocean. Tier 1 consists 
of funding for equipment and upgrades to existing catch basins and related 
devices such as screens, filters, and inserts.  
 
The Tier 2 Grant Program consists of funding regional, multi-jurisdictional, and 
capital-intensive projects. Examples include constructed wetlands, 
detention/infiltration basins, and bioswales.  The purpose of the Tier 2 Program 
is to strategically focus on areas which have the greatest need for water quality 
improvement projects as they relate to the transportation infrastructure.  
These projects are generally much larger in scale and help to mitigate pollutants 
including litter and debris, heavy metals, organic chemicals, bacteria, and 
sediment.   
 
The ECAC was envisioned in the Measure M2 Ordinance to oversee the 
following:  
 
• A competitive grant process to fund the highest priority capital 

improvement projects, 
• A process requiring the funds allocated for projects and programs to 

supplement, and not supplant, funding from other sources for 
transportation related water quality projects and programs, 

• Recommendations of funding allocations for proposed projects and 
programs, 

• An annual reporting procedure and a method to assess the completed 
water quality projects. 

 
Discussion 
 
The Board has approved funding for 154 Tier 1 projects through seven calls, 
totaling approximately $20.1 million and 22 Tier 2 projects through two calls, 
totaling approximately $27.9 million.  Attachment A includes project types and 
funding details for each Tier 1 and Tier 2 call. To date, the County and all 34 
cities have participated in the ECP. The County and 33 cities have received 
funding for projects, as shown in Attachment B and Attachment C.  
 
  



Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and 
Next Steps 

Page 3 

 
 
Staff has estimated that over 602 million cubic feet of trash have been captured 
as a result of the installation of Tier 1 devices since the inception of the Tier 1 
Program in 2011. This is equivalent to over 2,600 forty-foot shipping containers. 
Over time, the volume of trash captured is expected to increase.  It is estimated 
that the funded Tier 2 projects, once fully functional, will have an annual 
groundwater recharge potential of approximately 157 million gallons of water 
from infiltration or through pumped and treated recharge facilities. 
 
The ECP is a sales tax revenue-generated program providing funding thru 2041 
for water quality improvement projects.   An important role of the ECAC is to 
consider changes in legislation and compliance with the M2 Ordinance.  
For example, the M2 Ordinance states that “environmental cleanup revenues 
allocated for projects and programs shall supplement and not supplant funding 
from other sources for transportation related water quality projects and 
programs.” This language has been an important factor in considering funding 
as projects are thoroughly vetted during each call to ensure they meet the intent 
and spirit of the M2 Ordinance.  
 
The M2 Ordinance states the specific program objective is to assist the County 
and cities in their efforts “to meet federal Clean Water Act standards for urban 
runoff.” The Clean Water Act in California is administered through the State 
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB, issuer of Trash Provisions) and 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, (issuer of Municipal Stormwater Permits).  
Recently, the SWRCB adopted “Trash Provisions”, which establish a statewide 
water quality objective for trash removal and implementation provisions using a 
land-use based compliance approach that targets high trash generating areas.  
The Trash Provisions, like the Municipal Stormwater Permits, do not have 
dedicated funding provided by the regulatory agency; therefore, associated 
funding provided through the M2 Program would not be supplanting, nor would 
existing funding be replaced. The ECAC thoroughly discussed the  
Trash Provisions and determined that funding of trash control equipment and 
devices is consistent with the intent of the ECP. 
 
Concurrently, OCTA staff has been coordinating with County staff to facilitate 
project development efforts for Tier 2-type projects that offer regional water 
quality benefits.  Tier 2 projects offer tremendous benefits from a water quality 
standpoint.  However, they are also much more complicated since they involve 
higher costs, multiple jurisdictions, as well as complex planning and engineering 
efforts. Recognizing these challenges, OCTA retained a consultant in 2010 to 
assess water quality project opportunities within the eleven watersheds in the 
County to identify strategically effective areas to maximize M2 investments to 
improve water quality.  
 
  



Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and 
Next Steps 

Page 4 

 
 
Since then, the County’s Watersheds Program has built upon OCTA’s effort by 
preparing two water quality plans: the South Orange County Water Quality 
Improvement Plan (SOCWQIP) and the North Orange County Watershed 
Management Plan (NOCWMP). The SOCWQIP was completed in fall 2017, and 
the NOCWMP is under development and is anticipated to be completed in 2018. 
These plans will assist OCTA in conceptualizing potential larger scale water 
quality projects with a transportation nexus. OCTA can then share potential 
project concepts with local jurisdictions, the County, and other potential project 
sponsors to further develop the projects.    
 
Next Steps 
 
In order to continue the success of the ECP, a robust pool of potential Tier 2-type 
projects should be developed. The ECAC engaged in discussions of the 
disposition of the ECP over the next decade. The ECAC agreed that going 
forward in the immediate timeframe, the demand for Tier 2 funding is not 
anticipated to warrant the need for debt issuance since OCTA has not had to 
utilize debt issuance in the past. It is anticipated there would be sufficient demand 
and funds available for annual Tier 1-type calls with approximately $2.8 million 
available each year. Given the uncertain nature of the sales tax 
revenues/projections, staff will need to continue to monitor the availability of 
funds for the ECP. As OCTA continues coordination efforts with the County to 
assist local jurisdictions in further developing Tier 2-type projects, it is anticipated 
that there may be sufficient funds to issue two Tier 2 calls during the next decade 
(potentially 2021 and 2025).  
 
In early 2018, staff will present updated ECP funding guidelines to the ECAC, 
and anticipates the ECAC to endorse the release of a call beginning in  
March 2018. The call will focus on Tier 1-type projects and staff anticipates 
approximately $2.8 million will be available.  
 
Summary 

The OCTA ECP provides M2 funding for water quality improvement projects to 
address transportation-generated pollution. In May 2010, the OCTA Board 
approved a two-tiered approach to fund the M2 ECP over a seven-year period 
which concluded in August 2017. Moving forward, the ECP can continue with 
annual calls. Funding availability will determine the scale of projects that could 
potentially be funded.  

 

 

 



Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program Updates and 
Next Steps 

Page 5 

 
 
Attachments 
 
A. Tier 1 and Tier 2 Funded Project Types and Funding Allocation 
B. OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program Funding by Agency - Tier 1  
C. OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program Funding by Agency - Tier 2  
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
Alison Army  Kia Mortazavi 
Principal Transportation Analyst  
(714) 560-5537 

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



Tier 1 and Tier 2 Funded Project Types and Funding Allocation 

Tier 1 Funded Project Types 

Call Cycle 
Screens/ 

Filters 
CDS/ 

GSRD1 
Trash 

Skimmer/Boom 
Detention/ 
Infiltration 

Irrigation/ 
Landscape 

Runoff 
Diversion 

Total 
Projects 
Funded 

Total 
Allocation 

FY 2011-12 20 7 1  6  34 $2,861,7862 
FY 2012-13 15 6 1  10  33 $2,764,2443 
FY 2013-14 15 3  1  1 19 $2,831,240 
FY 2014-15 15 2  1   18 $2,834,3614 
FY 2015-16 16 1  1   18 $2,865,899 
FY 2016-17 13 1 2    16 $2,769,943 
FY 2017-18 14 1  1   16 $3,130,251 

Tier 1 
Totals 

108 21 4 4 16 1 154 $20,057,724 

1CDS/GSRD = Continuous Deflective Separator/Gross Solids Removal Device 
2One project was cancelled in the amount of $11,989 
3

 Three projects were cancelled in the total amount of $290,202 
4

 One project was cancelled in the amount of $200,000 

 
 

Tier 2 Funded Project Types 

Call Cycle 
Detention/ 
Infiltration Bioswale 

Runoff 
Diversion CDS1 

Modular 
Wetland 

Constructed 
Wetland 

Total Projects 
Funded 

Total 
Allocation 

FY 2012-13 2 2 3 1   8 $12,708,3142 
FY 2013-14 3 4 3  2 2 14 $15,186,5313 

Tier 2 
Totals 

5 6 6 1 2 2 22 $27,894,845 

1CDS = Continuous Deflective Separator 
2

 One project was cancelled in the amount of $470,236 
3 One project was cancelled in the amount of $635,955 

 
Call - Call for projects  
FY - Fiscal year  

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T A
 



L A H A B R A

B R E A

P L A C E N T I A Y
O

R B A L I N D
A

V I L L A P A R
K

O

R A N G

E

A
N

A H E I M

B

U E N A P A R
K

L

A
P A L M

A

C

Y
P R E S

S

S
E

A L B E A C
H

S T A N T O N

G AR D E N G R O VE

W
E

S T M I N S T
E

R

FO

UNTA IN VALLEY

HU
NTINGTON BEACH

S

A N T A A N A

T U S T I N

I R V I N E

C
O

S T A M E S
A

COUNTY OF ORANGE

N EW P O R T B E A C
H

L A G U N A W O O D
S

L A K E F O R E S T

M I S
S I O N V I E J O

RA
NC

HO SANTA MARGARITA

L A G U N A H I L L S

LA G U N A N I G U E
L

L A G U N A B E A C H

A
L I S O V I E

J O

SA
N JUAN CAPISTRANO

D

A N A P O I N
T

S
A

N
C L E M E N

T
E

L
O

S
A L A M I T

O
S

F U L L E R T O
N

Lower
Santa Ana

River

$330,720

$1,297,660

$1,060,425

$562,533

$647,520

$143,495

$690,300
$243,544

$500,000

$1,061,750

$699,966

$56,500

$728,449

$1,324,235

$717,559

$160,025

$0

$63,700

$249,563

$807,343

$1,275,127

$779,969

$399,290

$1,288,229

$575,000

$72,426

$677,288

$491,192

$463,290

$650,064

$1,009,998

$228,577

$472,000

$120,000

$11,989

Santiago
Creek

San Juan Creek

San Diego Creek

Lower
San Gabriel

River

Bolsa Chica Channel-
Frontal Hunington Harbour

Lower
Santa Ana

River

Aliso Creek-
Frontal Gulf of
Santa Catalina

Newport Bay-
Frontal Pacific

Ocean

Temescal
Wash

San
Mateo
Creek

Source: OCTA; OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program

11/20/2017

W
:\p

ro
je

ct
s\

S
P

\E
nv

iM
iti

ga
tio

nP
ro

gr
am

\M
ap

s\
Fu

nd
in

gS
um

m
ar

yM
ap

_T
ie

r1
_2

01
7-

09
07

.m
xd

0 52.5

MilesZ

OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program Funding by Agency - Tier 1

OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program
Tier 1 Funding Summary

20
11

2012

20132014

2015

2016

2017

!

!

LEAD AGENCY 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ALISO VIEJO 93,729$      97,770$      195,104$     -$            -$            199,999$     423,396$     
ANAHEIM 99,960$      99,750$      -$            200,000$     200,000$     197,950$     500,000$     
BREA 100,000$     100,000$     200,000$     200,000$     200,000$     475,127$     -$            
BUENA PARK 96,400$      90,962$      199,871$     198,944$     199,887$     200,000$     302,165$     
COSTA MESA 100,000$     100,000$     -$            -$            -$            -$            43,544$      
COUNTY OF ORANGE 200,000$     100,000$     200,000$     200,000$     160,425$     200,000$     -$            
CYPRESS 99,167$      79,335$      -$            163,650$     200,000$     -$            107,912$     
DANA POINT -$               72,426$      -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
FOUNTAIN VALLEY 99,645$      -$            99,645$      -$            200,000$     -$            -$            
FULLERTON 49,983$      49,983$      -$            200,000$     200,000$     200,000$     -$            
GARDEN GROVE 28,449$      500,000$     -$            -$            200,000$     -$            -$            
HUNTINGTON BEACH 33,000$      63,000$      199,588$     193,827$     -$            73,118$      -$            
IRVINE -$               100,000$     -$            -$            200,000$     -$            30,720$      
LA HABRA -$               -$            -$            150,000$     150,000$     200,000$     177,288$     
LA PALMA -$               66,277$      -$            162,300$     -$            -$            -$            
LAGUNA BEACH 200,000$     -$            200,000$     175,000$     -$            -$            -$            
LAGUNA HILLS 61,950$      70,350$      64,915$      71,075$      75,000$      -$            120,000$     
LAGUNA NIGUEL 455,039$     97,285$      -$            -$            -$            -$            165,235$     
LAGUNA WOODS 11,989$      -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
LAKE FOREST 58,000$      50,000$      88,000$      100,000$     100,000      187,500$     106,800$     
LOS ALAMITOS -$               -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
MISSION VIEJO 200,000$     100,000$     146,000$     200,000$     200,000$     200,000$     278,235$     
NEWPORT BEACH 157,950$     383,570$     106,000$     -$            -$            -$            -$            
ORANGE 100,000$     100,000$     111,750$     150,000$     150,000$     150,000$     300,000$     
PLACENTIA -$               -$            -$            60,000$      71,192$      200,000$     160,000$     
RANCHO SANTA MARGARITA -$               -$            134,599$     -$            114,964$     -$            -$            
SAN CLEMENTE 56,500$      -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
SAN JUAN CAPISTRANO 160,025$     -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            
SANTA ANA -$               100,000$     200,000$     200,000$     -$            -$            -$            
SEAL BEACH -$               10,700$      38,000$      15,000$      -$            -$            -$            
STANTON -$               -$            120,000$     -$            -$            -$            -$            
TUSTIN 100,000$     63,501$      155,268$     -$            119,018$     200,000$     169,556$     
VILLA PARK -$               97,000$      200,000$     -$            -$            -$            175,000$     
WESTMINSTER 100,000$     99,240$      172,500$     194,565$     125,414$     88,250$      -$            
YORBA LINDA -$               73,095$      -$            -$            -$            -$            70,400$      

ATTACHMENT B



Bolsa Chica Channel-
Frontal Hunington Harbour

Lower
San Gabriel

River

Temescal
Wash

San Diego Creek
Lower

Santa Ana
River

Newport Bay-
Frontal Pacific

Ocean

Aliso Creek-
Frontal Gulf of
Santa Catalina

San Juan Creek

San
Mateo
Creek

Lower
Santa Ana

River

D

A N A P O I N
T

A
L I S O V I E

J O

L A G U N A H I L L S

L AG U N A N I G U E
L

N EW P O R T B E A C
H

C
O

S T A M E S
A

HU
NTINGTON BEACH

C

Y
P R E S

S

A
N

A H E I M

S

A N T A A N A

T U S T I N

I R V I N E

CO
UN

TY

OF ORANGE (OC
PARKS)

CO
UN

TY

OF ORANGE (OCW
D)

Santiago
Creek

$3,273,105

$3,403,815

$2,092,079

$635,955

$2,874,590

$2,572,875

$4,561,600

$2,505,262

$2,024,688

$568,100

$211,840

$175,700

$470,236

$2,525,000

Source: OCTA; OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program

11/20/2017

W
:\p

ro
je

ct
s\

S
P

\E
nv

iM
iti

ga
tio

nP
ro

gr
am

\M
ap

s\
Fu

nd
in

gS
um

m
ar

yM
ap

_T
ie

r2
_2

01
7-

09
11

.m
xd

0 52.5

MilesZ

OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program Funding by Agency - Tier 2

OCTA Environmental Cleanup Program
Tier 2 Funding Summary

LEAD AGENCY 2013 2014
ALISO VIEJO -$                 568,100$          
ANAHEIM 1,085,700$       2,318,115$       
COSTA MESA 2,871,600$       1,690,000$       
CYPRESS -$                 211,840$          
DANA POINT 470,236$          -$                 
HUNTINGTON BEACH -$                 635,955$          
IRVINE 3,273,105$       -$                 
LAGUNA HILLS -$                 175,700$          
LAGUNA NIGUEL 883,300$          1,621,962$       
NEWPORT BEACH 726,810$          2,147,780$       
SANTA ANA 2,572,875$       -$                 
TUSTIN 824,688$          1,200,000$       
COUNTY OF ORANGE (OC PARKS) -$                 2,525,000$       
COUNTY OF ORANGE (OCWD) -$                 2,092,079$       

ATTACHMENT C



 

 COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

 

 Orange County Transportation Authority 

 550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 11, 2017 

 

 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 

  

From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update 

 

 

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of December 4, 2017 

 

             Present: Directors Do, Delgleize, Donchak, M. Murphy, and Nelson 

            Absent:  Directors Spitzer and Steel 

 
 
 Committee Vote 

 
This item was passed by the Members present. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation 

 

  Receive and file as an information item. 
 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 4, 2017 
 
 
To: Regional Highways and Planning Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 includes a program to deliver comprehensive mitigation for the 
environmental impacts of freeway projects in exchange for streamlined project 
approvals from the state and federal resources agencies. To date, the 
Environmental Mitigation Program has acquired conservation properties and 
provided funding for habitat restoration projects as part of the Natural Community 
Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan. On a parallel path, the  
Orange County Transportation Authority has developed a similar approach to 
work with the State Water Resources Control Board and the United States Army 
Corps of Engineers to obtain state and federal clean water permits to facilitate 
the implementation of the Measure M2 freeway projects as a co-benefit.  A status 
report of these efforts and program update is presented. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
Measure M2 (M2) includes an innovative comprehensive Environmental 
Mitigation Program (EMP) to address the biological impacts of M2 freeway 
projects. This was achieved through a Natural Community Conservation 
Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan (NCCP/HCP), approved by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife and the United States Fish and Wildlife  
Service (Wildlife Agencies). An endowment was also established for the 
maintenance and operation of the seven conservation properties (Preserves), as 
committed in the NCCP/HCP. Deposits began in March 2017 for the endowment 
that is anticipated to be funded over a ten to 12-year period.   These actions allow 
for streamlined permitting of M2 projects. 
 
  



Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 2 
 

 
On a parallel path, staff from the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
and the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) have been 
coordinating with the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board)  
and the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), collectively referred to 
as Regulatory Agencies. This coordination has defined a process to utilize some 
of the same mitigation within the NCCP/HCP to also obtain state and federal 
clean water permits. This programmatic approach will further streamline the 
Regulatory Agencies permit process for the M2 freeway projects. It is anticipated 
that the Regulatory Agencies will issue these permits (and/or authorization letter) 
to OCTA and Caltrans in 2017. A status report on the program is presented. 
 
Discussion 
 
NCCP/HCP Update 
 
The NCCP/HCP was approved by the Board of Directors (Board) at their meeting 
on November 28, 2016. In June 2017, the Wildlife Agencies issued the permits 
to OCTA.  As a result, the M2 environmental process will be streamlined allowing 
OCTA to move forward with the M2 freeway projects (as described in the 
NCCP/HCP).  
 
As part of the NCCP/HCP process, a $34.5 million endowment is required to be 
established to fund the long-term management of the Preserves. Payments 
began in March 2017. The second deposit into the endowment was made in 
August 2017, and a quarterly investment report was brought to the Board on 
November 13, 2017. Staff will continue to oversee and provide endowment 
updates to the Finance and Administration Committee and Environmental 
Oversight Committee (EOC) on a regular basis.  
 
In compliance with the NCCP/HCP, resource management plans (RMPs) have 
been developed for each of the conservation properties within the Preserves. 
These Preserves are depicted in Attachment A. The RMPs provide guidelines for 
the management and monitoring of the Preserves in accordance with the goals 
and objectives outlined in the NCCP/HCP. Key components of the RMPs include 
guidance for ongoing protection, preservation, and adaptive management of the 
natural resources found within each Preserve.  
 
In September 2017, five of the seven OCTA Preserve RMPs were finalized. 
These include: Ferber Ranch, Hafen, MacPherson, O’Neill Oaks, and  
Saddle Creek South. OCTA publicly released the remaining two Preserve RMPs 
(Aliso Canyon and Hayashi) on August 30, 2017. These RMPs were available for 
public review for a 90-day period through December 1, 2017. OCTA held two 
public meetings on October 5, 2017 and October 25, 2017, in Laguna Niguel and 
Brea to solicit public input, and a workshop at the regularly scheduled EOC 
meeting on October 4, 2017. The RMPs and comment forms are posted online 
at www.OCTA.net/RMP.  OCTA anticipates finalizing these RMPs by mid-2018. 
  

http://www.octa.net/RMP


Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update Page 3 
 

 
Clean Water Act Permits Update 
 
The construction of the M2 freeway projects is anticipated to result in impacts to 
jurisdictional waters of the state and United States. These impacts will require 
that OCTA obtain Sections 401 and 404 clean water permits from the Regulatory 
Agencies, which will require mitigation. To maximize the benefits of the 
NCCP/HCP, OCTA is utilizing some of that same mitigation to obtain Regulatory 
Agencies’ authorizations. These authorizations will enable OCTA to utilize the 
mitigation, as well as lay out a standard process for project level 401 and 404 
permit issuance. Funding to cover the Regulatory Agency requirements in lieu of 
project-level permit funding was authorized by the Board on September 11, 2017. 
Staff anticipates these permits will be issued to OCTA and Caltrans in 2017. 
 
OCTA will continue to manage the Preserves until a long-term manager(s) is in 
place.  Staff will continue to monitor the progress of all restoration projects and 
provide status updates to the EOC until each project is implemented. Attachment B 
includes a more comprehensive list of EMP tasks to be implemented in 2018 and 
the coming years.   
 
Summary 
 
M2 includes an EMP that provides funding for programmatic mitigation to off-set 
impacts of the 13 freeway projects. To expedite the delivery of the freeway 
projects, this program was initiated to implement early project mitigation through 
property acquisition and habitat restoration. This program is administered through 
a NCCP/HCCP, which was completed and approved by the Board in  
November 2016. To maximize the benefits of the NCCP/HCP, OCTA is utilizing 
some of that same mitigation to obtain clean water act permits. Staff anticipates 
these permits will be issued to OCTA and Caltrans in 2017. A status report on the 
program is presented. 
 
Attachments 
 
A. OCTA NCCP/HCP Preserves and Funded Restoration Projects 
B. Environmental Mitigation Program Ongoing Tasks 

 
 

Prepared by:  Approved by: 

Lesley Hill  Kia Mortazavi 
Project Manager, Environmental 
Mitigation Program 
(714) 560-5759 
 

 Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 
 

 
 

 



! (

! (

! ( ! (

! (
! (

! (

! (

")")")")")")") ") ") ")
")
")

")

")

LO
S

 A
N

G
E

LE
S

C
O

U
N

TY

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
C

O
U

N
T

Y

S
A

N
 B

E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

C
O

U
N

TY

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
C

O
U

N
TY

OR
AN

GE

SA
NT

A A
NA

FU
LL

ER
TO

N

AN
AH

EI
M

LA
GU

NA
NI

GU
EL

SE
AL

BE
AC

H

TU
ST

IN

BR
EA

MI
SS

IO
N

VI
EJ

O

GA
RD

EN
 G

RO
VE

NE
W

PO
RT

BE
AC

H

CO
ST

A
ME

SA
LA

KE
FO

RE
ST

LA
GU

NA
BE

AC
H

W
ES

TM
IN

ST
ER

BU
EN

A
PA

RK

VI
LL

A
PA

RK

PL
AC

EN
TI

A

CY
PR

ES
S

LO
S 

AL
AM

IT
OS

ST
AN

TO
N

LA
PA

LM
A

RA
NC

HO
SA

NT
A

MA
RG

AR
ITA

AL
IS

O
VI

EJ
O

HU
NT

IN
GT

ON
BE

AC
H

YO
RB

A 
LIN

DA

LA
GU

NA
W

OO
DS

LA
GU

NA
HI

LL
S

DA
NA

PO
IN

T

LA
HA

BR
A

FO
UN

TA
IN

VA
LL

EY

SA
N 

JU
AN

CA
PI

ST
RA

NO

IR
VI

NE

A»

?l

%&l(

A¥

A¾

?ê

A»

!"a$

A»

?k

A»

!"̂$

%&o(

%&l(

A¾

AÊ

!"̂$

!"̂$
Aß

O
C

TA
 N

C
C

P
/H

C
P

 P
re

se
rv

es
 a

nd
 F

un
de

d 
R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
P

ro
je

ct
s

8/
14

/2
01

7

So
ur

ce
: O

C
TA

W
:\p

ro
je

ct
s\

S
P

\E
nv

iM
iti

ga
tio

nP
ro

gr
am

\M
ap

s\
O

C
TA

P
re

se
rv

es
_F

un
de

dR
es

to
ra

tio
n_

20
17

-0
32

8.
m

xd

0
5

2.
5

M
ile

s
Z

Ch
ino

 H
ills

St
at

e P
ar

k
No

rth
 C

oa
l

Ca
ny

on

Ha
ya

sh
i

W
es

t
Lo

m
a

Lo
we

r
Si

lve
ra

do
Ca

ny
on

Sa
dd

le
Cr

ee
k

So
ut

h

Fe
rb

er
Ra

nc
h

O'
Ne

ill
Oa

ks

Ha
fen

Ma
cP

he
rs

on

Be
e

Fla
t

Aq
ua

Ch
ino

n
Ha

rri
ett

 W
ied

er
Re

gio
na

l P
ar

k

Al
iso

Cr
ee

k

Al
iso

Ca
ny

on
Ci

ty 
Pa

rc
el

Bi
g

Be
nd

Fa
irv

iew
Pa

rk
UC

I
Ec

olo
gic

al
Re

se
rv

e

Sa
n 

Di
eg

o 
Cr

ee
k S

AM
P

Sa
n 

Ju
an

 C
re

ek
 S

AM
P

M
2 

Fr
ee

w
ay

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
/ C

ov
er

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s

! (

US
FS

Da
m

s

O
C

TA
 P

re
se

rv
es

R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

P
ro

je
ct

s

R
eg

ul
at

or
y 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
P

ro
je

ct
s

S
an

 D
ie

go
 C

re
ek

 S
A

M
P

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 S
A

M
P

ATTACHMENT A

alin
Typewritten Text

alin
Typewritten Text

alin
Typewritten Text

alin
Typewritten Text

alin
Typewritten Text



 
ATTACHMENT B 

 
Environmental Mitigation Program Ongoing Tasks 

 
 

Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan (NCCP/HCP) 
 

 Implement the process to utilize the NCCP/HCP mitigation/permits for the  
Measure M2 (M2) freeway projects during construction;  

 Finalize the Aliso Canyon and Hayashi resource management plans (RMPs); 
 Execute conservation easements, seek appropriate long-term land managers, and 

identify entities to assume the title for the Preserves; 
 Continue to coordinate with the endowment fund manager and provide updates to 

the Finance and Administration Committee and the Environmental Oversight 
Committee;  

 Develop annual reports to document environmental permitting for the  
M2 freeway projects and endowment funds;   

 Prepare and develop annual biological monitoring reports for preserve activities 
and funded restoration projects; 

 Identify and fund new restoration projects to satisfy remaining mitigation 
requirements of NCCP/HCP (one species may need additional mitigation); 

 Revisit endowment to determine if the earnings and deposit schedule need 
updates; 

 Revisit the seven RMPs on an as-needed basis to determine any changed 
circumstances warranting updates to the RMPs; and 

 Work with the environmental community and interested parties on public access 
opportunities. 

 
Clean Water Act Permitting 

 
 Obtain Section 401 and 404 authorizations from the Regulatory Agencies*; 
 Execute an agreement between the Orange County Transportation  

Authority (OCTA), the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), and a fund 
manager to manage and disperse a onetime payment of funds on behalf of OCTA 
for the long-term maintenance of the restoration sites; 

 Continue to coordinate with the land owners, Corps, State Water Resources 
Control Board, and the Wildlife Agencies** to finalize or amend the land protection 
documents for the restoration sites; 

 Ensure the restoration projects meet success criteria and performance standards; 
 Record the legal transfer of responsibilities of the site to the land manager;  
 Request a letter from the Corps to release OCTA of further obligations on the 

restoration projects.  
 
 
*Regulatory Agencies - State Water Resources Control Board and the Corps 
**Wildlife Agencies - California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the United States Fish and Wildlife 
    Service  



                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
January 8, 2018 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 

From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Ridership Report   

Transit Committee Meeting of December 14, 2017 

Present: Directors Do, Jones, Murray, Pulido, Shaw, Tait, and 
Winterbottom  

 Absent: None  
 
 
Committee Vote 
 
This item was passed by the Members present.  
 
Directors Jones and Pulido were not present to vote on this item.  

 
Committee Recommendation 

 
Receive and file as an information item.  
 

 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

December 14, 2017 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program Ridership 

Report 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 establishes a competitive program through Project V to fund local 
transit services that complement regional transit. Since inception, the  
Orange County Transportation Authority Board of Directors approved 23 projects 
for a total of $36.5 million in Project V funds.  A ridership report on Project V 
services currently operating is provided for information purposes. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
Project V is a competitive program under Measure M2 (M2) that provides funding 
to develop and implement local transit services. Services eligible for this program 
include community-based circulators, shuttles, trolleys, and demand-responsive 
services that complement regional bus and rail services, and better suit local 
needs in areas not adequately served by regional transit. This competitive 
program provides funding for both capital and operations. Year-round services 
and seasonal/special event shuttles are eligible to compete for funding. 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board of Directors (Board) 
approved six projects for $9.8 million in Project V funds in June 2013.  
The Board subsequently approved $26.7 million for 17 projects in June 2016. 
Local agencies must provide a minimum match of ten percent for the capital 
costs. M2 Project V contributions towards the operations costs are capped at a 
maximum of 90 percent of total service cost, or $9 per boarding, whichever is 
less. 
 
  



Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Ridership Report 

Page 2 
 

 

 

Consistent with the approved Project V Guidelines, all Project V-funded services 
must achieve a performance standard of six passenger boardings per revenue 
vehicle hour (B/RVH) within the first 12 months of operations, and must achieve 
the ten B/RVH within the first 24 months of operations, and maintain ten B/RVH 
every year thereafter. 
 
In August 2015, the Board directed staff to provide ridership reports to the OCTA 
Transit Committee for active Project V services. This report includes ridership 
for the 17 projects in operation through September 2017. The remaining projects 
will be included in the ridership report as additional services begin. 
 
Discussion 
 
Through September 2017, 17 services were in operation using approved Project V 
grants. These services include a mixture of special event, fixed-route, and  
on-demand projects that meet a variety of community needs. In October 2017, 
the City of La Habra’s community circulator was cancelled due to low 
productivity; and 16 services remain in operation today. 
 
The special event services are especially successful. Productivity for the special 
event services averages approximately 21 B/RVH for this reporting period. For 
example, the cities of Laguna Beach, Newport Beach, and San Clemente ranged 
from 20 to 46 B/RVH, well exceeding their respective minimum performance 
standards. 
 
The fixed-route services are not performing at the same level. For example,  
the Mission Viejo community circulator began service October 2016, and 
experienced difficulties meeting the minimum performance standard.  
The City of Mission Viejo has implemented route changes and additional 
marketing efforts to improve productivity and was able to meet the performance 
target in September 2017. The City of Mission Viejo must reach the performance 
target of ten B/RVH by October 2018. The City of Costa Mesa and the  
City of Huntington Beach services recently launched in July 2017 and ridership 
is expected to increase over time. OCTA staff will continue to monitor these 
services, as well as meet with city staff on ideas and concepts to improve 
productivity. 
 
  



Project V Community-Based Transit Circulators Program 
Ridership Report 

Page 3 
 

 

 

The City of San Clemente (San Clemente) is providing demand-responsive 
rideshare services along the area formerly served by OCTA bus routes 191 and 
193. These two routes were eliminated as part of OC Bus 360° during the 
October 2016 service change. As this was the first project of this nature in 
Orange County, the Board approved this concept as a pilot program for  
two years. On October 9, 2016, San Clemente executed an agreement with 
LYFT, INC (Lyft) to provide on-demand rideshare services. OCTA staff is 
working with San Clemente and Lyft to obtain the necessary information to verify 
usage for this service. 
 
The ridership information for Project V-funded services is provided in Attachment A. 
Staff will continue to work with the local agencies and monitor these services. 
The next update will be provided to the Board in June 2018. 
 
Summary 
 
A status report on Project V services is provided for information purposes. 
Information on additional projects services starting this year will be provided in 
future reports.  
 
Attachments  
 

A. Project V Services – Ridership Report 
B. Project V Services – Project Details 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 Prepared by: 

 

Approved by: 

 
 

 

Christina Moore 
 

Kia Mortazavi  
Transportation Funding Analyst 
(714) 560-5452  

Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 



ATTACHMENT A

Agency Service Description Project V 
Funding Service Type Service Start 

Month/Year

1 Boardings Per 
Revenue Vehicle 

Hour (B/RVH)

Costa Mesa
Local Circulator From Costa 
Mesa To Anaheim  2,790,638$        Local Circulator July 2017 1

Dana Point
Summer Trolley and 
Seasonal Shuttle 2,456,511$        Seasonal Service June 2015 16

Dana Point
Pacific Coast Highway and 
Special Event Trolley 905,968$           Seasonal Service June 2017 17

Huntington Beach Holiday and Event Shuttle 93,287$             Special Event July 2015 12

Huntington Beach
Seasonal Local Transit 
Service 917,700$           Seasonal Service July 2017 2

La Habra 2 Local Community Circulator 1,719,839$        Local Circulator August 2014 6

La Habra Special Event Service 96,810$             Special Event Novemeber 2016 7

Laguna Beach
Summer Weekend Trolley 
and Seasonal Service 3,559,860$        Special Event March 2015 34

Laguna Beach

Residential Trolley Service 
Year Round and Seasonal 
Service 1,967,400$        

Year Round and 
Seasonal Service July 2017 8

Lake Forest
Commuter Vanpool Service  
Irvine Station and Ossur 148,855$           Commuter Service July 2015 10

Lake Forest
Commuter Shuttle Service 
Irvine Station and Panasonic 1,226,862$        Commuter Service June 2017 21

Mission Viejo 3 Local Community Circulator 3,332,879$        Local Circulator October 2016 4

Newport Beach
Balboa Peninsula Seasonal 
Trolley 685,454$           Seasonal Service June 2017 20

County of Orange
Local Circulator and Special 
Event Service 2,041,547$        

Local Circulator and 
Special Event June 2017 7

San Clemente
Summer Weekend Trolley 
and Seasonal Service 1,181,393$        

Seasonal and 
Special Event May 2017 46

San Clemente 4 On-Demand Rideshare 914,400$           Rideshare Service October 2016 --

San Juan Capistrano Summer Trolley Service 95,486$             
Seasonal and 
Special Event June 2017 18

1. Rounded to the nearest whole number.

2. This service has been cancelled by the City of La Habra effective October 2017, due to low productivity. 

3. Mission Viejo has experienced an upward trend in boardings per revenue vehicle hour in recent months and achieved nine B/RVH in September. 

4. The average ridership for this service cannot be confirmed at this time. Awaiting confirmation from the service provider, LYFT, INC.

Project V Services - Ridership Report

2017 Ridership reported for the period ending September 30, 2017.



ATTACHMENT B 
Project V Services - Project Details 

 
Costa Mesa (Local Circulator):  Project V provides $2.79 million in funding for capital 
costs, including bus stop improvements, signage, furniture and shelter upgrades, and 
operation costs over seven years. The service will connect the City of Costa Mesa  
(Costa Mesa) to the City of Anaheim Resort Area. The bus will circulate through the two 
cities picking up passengers at various hotels and attractions. Costa Mesa will provide a 
10.74 percent match for the capital improvements and a minimum ten percent match for 
operations. 
 
Dana Point (Seasonal Service): Project V provides over $2.45 million over seven years 
for the capital and operational cost to provide summer trolley and seasonal shuttle 
services. The City of Dana Point (Dana Point) provides a match of 11 percent for capital 
improvements that cover the leasing cost of the vehicles. For the service, Dana Point 
provides a ten percent match in the first year of service, 20 percent in the second year, 
and 28.68 percent for the remaining years (fiscal years 2016-17-2021).  
 
Dana Point (Seasonal Service): Project V provides $905,968 to cover operational cost 
over seven years. Dana Point expanded their current Trolley Service adding stops at 
Costco, Ralphs and Albertsons Shopping Center, Senior Center, and Community Center, 
providing connections to cities of San Juan Capistrano and Laguna Niguel. New stop 
locations have been added to fill the service gaps of discontinued Orange County 
Transportation Authority (OCTA) bus routes 187 and 191. For the service, Dana Point 
provides at minimum an 11 percent match.  
 
Huntington Beach (Special Event Shuttle): Project V provides $93,287 for the  
Huntington Beach Holiday and Event Shuttle over seven years. The City of Huntington 
Beach (Huntington Beach) is paying a minimum 30 percent match, and the service cost 
is estimated to be $12,000 per year. Services consist of operating five shuttles on the  
4th of July between 8:00 am and 11:00 pm, and five shuttles during the U.S. Open Event 
from 8:00 am to 11:00 pm.  
 
Huntington Beach (Seasonal Service): Project V provides $917,700 in funding for capital 
costs including planned shuttle stop improvements, signage, amenities repair, and covers 
operation costs over seven years. This is a seasonal local transit service that will both 
supplement current OCTA services by providing additional connection opportunities to 
existing routes and provide local circulation connecting many of Huntington Beach's key 
destinations and target communities. The service will operate for approximately  
12-14 hours per day. Huntington Beach provides at minimum a ten percent match.  
 
La Habra (Local Circulator) Cancelled: Project V provides $1.7 million over seven years 
for capital and operations costs, which includes the purchase of two buses and  
related bus stop amenities including shelters, benches, sidewalks, and curb and gutter  
ramps. La Habra Express Service provided weekday service within the  
City of La Habra (La Habra), with additional stops at St. Jude Medical Center and the 
Fullerton Transportation Center for approximately ten hours per day. In August 2015, the 
OCTA Board of Directors reduced La Habra’s Project V funding due to the cancellation 



Project V Services - Project Details 
 

2 
 

of one of the routes. La Habra match is at least ten percent. The service was unable to 
reach the required performance goal and was cancelled effective October 2017.  
 
La Habra (Special Event Service): Project V provides $96,810 in funds for La Habra 
Special Event Shuttle services for seven years. La Habra will provide ten percent in 
match, and service cost is estimated to be approximately $15,000 per year.  
Service consists of operating three shuttles for the special events La Habra identified in 
their Project V application. The service operated for La Habra’s Tamale Festival in  
November 2016 and the Citrus Fair in May 2017.  
 
Laguna Beach (Special Event Service): Project V provides $3.56 million in funding for 
vehicle purchase and operational cost over seven years. The City of  
Laguna Beach (Laguna Beach) started this service in 2015. The project provides 
seasonal service for 24 weekends through the year, and can increase up to 42 weekends 
based on the demand. This service operates on Fridays from 4:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m., 
Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m., and on Sundays from 11:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., 
with six trolleys on a fixed-route. Laguna Beach’s match for this project is ten percent for 
the purchase of trolleys, 42 percent for the first year of service, and then 20 percent for 
the remaining time period.  
 
Laguna Beach (Year Round and Seasonal Service): Project V provides $1.97 million in 
funding for the purchase of one trolley, transportation technology systems, and 
operational cost over seven years. The service is a year-round weekend residential trolley 
service that supplements Laguna Beach's Project V-funded weekend trolley service along 
Pacific Coast Highway. Routes interconnect and meet at the Transit Depot on  
20-30 minute intervals connecting to OCTA routes 1 and 89 and Laguna Beach's 
"Coastal" and "Canyon" routes during the summer festival season. The special event 
services will be provided for President’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day,  
Labor Day, Veterans Day, Patriots Day Parade, Taste of Laguna, Rotary Car Show,  
Oak Street Halloween Festival, KX93.5 Fall Concert, Sawdust Winter Fantasy,  
Montage Holiday Tree Lighting, and Hospitality Night. For the service, Laguna Beach 
provides a ten percent match, at minimum. 
 
Lake Forest (Commuter Service): Project V provides $148,855 over seven years to 
support vanpool services for Ossur.  The City of Lake Forest (Lake Forest) is providing a 
minimum match of ten percent. This service, which was implemented in 2015, runs two 
passenger shuttles between Metrolink Train Station and Ossur Americas.  
 
Lake Forest (Commuter Service): Project V provides $1.23 million in funding to cover 
operational cost over seven years. The service runs three passenger shuttles between 
Metrolink Train Station and Panasonic Avionics. This service operates 251 days of the 
year during the commute hours in the morning and afternoon. Lake Forest is providing a 
minimum match of ten percent. 
 
Mission Viejo (Local Circulator): Project V provides $3.33 million in funding for capital 
costs including bus stop shelters, signage, vehicle branding, and covers operational cost 



Project V Services - Project Details 
 

3 
 

over seven years. The City of Mission Viejo (Mission Viejo) provides a minimum match of 
30 percent for capital improvements and a minimum ten percent match for the operating 
costs. On behalf of Mission Viejo, OCTA started operating the service in October 2016. 
The local community circulator connects Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Metrolink Station, 
The Shops at Mission Viejo, Mission Hospital, Saddleback College, residential areas, 
community center, and Capistrano Valley High School. This service operates for 
approximately 12 hours a day during the week, Monday through Friday. 
 
Newport Beach (Seasonal Service): Project V provides $685,454 in funds over seven 
years for the capital and operational cost to operate the Balboa Peninsula Trolley.  
Capital improvements will cover the leasing cost of the vehicle and shuttle wrap.  
The service operates during the summer weekends connecting Hoag Hospital, Balboa 
Pier on the Balboa Peninsula via Pacific Coast Highway, Newport Boulevard and Balboa 
Boulevard. The service will operate for a total of 21 days, approximately 11-12 hours a 
day, and will also provide service for the 4th of July event. The City of Newport Beach is 
providing a minimum match of 12 percent. 
 
County of Orange (Local Circulator and Special Event Service):  Project V provides  
$2.04 million in funding to cover operational cost over seven years. The local community 
transit circulator service connects Metrolink Stations at San Juan Capistrano and  
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo, Saddleback Community College, The Shops at Mission 
Viejo, Mission Hospital, and downtown San Juan Capistrano. Additional special event 
services provides connecting Sendero residential areas to the recreation center and 
commercial areas, as well as the Esencia recreation centers and Ladera commercial 
centers. The County of Orange is providing a minimum match of ten percent. 
 
San Clemente (Seasonal and Special Event Service): Project V provides $1.18 million in 
funding for the purchase of three trolley vehicles and operational cost over seven years.  
This service connects the new Outlets, San Clemente Pier, Metrolink Station,  
El Camino Real, and Avenida Del Mar. Service operates during the summer weekends 
on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays for approximately ten hours day and provides special 
event service on 4th of July, Memorial Day, and Labor Day. The minimum match is  
11 percent. 
 
San Clemente (Rideshare Service): Project V provides $914,400 to support on demand 
rideshare services in The City of San Clemente (San Clemente). San Clemente provides 
a minimum match of ten percent. San Clemente contracted with LYFT, INC to implement 
a year-round rideshare program. The On Demand Rideshare Program service is provided 
within 500 feet of Route 191/193 bus stops previously served by OCTA. 
 
San Juan Capistrano (Seasonal and Special Event Service): Project V provides $95,486 
for one year in capital and operational cost to operate the Summer Trolley Service. 
Service circulates throughout the City of San Juan Capistrano and connects to the  
City of Dana Point Summer Trolley Service. This service operates for 40 days throughout 
the year from June to September on Fridays, Saturdays, and Sundays, providing service 
for approximately five to 11 hours a day. The minimum match is ten percent. 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 22, 2018 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report 
 
 
Overview 
 
The California Government Code authorizes the Orange County Transportation 
Authority Treasurer to submit a quarterly investment report detailing the 
investment activity for the period.  This investment report covers the fourth 
quarter of 2017, October through December, and includes a discussion on the 
Orange County Transportation Authority’s debt portfolio. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file the Quarterly Debt and Investment Report prepared by the 
Treasurer as an information item. 
 
Discussion 
 
The Treasurer is currently managing the Orange County Transportation 
Authority’s (OCTA) investment portfolio totaling $1.4 billion as of  
December 31, 2017.  The portfolio is divided into two managed portfolios: the 
liquid portfolio for immediate cash needs and the short-term portfolio for future 
budgeted expenditures.  In addition to these portfolios, OCTA has funds invested 
in a debt service reserve fund for the 91 Express Lanes. 
 
OCTA’s debt portfolio had an outstanding principal balance of  
$421.6 million as of December 31, 2017.  Approximately 75 percent of the 
outstanding balance is comprised of Measure M2 debt, and 25 percent is 
associated with the 91 Express Lanes Program. 
 
Economic Summary:  The Federal Reserve (Fed) raised the Fed Funds Rate for 
a third time in 2017 at the December 2017 meeting to a range of 1.25 to  
1.50 percent.  This is a doubling of the Fed Funds Rate over the last 12 months.  
Further, at the December 2017 meeting, the Fed penciled in three potential 
interest rate increases for calendar year 2018, the same pace they forecasted in 



Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report Page 2 
 

 

 

September 2017.  During the quarter, President Donald Trump also signed a 
new tax bill into law on December 22, 2017, that is estimated to cut $1.5 trillion 
in business and household taxes. 
 
Gross Domestic Product expanded at a revised 3.3 percent annual rate during 
the third quarter of 2017, which was boosted by a rebound in government 
investment.  That was the fastest pace since the third quarter of 2014 and a 
pickup from the second quarter’s 3.1 percent rate.  The economy was previously 
reported to have grown at a 3 percent pace in the July-September period. It was 
the first time since 2014 that the economy experienced growth of 3 percent or 
more for two straight quarters.  
 
The economic recovery since the 2007-2009 recession is now in its eighth year 
and showing little signs of fatigue. The economy is being powered by a tightening 
labor market, which has largely maintained a strong performance that started 
during former President Barack Obama’s first term. 
 
Debt Portfolio Activity:  There was no debt activity during the quarter.  The 
outstanding balances for each of OCTA’s debt securities are presented in 
Attachment A. 
 
Investment Portfolio Compliance:  There were no compliance violations during 
the quarter.  OCTA continues its policy of reviewing the contents of the 
investment portfolio on a weekly basis to ensure compliance for each day of the 
week.  Attachment B provides a comparison of the portfolio holdings as of 
December 31, 2017, to the diversification guidelines of the policy. 
 
Investment Portfolio Activity:  On November 7, 2017, OCTA transferred  
$50 million to the liquid portfolio from the short-term portfolio managed by the 
external portfolio managers.  The funds were required to pay the project costs 
related to the ongoing Interstate 405 Improvement Project, along with the 
traditional OCTA program and service expenses.   
 
Investment Portfolio Performance Versus Selected Benchmarks: OCTA uses 
Clearwater Analytics to calculate performance for each manager within the 
respective portfolios.  The performance reports calculate monthly total rates of 
return based upon the market value of the portfolios they manage.  The 
securities are marked-to-market daily based on pricing data provided by the 
custody banks.   
 
OCTA has calculated the total returns for each of the investment managers for 
short-term operating monies and has compared the returns to specific 
benchmarks as shown in Attachment C.  Attachment D contains an annualized 



Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report Page 3 
 

 

 

total return performance comparison by investment manager for the previous 
two years.  Attachment E provides a five-year yield comparison between the 
short-term investment managers, Orange County Investment Pool, and Local 
Agency Investment Fund. 
 
Intercontinental Exchange (ICE) during the fourth quarter completed its 
acquisition of the Bank of America Merrill Lynch (BAML) Global Research 
division's fixed-income index platform, which will become part of ICE Data 
Services.  This is a strategic decision by both ICE and BAML.  The acquisition 
was seamless to OCTA and the respective investment managers. 
 
The returns for OCTA‘s short-term operating monies are compared to the 
ICE/BAML 1-3 year Treasury (Treasury) and the ICE/BAML 1-3 year  
AAA-A United States Corporate and Government (Corporate/Government) 
benchmarks.  The ICE/BAML 1-3 year indices are among the most commonly 
used short-term fixed-income benchmarks.  Each of the four managers invests 
in a combination of securities that all conform to OCTA’s 2017 Investment Policy.  
For the quarter ending December 31, 2017, the weighted average total return for 
OCTA’s short-term portfolio was -0.14 percent, outperforming the Treasury 
benchmark return of -0.25 percent by 11 basis points and outperforming the 
Corporate/Government benchmark return of -0.20 percent by six basis points.  
For the 12-month period ending December 31, 2017, the portfolio’s return totaled 
0.85 percent, exceeding the Treasury benchmark by 43 basis points and 
outperforming the Corporate/Government benchmark by 15 basis points for the 
same period.   
 
With three Fed interest rate hikes during the last 12 months, the market price on 
securities dropped due to the inverse relationship of fixed-income securities and 
interest rates.  Bonds and interest rates have an inverse relationship, meaning 
that when interest rates go up, existing bond prices go down, and when interest 
rates decrease, bond prices increase.   
 
OCTA’s investment managers mitigated the impact of rising interest rates by 
investing in high-quality, non-government fixed-income securities with higher 
yields during the period.  Evidence of this may be seen in a direct comparison of 
the two benchmarks used by OCTA.  The Corporate/Government benchmark 
clearly maintained a performance advantage and was less affected by the rise 
in interest rates than the treasury-only benchmark due to the additional yield 
generated by non-government securities.  This was the case for each of the four 
investment managers as well. 
 
Investment Portfolios:  A summary of each investment manager’s investment 
diversification, performance, and maturity schedule is provided in  



Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report Page 4 
 

 

 

Attachment F.  These summaries provide a tool for analyzing the different returns 
for each manager. 
 
A complete listing of all securities is provided in Attachment G.  Each portfolio 
contains a description of the security, maturity date, book value, market value, 
and yield provided by Clearwater Analytics. 
 
Cash Availability for the Next Six Months:  OCTA has reviewed the cash 
requirements for the next six months.  It has been determined that the liquid and 
the short-term portfolios can fund all projected expenditures during the next six 
months. 
 
Summary 
 
As required under the California Government Code, the Orange County 
Transportation Authority is submitting its quarterly debt and investment report to 
the Board of Directors.  The report summarizes the Orange County 
Transportation Authority’s debt and investment activities for the period  
October 2017 through December 2017.   
 
  



Fourth Quarter 2017 Debt and Investment Report Page 5 
 

 

 

Attachments 
 
A. Orange County Transportation Authority Outstanding Debt  

December 31, 2017. 
B. Orange County Transportation Authority Investment Policy Compliance 

December 31, 2017. 
C. Orange County Transportation Authority Short-term Portfolio 

Performance Review Quarter Ending December 31, 2017. 
D. Orange County Transportation Authority Short-term Portfolio 

Performance December 31, 2017. 
E. Orange County Transportation Authority Comparative Yield Performance 

December 31, 2017. 
F. Investment Manager Diversification and Maturity Schedules  

December 31, 2017. 
G. Orange County Transportation Authority Portfolio Listing  

as of December 31, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 Approved by: 

 
Rodney Johnson  Andrew Oftelie 
Deputy Treasurer 
Treasury Public Finance 
714-560-5675 

 Executive Director,  
Finance and Administration  
714-560-5649 

 























































                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
January 22, 2018 

To: Members of the Board of Directors 

From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Local Agencies’ Interest in Project V Call for Projects   

Transit Committee Meeting of January 11, 2018 

Present: Directors Do, Jones, Murray, Shaw, Tait, and Winterbottom  
 Absent: Director Pulido  

 
 
Committee Vote 
 
This item was passed by the Members present.  
 
Director Winterbottom was not present to vote on this item. 

 
Committee Recommendation 

 

  Direct staff to return with revised Project V Guidelines for a potential call for 
  projects that focuses on special event and seasonal services. 

 
 

 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

January 11, 2018 
 
 
To: Transit Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer   
 
Subject: Local Agencies’ Interest in Project V Call for Projects 
 
 
Overview 
 
Measure M2 establishes a competitive program through Project V to fund local 
bus transit services such as shuttles and trolleys that complement regional 
transit services. In preparation for a future Measure M2 Project V call for projects, 
staff requested local agencies to submit letters of interest. A report on the local 
agencies’ interest in a future Project V call for projects is provided, including a 
recommendation to return with updated funding guidelines for a future call for 
projects.   
 
Recommendation  
 
Direct staff to return with revised Project V Guidelines for a potential call for 
projects that focuses on special event and seasonal services. 

 
Background 
 
Project V is a competitive program under Measure M2 (M2) that provides funding 
to develop and implement local transit services. Services currently eligible for 
this program include community-based transportation and demand-responsive 
services that complement regional bus and rail services, and better suit local 
needs in areas not adequately served by regional transit. This competitive 
program provides funding for both capital and operations. Year-round services 
and seasonal/special event shuttles have been eligible to compete for funding. 
 
Consistent with the approved Project V Guidelines, all Project V-funded services 
must achieve a performance standard of six passenger boardings per revenue 
vehicle hour (B/RVH) within the first 12 months of operations, must achieve ten 
B/RVH within the first 24 months of operations, and maintain ten B/RVH every 
year thereafter. 
  



Local Agencies’ Interest in Project V Call for Projects Page 2 
 

 

 

Status Update on the Projects Currently Funded with Project V Funds 
 
Since inception, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)  
Board of Directors (Board) has approved 23 projects with operational and 
maintenance elements for a total of $36.5 million in Project V funds. There are 
16 services currently in operation. These services include a mixture of special 
event, fixed-route, and on-demand projects. An update on these services was 
recently provided to the Transit Committee on December 14, 2017 and the Board 
on January 8, 2018. The special event services have been especially successful 
with productivity levels averaging approximately 21 B/RVH as reported in the 
previous ridership report. The fixed-route services have not performed at the 
same level, and several agencies have experienced difficulties in meeting the 
minimum performance standard.   
 
Discussion 
 
Letters of Interest in a Future Call for Projects (call) 
 
To further serve the mobility needs of the communities in Orange County, staff 
requested letters of interest from local agencies to determine the timing for  
a future round of Project V funding. Staff received 13 letters of interest for  
a future round of Project V funding from local agencies which include Buena 
Park, Dana Point, Irvine, Laguna Beach, Laguna Niguel, Mission Viejo, Orange, 
Placentia, San Clemente, San Juan Capistrano, Santa Ana, Tustin,  
and Yorba Linda.  
 
Approximately half of the cities submitted an interest in seasonal or special event 
services.  A few agencies are interested in year-round services, and one agency 
expressed an interest for on-demand transit service similar to OC Flex.   
An overview of the letters of interest submitted by local agencies and potential 
projects for consideration in the next round of Project V funds is provided in 
Attachment A. 
 
Considering the level of interest in providing new community-based service and 
the lessons learned from existing projects and successes, staff is proposing that 
the next Project V call target local agency-led special events and seasonal 
service.  Staff is also proposing not to consider planning studies due to lack of 
interest, so that focus can be entirely on operational services in the next call.  
Further, given experience with prior year-round Project V services, staff believes 
the next call should be focused on seasonal and special event services only.  
Staff also believes it is prudent to wait until after the pilot OC Flex is underway, 
and lessons can be learned from this program and the current on-demand 
service in San Clemente.  This way, staff can gain more experience with 



Local Agencies’ Interest in Project V Call for Projects Page 3 
 

 

 

deployment of on-demand services before considering such projects for grant 
funding.  Also, with the next call having an emphasis on seasonal and special 
event services, OCTA should not be considered as the operator for any  
Project V proposed services.  However, OCTA can be a resource to the local 
agencies and provide support to local agencies. 
 
Summary 
 
Currently, 13 local agencies have expressed interest in the next call. However, 
agencies who have not submitted a letter of interest are still eligible to apply.  In 
preparation for the next M2 Project V call, OCTA staff is requesting Board 
approval to work with local agencies and return with revised Project V Guidelines 
to issue the next call that focuses only on local agency-led special events and 
seasonal service. 
 
Attachment 
 
A. Project V Letters of Interest Overview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

  
Approved by: 

 

Jodie McCann   Kia Mortazavi  
Senior Transportation Funding Analyst 
(714) 560-5320 

 Executive Director, Planning 
(714) 560-5741 

 



  ATTACHMENT A 
 

Project V Letters of Interest Overview 

Local Agency 

 

Project Title 

 

Type 

 

2016 Call for Projects 

Project V Planning Study 

Buena Park Shuttle Service Year-Round No 

Dana Point Dana Point Trolley Seasonal Expansion No 

Irvine To Be Determined To Be Determined No 

Laguna Beach 
Summer Weekend 

Service 
Seasonal No 

Laguna Niguel Trolley Service Year-Round Yes 

Mission Viejo Local Circulator Year-Round Expansion Yes 

Orange Feasibility Study Special Events No 

Placentia 
On-Demand and  

Special Events 
Pilot and Special Events Yes 

San Clemente Trolley Service 
Seasonal/Year-Round 

Expansion 
No 

San Juan 

Capistrano 
Summer Trolley Seasonal No 

Santa Ana Downtown Trolley Seasonal/Special Events No 

Tustin Local Circulator Year-Round Yes 

Yorba Linda Senior Mobility Program  

Senior Mobility Program 

Expansion from four to  

five days per week 

No 







                                                                                       COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

 
February 12, 2018 
 
 
To: Members of the Board of Directors 
    
From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board 

Subject: Capital Programs Division – Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Executive Committee Meeting of February 5, 2018 
 
Present: Chairwoman Bartlett, Vice Chairman Shaw, and Directors Do, 

Hennessey, and M. Murphy 
Absent: Directors Murray and Nelson 
 
 
Committee Vote 

Following the discussion, no action was taken on this receive and file as on 
information item. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

  

Receive and file as an information item. 



 

Orange County Transportation Authority 
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282) 

February 5, 2018 
 
 
To: Executive Committee 
 
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 

Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics  
 
 
Overview 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority’s Strategic Plan key strategies and 
objectives to achieve the goals for Mobility and Stewardship include delivery of 
all Capital Action Plan projects on time and within budget.  The Capital Action 
Plan is used to create a performance metric to assess capital project delivery 
progress on highway, grade separation, rail, and facility projects.  This report 
provides an update on the Capital Action Plan delivery and performance metrics. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive and file as an information item. 
 
Background 
 
The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Capital Programs Division 
is responsible for project development and delivery of highway, grade 
separation, rail, and facility projects from the beginning of the environmental 
approval phase through construction completion.  Project delivery commitments 
reflect defined project scope, costs, and schedules. Project delivery 
commitments shown in the Capital Action Plan (CAP) are key strategies and 
objectives to achieve the Strategic Plan goals for Mobility and Stewardship. 
 
This report provides an update on the CAP performance metrics, which are the 
fiscal year (FY) snapshot of the planned CAP project delivery milestones in the 
budgeted FY. The Capital Programs Division also provides Metrolink commuter 
rail ridership, revenue, and on-time performance reports and metrics as part of 
rail program updates.   



Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Page 2 
 

 

 

Discussion 
 
The Capital Programs Division objective is to deliver projects on schedule and 
within the approved project budget.  Key project cost and schedule commitments 
are captured in the CAP, which is regularly updated with new projects and project 
status (Attachment A).  The CAP is categorized into four key groupings of 
projects; freeway projects, grade separation projects, rail and station projects, 
and key facility projects.  Simple milestones are used as performance indicators 
of progress in project delivery.  The CAP performance metrics provides a FY 
snapshot of the milestones targeted for delivery in the budgeted FY, and 
provides both transparency and measurement of annual capital project delivery 
performance.   
 
The CAP project cost represents the total cost of the project across all phases 
of project delivery, including support costs, and right-of-way (ROW) and 
construction capital costs.  The established baseline cost is shown in comparison 
to either the actual or forecast cost.  The baseline costs may be shown as 
to-be-determined (TBD) if project scoping studies or other project scoping 
documents have not been approved, and may be updated as project delivery 
progresses and milestones are achieved.  Projects identified in the Orange County 
local transportation sales tax Measure M2 (M2) are identified with the OC Go 
logo and corresponding M2 project letter.  The CAP update is also included in 
the M2 Quarterly Report. 
 
The CAP summarizes the very complex capital project critical path delivery 
schedules into eight key milestones. 
 
Begin Environmental The date work on the environmental clearance, 

project report, or preliminary engineering phase 
begins. 

 
Complete Environmental The date environmental clearance and project 

approval is achieved. 
 
Begin Design The date final design work begins, or the date 

when a design-build contract begins. 
 
Complete Design The date final design work is 100 percent 

complete and approved. 
 
  



Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Page 3 
 

 

 

Construction Ready The date contract bid documents are ready  
for advertisement, including certification of 
ROW, all agreements executed, and contract 
constraints cleared. 

 
Advertise for Construction The date a construction contract is advertised 

for bids. 
 
Award Contract The date the construction contract is awarded. 
 
Construction Complete The date all construction work is completed, 

and the project is open to public use.  
 
These delivery milestones reflect progression across the project delivery phases 
shown below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Project schedules reflect approved milestone dates in comparison to forecast or 
actual milestone dates.  Milestone dates may be shown as TBD if project scoping 
or approval documents have not been finalized and approved, or if the delivery 
schedule has not been negotiated with the agency or consultant implementing 
the specific phase of a project.  Planned milestone dates can be revised to reflect 
new dates from approved baseline schedule changes.  Actual dates will be 
updated when milestones are achieved, and forecast dates will be updated to 
reflect project delivery status. 
 
CAP milestones achieved in the second quarter FY 2017-18 include: 
 
Freeway and Railroad Grade Separation Projects 
 
 The 17th Street railroad grade separation complete environmental milestone 

was achieved on November 3, 2017.  The estimated project cost is 
approximately $133 million, which includes $71.5 million for construction, 
$39.5 million for ROW acquisition and utility relocation, and $22 million 
support cost.  A funding source to advance the project has not been 
identified. 

 

Environmental 
Clearance 

& Project Report 
Design 

Advertise & 
Award 

Contract 
Construction 

Right of Way 



Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Page 4 
 

 

 

 The complete design milestone for the Interstate 5 (I-5) widening between 
Oso Parkway and Alicia Parkway was achieved.  This is the first of three 
contract segments for the widening of I-5 between State Route 73 (SR-73) 
and El Toro Road.  The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) is 
completing the ROW acquisition and final construction contract packaging, 
and the construction ready milestone is planned in the fourth quarter  
FY 2017-18. 

 
 The construction ready milestone for addition of a second high-occupancy 

vehicle (HOV) lane on I-5 between State Route 55 (SR-55) and  
State Route 57 (SR-57) was achieved.  The contract is planned to be 
advertised for construction bids in March 2018. 

 
 The SR-57 northbound landscape replacement planting between 

Orangethorpe Avenue and Lambert Road achieved the construction ready 
milestone.  The landscape construction contract was advertised, and bids will 
be opened on January 31, 2018. 

 
 Construction of the State Route 91 westbound landscape replacement 

planting between SR-57 and I-5 was completed in November 2017.    
 

Rail and Station Projects 
 
 The OC Streetcar project achieved completion of the design, construction 

ready, and advertise construction milestones.  Opening of construction bids 
will be subject to finalization of acquisition and possession of ROW, and the 
federal full funding grant agreement. 

 
The following CAP milestones missed the planned delivery through the second 
quarter of FY 2017-18. 
 
Rail and Station Projects 

 
 The Laguna Niguel/San Juan Capistrano railroad passing siding complete 

design and construction ready milestones were missed.  Final design 
comments from Metrolink and the City of San Juan Capistrano (City) are 
being incorporated.  In addition, the City is requesting the project comply with 
the City jurisdictional municipal separate storm sewer system water quality 
control permitting requirements. OCTA’s longitudinal rail corridor projects 
typically obtain and comply with State and Regional Water Quality Control 
general construction permits and associated post-construction operating 
conditions.  Additional time is needed to resolve the water quality control 



Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Page 5 
 

 

 

permitting concerns with the City. The complete design and construction 
ready milestones will be completed in the fourth quarter, and the advertise 
construction milestone has now moved into the first quarter of FY 2018-19. 

 
 As reported last quarter, the Placentia Metrolink Station construction ready 

milestone was missed.  Discussions are ongoing with BNSF Railway for 
station approval, City of Placentia acquisition of required railroad ROW, and 
the railroad construction and maintenance agreement. The project was 
scheduled to be advertised for construction in the second quarter  
FY 2017-18.  However, based on discussions with BNSF regarding the 
current status of reviews and approvals, the earliest possible advertisement 
for construction would be in the first quarter of FY 2018-19. 

 
Recap of FY 2017-18 Performance Metrics 
 
The CAP and performance metrics snapshot provided at the beginning of  
FY 2017-18 includes 18 planned major project delivery milestones to be 
accomplished through the second quarter.  The CAP and performance metrics 
have been updated to reflect milestones achieved and missed through the 
second quarter (Attachments A and B).  Fifteen milestones were achieved 
through the second quarter of FY 2017-18 (83 percent). 
 
FY 2017-18 Cost and Performance Metric Look Ahead and Risks 
 
Construction of the I-5 HOV lane addition between Pacific Coast Highway and 
San Juan Creek Road, the northerly of three widening segments, should be 
completed in early 2018.  Caltrans and OCTA staff continue evaluating notices 
of potential claims submitted by the contractor for costs which may exceed the 
construction budget.  
 
Combined forecast at completion cost estimates for the three I-5 widening 
segments between SR-73 and El Toro Road still indicate cost may exceed the 
combined $482 million baseline cost estimate by approximately  
$66 million.  Staff will continue to work with Caltrans and consultant designers to 
assess costs and value engineer the design where possible as final design 
progresses toward completion. 
 
The SR-55 widening between Interstate 405 and I-5 carries risk for increased 
construction, ROW, and utility costs as Caltrans prepares 35 percent design and 
the required design exception studies/approvals needed to accommodate the 
widened freeway cross-section. The project team continues to explore 



Capital Programs Division - Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Capital Action Plan Performance Metrics 

Page 6 
 

 

 

opportunities to further reduce impacts to ROW and utilities as the early design 
progresses. 
 
OC Streetcar Project Delays 
 
The OC Streetcar project construction bid opening date, originally advertised for  
March 5, 2018, has been extended to April 27, 2018.  The earliest opportunity 
for contract award is at the June 25, 2018 Board of Directors meeting.  This is 
the result of delays in processing and approvals needed to secure the 
$148,960,000 Federal 5309 New Starts Full Funding Grant Agreement, delays 
in timing to obtain possession of ROW required for construction of the 
maintenance and storage facility, and requests from contractors for additional 
time to prepare bids.   
 
Summary 
 
Significant capital project delivery progress continues to be made and reflected 
in the CAP.  Staff will continue to manage project costs and schedules across all 
project phases to meet project delivery commitments and report quarterly.  
 
Attachments 
 
A. Capital Action Plan, Status Through December 2017  
B. Capital Programs Division, Fiscal Year 2017-18 Performance Metrics 

Through December 2017  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

 
 
 
 

James G. Beil, P.E.  
Executive Director, Capital Programs 
(714) 560-5646 

 



C
ap

ita
l A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
S

ta
tu

s 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
7

U
pd

at
ed

: J
an

ua
ry

 1
8,

 2
01

7

 C
os

t
B

as
el

in
e/

F
or

ec
as

t

(m
ill

io
ns

)
B

eg
in

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
C

om
pl

et
e

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
B

eg
in

D
es

ig
n

C
om

pl
et

e
D

es
ig

n
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ea

dy
A

dv
er

tis
e

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
A

w
ar

d 
C

on
tr

ac
t

C
om

pl
et

e
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Fr
ee

w
ay

 P
ro

je
ct

s:
I-

5,
 P

ic
o 

to
 V

is
ta

 H
er

m
os

a
$1

13
.0

Ju
n-

09
D

ec
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

O
ct

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

A
ug

-1
8

P
ro

je
ct

 C
$8

5.
8

Ju
n-

09
O

ct
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

O
ct

-1
3

M
ay

-1
4

Se
p-

14
D

ec
-1

4
A

pr
-1

8

I-
5,

 V
is

ta
 H

er
m

os
a 

to
 P

ac
ifi

c 
C

oa
st

 H
ig

hw
ay

$7
5.

6
Ju

n-
09

D
ec

-1
1

Ju
n-

11
F

eb
-1

3
Ju

n-
13

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

M
ar

-1
7

P
ro

je
ct

 C
$7

1.
4

Ju
n-

09
O

ct
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

M
ay

-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

Fe
b-

14
Ju

n-
14

Ju
l-1

7

I-
5,

 P
ac

ifi
c 

C
oa

st
 H

ig
hw

ay
 to

 S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 R
oa

d
$7

0.
7

Ju
n-

09
D

ec
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

Ja
n-

13
M

ay
-1

3
A

ug
-1

3
O

ct
-1

3
S

ep
-1

6

P
ro

je
ct

 C
$7

1.
2

Ju
n-

09
O

ct
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

Ja
n-

13
A

pr
-1

3
A

ug
-1

3
D

ec
-1

3
A

pr
-1

8

I-
5,

 I-
5/

O
rt

eg
a 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

$9
0.

9
S

ep
-0

5
Ju

n-
09

Ja
n-

09
N

ov
-1

1
M

ar
-1

2
Ju

n-
12

A
ug

-1
2

S
ep

-1
5

P
ro

je
ct

 D
$7

5.
1

Se
p-

05
Ju

n-
09

Ja
n-

09
D

ec
-1

1
A

pr
-1

2
Ju

n-
12

A
ug

-1
2

Ja
n-

16

I-
5,

 I-
5/

O
rt

eg
a 

In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

(L
an

ds
ca

pe
)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

P
ro

je
ct

 D
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
Ja

n-
14

O
ct

-1
4

Fe
b-

15
A

ug
-1

5
Se

p-
15

Se
p-

16

I-
5,

 S
R

-7
3 

to
 O

so
 P

ar
kw

ay
$1

51
.9

S
ep

-1
1

Ju
n-

14
M

ar
-1

5
Ja

n-
18

M
ay

-1
8

A
ug

-1
8

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n-

24

P
ro

je
ct

 C
 &

 D
   

   
  

$1
90

.5
O

ct
-1

1
M

ay
-1

4
M

ar
-1

5
M

ar
-1

8
F

eb
-1

9
Ju

n-
19

O
ct

-1
9

O
ct

-2
4

I-
5,

 O
so

 P
ar

kw
ay

 to
 A

lic
ia

 P
ar

kw
ay

$1
96

.2
S

ep
-1

1
Ju

n-
14

N
ov

-1
4

Ju
n-

17
D

ec
-1

7
F

eb
-1

8
Ju

n-
18

F
eb

-2
3

P
ro

je
ct

 C
 &

 D
   

   
  

$1
91

.0
O

ct
-1

1
M

ay
-1

4
N

ov
-1

4
D

ec
-1

7
Ju

n-
18

A
ug

-1
8

D
ec

-1
8

A
ug

-2
3

I-
5,

 A
lic

ia
 P

ar
kw

ay
 to

 E
l T

or
o 

R
oa

d
$1

33
.6

S
ep

-1
1

Ju
n-

14
M

ar
-1

5
Ju

n-
18

D
ec

-1
8

Ja
n-

19
M

ay
-1

9
Ju

n-
23

P
ro

je
ct

 C
$1

66
.5

O
ct

-1
1

M
ay

-1
4

M
ar

-1
5

Ju
l-1

8
A

ug
-1

9
D

ec
-1

9
A

pr
-2

0
M

ay
-2

4

I-
5,

 I-
5/

E
l T

or
o 

R
oa

d 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e
T

B
D

A
pr

-1
7

N
ov

-1
9

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

P
ro

je
ct

 D
T

B
D

A
pr

-1
7

N
ov

-1
9

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

I-
5,

 I-
40

5 
to

 S
R

-5
5

T
B

D
M

ay
-1

4
A

ug
-1

8
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

P
ro

je
ct

 B
T

B
D

M
ay

-1
4

N
ov

-1
8

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

I-
5,

 S
R

-5
5 

to
 S

R
-5

7
$3

8.
1

Ju
l-1

1
Ju

n-
13

Ju
n-

15
M

ar
-1

7
Ju

l-1
7

S
ep

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

F
eb

-2
0

P
ro

je
ct

 A
$3

9.
9

Ju
n-

11
A

pr
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Ju
n-

17
D

ec
-1

7
M

ar
-1

8
Ju

l-1
8

S
ep

-2
0

S
R

-5
5,

 I-
40

5 
to

 I-
5 

T
B

D
F

eb
-1

1
N

ov
-1

3
S

ep
-1

7
A

pr
-2

0
D

ec
-2

0
A

pr
-2

1
Ju

l-2
1

A
ug

-2
5

P
ro

je
ct

 F
$4

10
.9

M
ay

-1
1

A
ug

-1
7

Se
p-

17
A

pr
-2

0
D

ec
-2

0
A

pr
-2

1
Ju

l-2
1

A
ug

-2
5

S
R

-5
5,

 I-
5 

to
 S

R
-9

1 
T

B
D

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

20
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

P
ro

je
ct

 F
T

B
D

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

20
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

S
R

-5
7 

N
or

th
bo

un
d 

(N
B

),
 O

ra
ng

ew
oo

d 
A

ve
nu

e 
to

 K
at

el
la

 A
ve

nu
e 

T
B

D
A

pr
-1

6
D

ec
-1

8
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

P
ro

je
ct

 G
T

B
D

A
pr

-1
6

D
ec

-1
8

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 K

at
el

la
 A

ve
nu

e 
to

 L
in

co
ln

 A
ve

nu
e

$7
8.

7
A

pr
-0

8
Ju

l-0
9

Ju
l-0

8
N

ov
-1

0
M

ar
-1

1
M

ay
-1

1
A

ug
-1

1
S

ep
-1

4

P
ro

je
ct

 G
$3

8.
5

A
pr

-0
8

N
ov

-0
9

A
ug

-0
8

D
ec

-1
0

A
pr

-1
1

Ju
l-1

1
O

ct
-1

1
A

pr
-1

5

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 K

at
el

la
 A

ve
nu

e 
to

 L
in

co
ln

 A
ve

nu
e 

(L
an

ds
ca

pe
) 

   
   

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

P
ro

je
ct

 G
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
M

ay
-0

9
Ju

l-1
0

Ju
n-

17
Ju

l-1
7

Se
p-

17
O

ct
-1

8

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

Sc
he

du
le

P
la

n/
F

or
ec

as
t

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4

nfaelnar
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



C
ap

ita
l A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
S

ta
tu

s 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
7

U
pd

at
ed

: J
an

ua
ry

 1
8,

 2
01

7

 C
os

t
B

as
el

in
e/

F
or

ec
as

t

(m
ill

io
ns

)
B

eg
in

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
C

om
pl

et
e

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
B

eg
in

D
es

ig
n

C
om

pl
et

e
D

es
ig

n
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ea

dy
A

dv
er

tis
e

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
A

w
ar

d 
C

on
tr

ac
t

C
om

pl
et

e
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

Sc
he

du
le

P
la

n/
F

or
ec

as
t

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 O

ra
ng

et
ho

rp
e 

A
ve

nu
e 

to
 Y

or
ba

 L
in

da
 B

ou
le

va
rd

$8
0.

2
A

ug
-0

5
D

ec
-0

7
F

eb
-0

8
D

ec
-0

9
A

pr
-1

0
Ju

n-
10

O
ct

-1
0

M
ay

-1
4

P
ro

je
ct

 G
$5

2.
6

A
ug

-0
5

D
ec

-0
7

Fe
b-

08
Ju

l-0
9

D
ec

-0
9

M
ay

-1
0

O
ct

-1
0

N
ov

-1
4

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 Y

or
ba

 L
in

da
 B

ou
le

va
rd

 to
 L

am
be

rt
 R

oa
d

$7
9.

3
A

ug
-0

5
D

ec
-0

7
F

eb
-0

8
D

ec
-0

9
A

pr
-1

0
Ju

n-
10

O
ct

-1
0

S
ep

-1
4

P
ro

je
ct

 G
$5

5.
5

A
ug

-0
5

D
ec

-0
7

Fe
b-

08
Ju

l-0
9

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

O
ct

-1
0

M
ay

-1
4

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 O

ra
ng

et
ho

rp
e 

A
ve

nu
e 

to
 L

am
be

rt
 R

oa
d 

(L
an

ds
ca

pe
) 

 
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

P
ro

je
ct

 G
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
O

ct
-1

4
A

ug
-1

7
D

ec
-1

7
Ja

n-
18

M
ar

-1
8

M
ay

-1
9

S
R

-5
7 

(N
B

),
 L

am
be

rt
 R

oa
d 

to
 T

on
ne

r 
C

an
yo

n
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
Ju

l-2
0

Ja
n-

23
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

S
R

-9
1 

W
es

tb
ou

nd
 (

W
B

),
 I-

5 
to

 S
R

-5
7 

   
   

 
$7

8.
1

Ju
l-0

7
A

pr
-1

0
O

ct
-0

9
F

eb
-1

2
Ju

l-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

N
ov

-1
2

A
pr

-1
6

P
ro

je
ct

 H
$5

9.
7

Ju
l-0

7
Ju

n-
10

M
ar

-1
0

A
pr

-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

O
ct

-1
2

Ja
n-

13
Ju

n-
16

S
R

-9
1 

W
es

tb
ou

nd
 (

W
B

),
 I-

5 
to

 S
R

-5
7 

 (
La

nd
sc

ap
e)

   
   

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

P
ro

je
ct

 H
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

ov
-1

4
A

ug
-1

6
D

ec
-1

6
Fe

b-
17

M
ar

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

S
R

-9
1,

 S
R

-5
7 

to
 S

R
-5

5 
T

B
D

Ja
n-

15
O

ct
-1

8
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

P
ro

je
ct

 I
T

B
D

Ja
n-

15
M

ay
-1

9
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

S
R

-9
1 

(W
B

),
 T

us
tin

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

to
 S

R
-5

5
$4

9.
9

Ju
l-0

8
Ju

l-1
1

Ju
l-1

1
M

ar
-1

3
Ju

l-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

Ju
l-1

6

P
ro

je
ct

 I
$4

2.
8

Ju
l-0

8
M

ay
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

Fe
b-

13
A

pr
-1

3
Ju

n-
13

O
ct

-1
3

Ju
l-1

6

S
R

-9
1,

 S
R

-5
5 

to
 S

R
-2

41
   

   
   

   
   

   
$1

28
.4

Ju
l-0

7
Ju

l-0
9

Ju
n-

09
Ja

n-
11

A
pr

-1
1

Ju
n-

11
S

ep
-1

1
D

ec
-1

2

P
ro

je
ct

 J
$7

9.
6

Ju
l-0

7
A

pr
-0

9
A

pr
-0

9
A

ug
-1

0
D

ec
-1

0
Fe

b-
11

M
ay

-1
1

M
ar

-1
3

S
R

-9
1,

 S
R

-5
5 

to
 S

R
-2

41
 (

La
nd

sc
ap

e)
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

P
ro

je
ct

 J
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
M

ay
-1

2
Fe

b-
13

A
pr

-1
3

Ju
l-1

3
O

ct
-1

3
Fe

b-
15

S
R

-9
1 

E
as

tb
ou

nd
, S

R
-2

41
 to

 S
R

-7
1 

   
 

$1
04

.5
M

ar
-0

5
D

ec
-0

7
Ju

l-0
7

D
ec

-0
8

M
ar

-0
9

M
ay

-0
9

Ju
l-0

9
N

ov
-1

0

P
ro

je
ct

 J
$5

7.
8

M
ar

-0
5

D
ec

-0
7

Ju
l-0

7
D

ec
-0

8
M

ay
-0

9
Ju

n-
09

A
ug

-0
9

Ja
n-

11

91
 E

xp
re

ss
 L

an
es

 to
 S

R
-2

41
 T

ol
l C

on
ne

ct
or

T
B

D
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

T
B

D
N

ov
-1

3
T

B
D

D
ec

-1
6

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

I-
40

5,
 I-

5 
to

 S
R

-5
5 

T
B

D
D

ec
-1

4
Ju

l-1
8

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

P
ro

je
ct

 L
T

B
D

D
ec

-1
4

Ju
l-1

8
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

I-
40

5,
 S

R
-5

5 
to

 I-
60

5 
(D

es
ig

n-
B

ui
ld

) 
$1

,9
00

.0
M

ar
-0

9
M

ar
-1

3
M

ar
-1

4
N

ov
-1

5
F

eb
-1

6
M

ar
-1

6
N

ov
-1

6
M

ay
-2

3

P
ro

je
ct

 K
$1

,9
00

.0
M

ar
-0

9
M

ay
-1

5
M

ar
-1

4
N

ov
-1

5
Fe

b-
16

M
ar

-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

M
ay

-2
3

I-
40

5/
S

R
-2

2 
H

O
V

 C
on

ne
ct

or
 

$1
95

.9
N

/A
N

/A
S

ep
-0

7
S

ep
-0

9
M

ar
-1

0
M

ay
-1

0
A

ug
-1

0
A

ug
-1

4

$1
20

.4
N

/A
N

/A
Se

p-
07

Ju
n-

09
Se

p-
09

Fe
b-

10
Ju

n-
10

M
ar

-1
5

I-
40

5/
I-

60
5 

H
O

V
 C

on
ne

ct
or

$2
60

.4
N

/A
N

/A
S

ep
-0

7
S

ep
-0

9
M

ar
-1

0
M

ay
-1

0
O

ct
-1

0
Ja

n-
15

$1
72

.6
N

/A
N

/A
Se

p-
07

Se
p-

09
Fe

b-
10

M
ay

-1
0

O
ct

-1
0

M
ar

-1
5

I-
40

5/
S

R
-2

2/
I-

60
5 

H
O

V
 C

on
ne

ct
or

 (
La

nd
sc

ap
e)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

Ju
n-

08
M

ay
-0

9
Fe

b-
16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
l-1

6
F

eb
-1

8

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4



C
ap

ita
l A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
S

ta
tu

s 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
7

U
pd

at
ed

: J
an

ua
ry

 1
8,

 2
01

7

 C
os

t
B

as
el

in
e/

F
or

ec
as

t

(m
ill

io
ns

)
B

eg
in

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
C

om
pl

et
e

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
B

eg
in

D
es

ig
n

C
om

pl
et

e
D

es
ig

n
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ea

dy
A

dv
er

tis
e

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
A

w
ar

d 
C

on
tr

ac
t

C
om

pl
et

e
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

Sc
he

du
le

P
la

n/
F

or
ec

as
t

I-
60

5,
 I-

60
5/

K
at

el
la

 In
te

rc
ha

ng
e

T
B

D
A

ug
-1

6
N

ov
-1

8
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D

P
ro

je
ct

 M
T

B
D

A
ug

-1
6

N
ov

-1
8

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

G
ra

de
 S

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

ts
:

S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n 
A

ve
nu

e 
R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n 

  
$5

5.
6

N
/A

S
ep

-0
3

Ja
n-

04
Ju

l-1
0

Ju
l-1

0
O

ct
-1

0
F

eb
-1

1
M

ay
-1

4

P
ro

je
ct

 R
$6

1.
8

N
/A

Se
p-

03
Ja

n-
04

Ju
l-1

0
Ju

l-1
0

O
ct

-1
0

Fe
b-

11
Ja

n-
16

R
ay

m
on

d 
A

ve
nu

e 
R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n

$7
7.

2
F

eb
-0

9
N

ov
-0

9
M

ar
-1

0
A

ug
-1

2
N

ov
-1

2
F

eb
-1

3
M

ay
-1

3
A

ug
-1

8

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$1

24
.8

Fe
b-

09
N

ov
-0

9
M

ar
-1

0
D

ec
-1

2
Ju

l-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

Fe
b-

14
A

ug
-1

8

S
ta

te
 C

ol
le

ge
 B

ou
le

va
rd

 R
ai

lro
ad

 G
ra

de
 S

ep
ar

at
io

n 
 (

F
ul

le
rt

on
)

$7
3.

6
D

ec
-0

8
Ja

n-
11

Ju
l-0

6
A

ug
-1

2
N

ov
-1

2
F

eb
-1

3
M

ay
-1

3
M

ay
-1

8

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$9

7.
0

D
ec

-0
8

A
pr

-1
1

Ju
l-0

6
Fe

b-
13

M
ay

-1
3

Se
p-

13
Fe

b-
14

Ja
n-

18

P
la

ce
nt

ia
 A

ve
nu

e 
R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n 

$7
8.

2
Ja

n-
01

M
ay

-0
1

Ja
n-

09
M

ar
-1

0
M

ay
-1

0
M

ar
-1

1
Ju

n-
11

N
ov

-1
4

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$6

4.
6

Ja
n-

01
M

ay
-0

1
Ja

n-
09

Ju
n-

10
Ja

n-
11

M
ar

-1
1

Ju
l-1

1
D

ec
-1

4

K
ra

em
er

 B
ou

le
va

rd
 R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n

$7
0.

4
Ja

n-
01

S
ep

-0
9

Ja
n-

09
Ju

l-1
0

Ju
l-1

0
A

pr
-1

1
A

ug
-1

1
O

ct
-1

4

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$6

3.
4

Ja
n-

01
Se

p-
09

Fe
b-

09
Ju

l-1
0

Ja
n-

11
Ju

n-
11

Se
p-

11
D

ec
-1

4

O
ra

ng
et

ho
rp

e 
A

ve
nu

e 
R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n 

$1
17

.4
Ja

n-
01

S
ep

-0
9

F
eb

-0
9

D
ec

-1
1

D
ec

-1
1

F
eb

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

S
ep

-1
6

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$1

08
.6

Ja
n-

01
Se

p-
09

Fe
b-

09
O

ct
-1

1
A

pr
-1

2
Se

p-
12

Ja
n-

13
O

ct
-1

6

T
us

tin
 A

ve
nu

e/
R

os
e 

D
riv

e 
R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n

$1
03

.0
Ja

n-
01

S
ep

-0
9

F
eb

-0
9

D
ec

-1
1

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

M
ay

-1
6

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$9

8.
3

Ja
n-

01
Se

p-
09

Fe
b-

09
Ju

l-1
1

Ju
n-

12
O

ct
-1

2
Fe

b-
13

O
ct

-1
6

La
ke

vi
ew

 A
ve

nu
e 

R
ai

lro
ad

 G
ra

de
 S

ep
ar

at
io

n
$7

0.
2

Ja
n-

01
S

ep
-0

9
F

eb
-0

9
O

ct
-1

1
O

ct
-1

2
F

eb
-1

3
M

ay
-1

3
M

ar
-1

7

P
ro

je
ct

 O
$1

07
.4

Ja
n-

01
Se

p-
09

Fe
b-

09
Ja

n-
13

A
pr

-1
3

Se
p-

13
N

ov
-1

3
Ju

n-
17

17
th

 S
tr

ee
t R

ai
lro

ad
 G

ra
de

 S
ep

ar
at

io
n

T
B

D
O

ct
-1

4
Ju

n-
16

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

P
ro

je
ct

 R
T

B
D

O
ct

-1
4

N
ov

-1
7

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

R
ai

l a
nd

 S
ta

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

:
R

ai
l-H

ig
hw

ay
 G

ra
de

 C
ro

ss
in

g 
S

af
et

y 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

$9
4.

4
Ja

n-
08

O
ct

-0
8

Ja
n-

08
S

ep
-0

8
S

ep
-0

8
S

ep
-0

8
A

ug
-0

9
D

ec
-1

1

P
ro

je
ct

 R
$9

0.
4

Ja
n-

08
O

ct
-0

8
Ja

n-
08

Se
p-

08
Se

p-
08

Se
p-

08
A

ug
-0

9
D

ec
-1

1

S
an

 C
le

m
en

te
 B

ea
ch

 T
ra

il 
S

af
et

y 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

$6
.0

S
ep

-1
0

Ju
l-1

1
F

eb
-1

2
A

pr
-1

2
A

pr
-1

2
Ju

l-1
2

O
ct

-1
2

Ja
n-

14

P
ro

je
ct

 R
$5

.0
Se

p-
10

Ju
l-1

1
Fe

b-
12

Ju
n-

12
Ju

n-
12

O
ct

-1
2

M
ay

-1
3

M
ar

-1
4

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o 
P

as
si

ng
 S

id
in

g
$2

5.
3

A
ug

-1
1

Ja
n-

13
M

ar
-1

5
M

ay
-1

6
M

ay
-1

6
A

ug
-1

6
D

ec
-1

6
Ja

n-
19

$3
0.

8
A

ug
-1

1
M

ar
-1

4
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

8
M

ay
-1

8
Ju

l-1
8

N
ov

-1
8

D
ec

-2
0

O
C

 S
tr

ee
tc

ar
$3

10
.4

A
ug

-0
9

M
ar

-1
2

F
eb

-1
6

S
ep

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

A
pr

-1
8

Ju
l-2

0

P
ro

je
ct

 S
$3

10
.4

A
ug

-0
9

M
ar

-1
5

Fe
b-

16
N

ov
-1

7
D

ec
-1

7
D

ec
-1

7
M

ay
-1

8
A

ug
-2

0

P
la

ce
nt

ia
 M

et
ro

lin
k 

S
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
$3

4.
8

Ja
n-

03
M

ay
-0

7
O

ct
-0

8
Ja

n-
11

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

P
ro

je
ct

 R
$3

4.
8

Ja
n-

03
M

ay
-0

7
O

ct
-0

8
Fe

b-
11

F
eb

-1
8

Ju
l-1

8
N

ov
-1

8
Ju

n-
20

A
na

he
im

 C
an

yo
n 

S
ta

tio
n

$2
7.

9
Ja

n-
16

D
ec

-1
6

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

T
B

D
T

B
D

$2
7.

9
Ja

n-
16

Ju
n-

17
F

eb
-1

8
A

pr
-1

9
A

pr
-1

9
Ju

n-
19

S
ep

-1
9

D
ec

-2
0

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4



C
ap

ita
l A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
S

ta
tu

s 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
7

U
pd

at
ed

: J
an

ua
ry

 1
8,

 2
01

7

 C
os

t
B

as
el

in
e/

F
or

ec
as

t

(m
ill

io
ns

)
B

eg
in

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
C

om
pl

et
e

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
B

eg
in

D
es

ig
n

C
om

pl
et

e
D

es
ig

n
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ea

dy
A

dv
er

tis
e

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
A

w
ar

d 
C

on
tr

ac
t

C
om

pl
et

e
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

Sc
he

du
le

P
la

n/
F

or
ec

as
t

O
ra

ng
e 

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ar

ki
ng

 E
xp

an
si

on
$3

3.
2

D
ec

-0
9

D
ec

-1
2

N
ov

-1
0

A
pr

-1
3

Ju
l-1

6
Ju

l-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

F
eb

-1
9

$3
2.

3
D

ec
-0

9
M

ay
-1

6
N

ov
-1

0
A

pr
-1

6
Ju

l-1
6

Ju
l-1

6
Ju

n-
17

F
eb

-1
9

F
ul

le
rt

on
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
C

en
te

r 
- 

E
le

va
to

r 
U

pg
ra

de
s

$3
.5

N
/A

N
/A

Ja
n-

12
D

ec
-1

3
D

ec
-1

3
Ju

n-
14

S
ep

-1
4

M
ar

-1
7

$4
.6

N
/A

N
/A

Ja
n-

12
D

ec
-1

3
D

ec
-1

3
A

ug
-1

4
A

pr
-1

5
S

ep
-1

8

La
gu

na
 N

ig
ue

l/M
is

si
on

 V
ie

jo
 S

ta
tio

n 
A

D
A

 R
am

ps
$3

.5
Ju

l-1
3

Ja
n-

14
Ju

l-1
3

A
ug

-1
4

A
ug

-1
4

S
ep

-1
4

Ja
n-

15
A

pr
-1

7

$5
.2

Ju
l-1

3
Fe

b-
14

Ju
l-1

3
Ju

l-1
5

Ju
l-1

5
Ju

l-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

Se
p-

17

A
na

he
im

 R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

In
te

rm
od

al
 C

en
te

r
$2

27
.4

A
pr

-0
9

F
eb

-1
1

Ju
n-

09
F

eb
-1

2
F

eb
-1

2
M

ay
-1

2
Ju

l-1
2

N
ov

-1
4

P
ro

je
ct

 R
 &

 T
$2

32
.2

A
pr

-0
9

Fe
b-

12
Ju

n-
09

M
ay

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Se
p-

12
D

ec
-1

4

N
ot

e:
 C

os
ts

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

fr
ee

w
ay

 p
ro

je
ct

s.

G
re

y 
=

 M
ile

st
on

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
G

re
en

 =
 F

or
ec

as
t m

ile
st

on
e 

m
ee

ts
 o

r 
ex

ce
ed

s 
pl

an
Y

el
lo

w
 =

 F
or

ec
as

t m
ile

st
on

e 
is

 o
ne

 to
 th

re
e 

m
on

th
s 

la
te

r 
th

an
 p

la
n

R
ed

 =
 F

or
ec

as
t m

ile
st

on
e 

is
 o

ve
r 

th
re

e 
m

on
th

s 
la

te
r 

th
an

 p
la

n

B
eg

in
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l: 

 T
he

 d
at

e 
w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

, p
ro

je
ct

 r
ep

or
t, 

or
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
ph

as
e 

be
gi

ns
.

C
om

pl
et

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l: 

 T
he

 d
at

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
ar

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.
B

eg
in

 D
es

ig
n:

  T
he

 d
at

e 
fin

al
 d

es
ig

n 
w

or
k 

be
gi

ns
, o

r 
th

e 
da

te
 w

he
n 

a 
de

si
gn

-b
ui

ld
 c

on
tr

ac
t b

eg
in

s.
C

om
pl

et
e 

D
es

ig
n:

  T
he

 d
at

e 
fin

al
 d

es
ig

n 
w

or
k 

is
 1

00
 p

er
ce

nt
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ea

dy
:  

T
he

 d
at

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 b

id
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
re

 r
ea

dy
 fo

r 
ad

ve
rt

is
em

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 r
ig

ht
-o

f-
w

ay
, a

ll 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 e
xe

cu
te

d,
 c

on
tr

ac
t c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 a

re
 c

le
ar

ed
.

A
dv

er
tis

e 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
  T

he
 d

at
e 

a 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
 is

 b
ot

h 
fu

nd
ed

 a
nd

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
 fo

r 
bi

ds
.

A
w

ar
d 

C
on

tr
ac

t: 
 T

he
 d

at
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 a

w
ar

de
d.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e:
  T

he
 d

at
e 

al
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

op
en

 to
 p

ub
lic

 u
se

.

A
cr

on
ym

s
I-

5 
- 

S
an

ta
 A

na
 F

re
ew

ay
 (

In
te

rs
ta

te
 5

)
S

R
-7

1 
- 

C
or

on
a 

E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

 (
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 7

1)
S

R
-5

5 
- 

C
os

ta
 M

es
a 

F
re

ew
ay

 (
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 5

5)
S

R
-5

7 
- 

O
ra

ng
e 

F
re

ew
ay

 (
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 5

7)
S

R
-9

1 
- 

R
iv

er
si

de
 F

re
ew

ay
 (

S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 9
1)

S
R

-2
2 

- 
G

ar
de

n 
G

ro
ve

 F
re

ew
ay

 (
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 2

2)
I-

40
5 

- 
S

an
 D

ie
go

 F
re

ew
ay

 (
In

te
rs

ta
te

 4
05

)
S

R
-2

41
 -

 F
oo

th
ill

/E
as

te
rn

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

C
or

rid
or

 (
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 2

41
)

I-
60

5 
- 

S
an

 G
ab

rie
l R

iv
er

 F
re

ew
ay

 (
In

te
rs

ta
te

 6
05

)
A

D
A

 -
 A

m
er

ic
an

s 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
A

ct
 

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4



Capital Programs Division
Fiscal Year 2017-18 Performance Metrics Through December 2017 

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 No "Begin Environmental" milestones scheduled for FY 2017-18

Total Forecast/Actual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 SR-55, I-405 to I-5 X

 17th Street Railroad Grade Separation X

 91 Express Lanes to SR-241 Toll Connector X

Total Forecast/Actual 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 3

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 SR-55, I-405 to I-5 X

 Anaheim Canyon Metrolink Station X

Total Forecast/Actual 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 SR-57 (Northbound), Orangethorpe to Lambert Landscape X

 OC Streetcar X

 I-5, Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway X

 San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding X

 I-5, SR-73 to Oso Parkway X

Total Forecast/Actual 2 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 5

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 Placentia Metrolink Station and Parking Structure X

 I-5, SR-55 to SR-57 X

 SR-57 (Northbound), Orangethorpe to Lambert Landscape X

 San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding X

 OC Streetcar X

 I-5, Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway X

Total Forecast/Actual 1 0 4 3 0 0 1 0 6

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 SR-57 (Northbound), Katella to Lincoln Landscape X

 OC Streetcar X

 Placentia Metrolink Station and Parking Structure X

 I-5, SR-55 to SR-57 X

 SR-57 (Northbound), Orangethorpe to Lambert Landscape X

 San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding X

Total Forecast/Actual 1 1 2 1 3 0 0 0 6

FY 18 Qtr 4

Begin Design

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3

FY 18 Qtr 1

Complete Design

Construction Ready

Complete Environmental

Begin Environmental 

FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3 FY 18 Qtr 4FY 18 Qtr 1

FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3 FY 18 Qtr 4

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3 FY 18 Qtr 4

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3

Advertise Construction

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3

FY 18 Qtr 4

FY 18 Qtr 4

Page 1 of 2

nfaelnar
Text Box
ATTACHMENT B



Capital Programs Division
Fiscal Year 2017-18 Performance Metrics Through December 2017 

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 SR-57 (Northbound), Katella to Lincoln Landscape X

 SR-57 (Northbound), Orangethorpe to Lambert Landscape X

 Placentia Metrolink Station and Parking Structure X

 I-5, SR-55 to SR-57 X

 OC Streetcar X

Total Forecast/Actual 0 1 1 0 2 0 2 0 5

FY 18

Project Description Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst Actual Fcst

 I-5, Vista Hermosa to Pacific Coast Highway X

 Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Station ADA Ramps X

 I-405/SR-22/I-605 HOV Connector Landscape X

 State College Boulevard Railroad Grade Separation (Fullerton) X

 I-5, Pico to Vista Hermosa X

 I-5, Pacific Coast Highway to San Juan Creek Road X

 SR-91 (Westbound), I-5 to SR-57 Landscape X

Total Forecast/Actual 1 2 1 1 2 0 3 0 7

Totals 7 7 11 8 10 0 6 0 34

Begin Environmental:  The date work on the environmental clearance, project report, or preliminary engineering phase begins.
Complete Environmental:  The date environmental clearance and project approval is achieved.
Begin Design:  The date final design work begins or the date when a design-build contract begins.
Complete Design:  The date final design work is 100 percent complete and approved.
Construction Ready:  The date contract bid documents are ready for advertisement, right-of-way certified,

all agreements executed, and contract constraints are cleared.
Advertise for Construction:  The date a construction contract is both funded and advertised for bids.
Award Contract:  The date the construction contract is awarded. 
Construction Complete:  The date all construction work is completed and the project is open to public use.

Acronyms
I-5 - Santa Ana Freeway (Interstate 5) X = milestone forecast in quarter
SR-73 - San Joaquin Freeway (State Route 73)      = milestone accomplished in quarter
SR-55 - Costa Mesa Freeway (State Route 55)
SR-57 - Orange Freeway (State Route 57)
SR-91 - Riverside Freeway (State Route 91)
SR-22 - Garden Grove Freeway (State Route 22)
I-605 - San Gabriel River Freeway ( Interstate 605)
I-405 - San Diego Freeway (Interstate 405)
SR-241 - Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor (State Route 241)
ADA - Americans with Disability Act
HOV - high-occupancey vehicle

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3 FY 18 Qtr 4

FY 18 Qtr 1 FY 18 Qtr 2 FY 18 Qtr 3 FY 18 Qtr 4

Award Contract

Complete Construction

Page 2 of 2


	2.13.18 TOC Meeting Agenda
	2.13.18 Info List
	FINAL 10.10.17 TOC Minutes
	TOC--2017-18_modified
	ACTIONITEMCVER
	M2_2QFY18
	PRESENTITEMCVER
	Feb. 12_Project V Community Based Transit Circulators Program Guidelines and Call for Projects
	INFO ITEMCVER 
	Dec. 11_CTFP_Transmittal (30)
	Dec. 11_CTFP_Staff Report (55)
	Dec. 11_CTFP_Attachment A (35)
	Dec. 11 CTFP_Attachment B (26)
	Dec. 11_MMQPR_Transmittals
	Dec. 11_MMQPR_Staff Report (3)
	Dec. 11_MMQPR_Attachment A (3)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Transmittal (2)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Staff Report (4)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Attachment A (4)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Attachment B (3)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Attachment C (1)
	Dec. 11_FY1718_Attachment D (1)
	Dec. 11_ECP_Transmittal (4)
	Dec. 11_ECP_Staff Report (7)
	Dec. 11_ECP_Attachment A (7)
	Dec. 11_ECP_Attachment B (6)
	Dec. 11_ECP_Attachment C (3)
	Dec. 11_EMP_Transmittal (5)
	Dec. 11_EMP_Staff Report (8)
	Dec. 11_EMP_Attachment A (8)
	Dec. 11_EMP_Attachment B (7)
	Jan. 8_PVCB_Transmittal (3)
	Jan. 8_PVCB_Staff Report (5)
	Jan. 8_PVCB_Attachment A (5)
	Jan. 8_PVCB_Attachment B (4)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Staff Report (6)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment A (6)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment B (5)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment C (2)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment D (2)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment E (1)
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment F
	Jan. 22_FQ1718_Attachment G
	Jan. 22_V_Transmittal (31)
	Jan. 22_V_Staff Report (55)
	Jan. 22_V_Attachment A (35)
	Jan. 22_V_Handout - Board Meeting
	Feb. 12_CPD_Transmittal (6)
	Feb. 12_CPD_Staff Report (9)
	Feb.12_CPD_Attachment A (9)
	Feb. 12_CPD_Attachment B (8)



